


As community bank in Indiana we have always believed that helping the people and businesses

in the towns where we are located is the best investment we can make The theme of our 201

annual report reflects this spirit and was inspired by the unwavering drive and determination of

lndy SurviveUars dragon boat rowing team of women who faced breast cancer and triumphed
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politic nd guI tory unc rt in ie thom

In additi nificant lopm nts in
urop rid ound

world ye profound ffect on busin nd

consumers in the United States As community bank

in Indiana there is little we can do to realistically avoid

these broad geopolitical issues Clearly the world

is now interconnected as never before and we all truly

participate in global economy

However in our corner of the world we have been

encouraged to see signs of increased optimism among our

business customers regarding their economic outlook

As 2011 came to close we witnessed increased demand

for business lending and among consumers the low interest

rate environment has once again begun to drive mortgage

volume We are cautiously optimistic that this increased

lending activity will lead to further overall
strengthening

of the economy and increased profitability

Still we recognize that several fundamental issues could

still dampen the emerging recovery and thereby influence



Amerianas future outlook The most sig iificant these is

the health and stability of the housing id commercial real

estate markets and while we are hopeful that our overall

credit quality will continue to improve these markets remain

the weakest sector of the economy As such they will

continue to have the greatest potential bearing on future

credit quality and our efforts to work through problem

assets Also with acceleration in business activity it

remains unclear how long the current low interest rite

environment will prevail and how it will ultimately affect

the yield curve md future interest marg ns

Our financial progress in 281 speaks only to one

dimension of Arnerianas growth dunnq the past year

Whle strc ngth seem tV and soundness are cleary important

considerations evaluations of any community ba ik should

also measure the role the institution plays in the cc mmunitres

it erves it customer focused Is it nnected the

community ot only as business but also as force to

kcai progress development and growtf Is it attuned to the

neds of consumers providi ig essendal narrcial oducts and

rvices that arL to be expecteu and th qoing beyond that

to offer br med range of cap mbhrties to assist families ard

usirressc with virtually all the financial services they require

We can say
confider tly that Arnerian excels in all these

areas underscorinq the meanrng ota troe community bank

id bnnqinq ense of satistact on to those who recall

the ago of hometown banking and the lically connected

prsonalized approach to customer service that promised

those ideals till live at Amenianai Embraced by our associates

throughout our organization the spirit community banking

direct md me ninqtul involvement ir community activities

id shored sense of purpoe with the communities we

serve continues to define our meL tion mhrps with customers

across our markets

In closirrg let us add that despite these challenges of tf

past few years we remain hopeful that the signs of incmc asi

stability we saw in our operations during 2811 will cur trr

in the future It goes witf out saying that as Amnerrarmi and

the industry attempt to return to more normalize edit

environment significant disruptions in hr nationa of

cc mnornies can if feet em progress The volatrl ty we see rr

market indicators both at horrre and abroad is onpr cl

and cue poutrcai
and

regr ratory uncertain wc mccc is

onsettlrnq Still barring negative develop nents in the

areas we in tend to continue path fooused or cc ovr

aset quality growing earnings steadily and mncremsim

internally generated cap tel In our view hese etfort to

St engthen the Ameriana franchise wr enl once rotor

to shareholders over the Ioriq term

We are grateful for your continued confidence in An iii

and as always we apprcciate your ommoomng suppc to

our company

erome 3assen

President and Chmef





Synchronization and fundamentals propefled our actions in

201 Against head winds and choppy waters generated by

turbulent economic news cur executive team and associates

grabbed hold of the cars and pulled the organization forward

by executing major initiatives most not bIy our year

tcchnology plan and community outreach programs

We became market leader in emert ing technology by

launching mobile banking application with the assistance

of fexasbased Malauzai Software Inc Our customers can

deposit checks review balances and transfer mo ey right

tram their smartphones All that is required from oui customers

is to simply sign up and download the fiee application from

the iTunes store or Gooqle PlayM for the Android Market

As community bank Ameriana Bank garnered high

profile press in the industry Our launch of mobile banking

aooeared articles in American Banker and BankNews corn

to name few We quickly bccame resource for other

ba iks looking to follow suit As result we fielded sea of

inquiries related to how we deployed tf is technology as

competitive advarit ige arid subsequent greatly inching

tm catoHie xper As ndmctco lii ut05ith

vey tf fich ology continurd to kecp our customer

itis sct nu hors rtror at 9/ pert nt

ur plc ir vestment act vity didn stop th flat

iii lestonc As we moved into lie third sear of the technology

plan lnternet banking upgr
ides ensbled us to pr icess loan

appucdtiuns fur hutS uunuiriei anu cmi igaye loans uiihrm

We also censed lSs Business Intelligence entral

data repoato so we can aggreqate ac mss and underst nd

our busi ioss arid customer information more effectively

fIns solution will be initiated in 2012 arid will provide us

with critical eportmg arid analysis to support relationship

profitability and customer interaction manaqement

While rnobue arid Internet banking are crasticllv tori 10

banking behaviors for segment of our custorrer base

physical retail locations are still valued ar needed for

significant percentage of our customers With tf is in nd

we continued to make enhancements to the custorne

experience in our banking centers Our Avon customers we

the latest to witness this transformation cnd enjoy rumb

of new amenities From Community Boo 11 and self ye

coin exchange machine ti free Wi Fi and offee customer

value these extra amenit es which many tank do it If

Our Ok Money Chat also conti iuu to be wsl re ervc

and well attended Those chats reach pa on er 10

level and giv forum to offer counsel on frnan

matters provide tcces to other topics that appeal

our customers ii terests md hobbic hose 1at all

to cngaqe totontial customers alonq witf our onrie nd

in ethru customers by ivi ig them rc on to con cm

our banking centers Our life Money Chats havc see

an effective touclr point to expand the products ar

used by our bankinj and insurance custorne as well

commercial lending arid brokerage die itn

iTs ms is
rep

mmd trademark of Apple or and Google Play and Andrmd Market are trademarks of 0oogie Sc



Recognized as community bank Ameriana is far from

being habitual company We elect not to cling to the past

but balance the positive attributes from days gone by with

important contributions even modest ones from the here

and now The convergence of adooting the technologically

advanced mobile banking product with the simple idea of

having all your oars in the water and getting everyone from

associates to community organizations to pull in the same

direction is core to our way of thinking

Innovation and substantive Midwestern values continue

to serve us well These same principles guided the initiatives

undertaken in 2011 mix of grassroots marketing programs

was designed to give us means to offer our support to

the community while presenting us with new avenues to

introduce and in some cases redritroduce Ameriana Baik

to more people in more effective manner

hroughout the yeac we deployed best practices ìd

proven techniques in retail banking One suc successh

program generated interest publicity and nu nerous nay

banking relationships As part of the program dom ti

was made in the customers name tj one of severa

local charities Over $50000 was gifted to or profi

organizations In addition both existing and new custor icr

received thank you gift from the bank rhe en rgy ant

effort provided by the nonprofit organizations to hcp rn irk

the program for us made difference for everyone it vo ved

Several of our banking centers have Comr ion ty Rn or

to give business psople and nonprofit organizations

convenient and free meeting space during the day

after our business hours In Westfield alone /f diffener

groups held meetings in the Community Room Slightly

more than 25 percent of these groups used it for the urn

time while roughly seven percent booked it more than

10 times This amenity and commur ity resource has

exceeded all expectations since majority of the time

slots are booked solid for months in advance

Another resource available to the community is th

Ameriana Giving Wall special and prime location

our banking centers the Giving Wall assists local char ties

by making it easier for people to learn about drop oft aid

donate items or money We have helped collect tanned

and nonperishable food items new and gently used titer

clothing new and used cell phones backpacks and sch ol

supplies for many worthy causes The donat ons and th

money raised helped local children students adults and

families in need or facing medical cuallenges

Our efforts are being recognized Ameriana Bank was

named Business of the Year by the Westfield Chamber

of Commerce and the New Castle Chamber also honored

Ameriana Insurance as Business of the Year In addition

Ameriana Batik was named Top Work Place by Workplace

Dynamics We were the only bank to receive the honor

among mid sized companies in Central Indiana





As financial nstitution serving communities in Irdiana

and around lndianapohs we remain steadfast in our belief

that what is good for the community good for the bank

Hr us it is not just altruistic but sound business and the

essence of our Amenana brand

Thats why our organization remains active in tF comr aunity

and why we continue to encourage uur associates to do

the same Each and eveiy year we set aside significant

number of work hours so they can vok nteer their tirna and

talents to locai ionproft rqanizations and causes dear to

them nd the community While mary associates arid iaany

hour are contnbuted annually we recognize one associates

efforts by honoring them with our Community rvice Award

In 2011 was proudly awarded to iloria Co bin Glor

worked inc Friday month helping to distntutr food fo

tie Second Harvest Food Bank New Castle addition

she found lendinq hand in variety of community

projects through her church including pc rrhasinq and delivering

od staples the Christian Levi Center once month

an activity she performed for the Preq aancy are Center too

She also rved as the treasurer For Friends of the library

art of the New Castle Heniy County Public Library

list of all the local aonprofit organizations Arne

worked with to better the lives of friends and famili in

communities can he fou md on the back cover of th epo

all of which are tribute to our communities Jri daily

basis these wonderful organizations mi tivat us to tay

the course and keep pulling together

The inspiration behind this annual report dy Surviv ar

is group of breast cancer survivors who prov ds stronc

message of hope inspi ation and encou agerr en thr iuot

the competitive racing of their dragon boat ls haft to

believe but this group is one of 50 dragon boat teams ir he

United States These dedicated women tain oi Ceit

our Fishers banking center to paddle tof ether and support

each other as well as learn from one another sp riser nj

and hosting events such as Pink Week and Vines fo if

we have helped raise donations to fund the
lridy

Soc ye Jar

dragon boat team and research for brea at cancer

Cancer is very real part of everyday life And ti can er

community gives us all strength to fight the fight

ore bravely than six year old Luke Andritsch ft ii \ic Oft svill

uke has idergi ne three
years

of tr atiac it for ac to

lymphoblastic leukemia at Riley Hospital In rccon or

their son the Andritsch family organiz foam oft tI

fundraising programs like Pennie for tient sorisor

Anie iana loam Luke provides backpacks full of toys cni

like Luke undergoing cancer treatment ri thr hoa it al

We share his dream and those of other amilie ac Ic

then own set of hallengc medica fir aricial An

Anmeriana is unwavering our efforts to help Like ii ot

ac hievc their dreams After all when ul misc

stroke after stroke ar work together as am aw

we can nd tfme way to better our communitiLs vhy

we are proud to be called community arik
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Main Office
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act YES NO

The aggregate market value of the registrants common stock held by nonaffiliates of the registrant at June 30 2011 was approximately $13.6 million

For purposes of this calculation shares held by the directors and executive officers of the registrant are deemed to be held by affiliates

At March 27 2012 the registrant had 2988952 shares of its common stock outstanding

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders are incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K



fri

NIWX

MrI

Business

Unresolved Staff Comments

Properties
31

Legal Proceedings ... 32

Mine Safety Disclosures 32

PTH
Item Market fore8istrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchq1

of ujiySuæbes .T

Item Selected jnaca.Data
Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation 36

Item 7A Quantitatikan Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Item FinaneilStatethents and Supplementary Data ....

Item Changes in an Pjsagrenents With Accntants on Accounting and Financil Disclosure 97

Item 9A Controls ajtIocŁd.e- tL 97

Item 9B Other .. 97

PARTIII
-1/.i

Directors Ex cutiveicers-a dCoiporate GovemancQ...-. 98

Executive Compensation 98

Secity and Maitagemefit and ReIat-
Stockholder .IyLa ers ...... 98

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence 99.. --
PARTIV
.-.------ i_- _i

Ite -5 Exhibits and Fincial Statethe $chedu1e t...J..- 99

Item

itWL
Item lB

Item

Item

Item

Item 10

Item 11

Item 12

Item 13

Item 14



Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws

These statements are not historical facts rather statements based on Ameriana Bancorps current expectations

regarding its business strategies intended results and future performance Forward-looking statements are preceded

by terms such as expects believes anticipates intends and similar expressions Such statements are subject

to certain risks and uncertainties including changes in economic conditions in the Companys market area including

real estate values changes in policies by regulatory agencies the outcome of litigation fluctuations in interest rates
demand for loans in the Companys market area and competition that could cause actual results to differ materially

from historical earnings and those presently anticipated or projected Additional factors that may affect our results

are discussed in this annual report on Form 10-K under Part Item IA Risk Factors and in the quarterly report

on Form lO-Q for the period ended June 30 2011 under Part II Item IA Risk Factors The Company cautions

readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements which speak only as of the date made
The Company advises readers that the factors listed above could affect the Companys financial performance and

could cause the Companys actual results for future periods to differ materially from any opinions or statements

expressed with respect to future periods in any current statements

The Company does not undertake and specifically disclaims any obligation to publicly release the result of

any revisions that may be made to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date

of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events

PART

Item Business

General

The Company Ameriana Bancorp the Company is an Indiana chartered bank holding company
subject to regulation and supervision by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System the Federal

Reserve Board under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 the BHCA The Company became the holding

company for Ameriana Bank the Bank in 1990 The Company also holds minority interest in limited

partnership organized to acquire and manage real estate investments which qualify for federal tax credits

References to we us and our refer to Ameriana Bancorp andlor the Bank as appropriate

The Bank The Bank began operations in 1890 Since 1935 the Bank has been member of the Federal

Home Loan Bank the FHLB System Its deposits are insured to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund
administered by the FDIC the FDIC On June 29 2002 the Bank converted to an Indiana savings bank and

adopted the name Ameriana Bank and Trust SB On July 31 2006 the Bank closed its Trust Department and

adopted the name Ameriana Bank SB On June 2009 the Bank converted from an Indiana savings bank to an

Indiana commercial bank and adopted its present name Ameriana Bank The Bank is subject to regulation by the

Indiana Department of Financial Institutions the DFI and the FDIC The Bank conducts business through its

main office at 21 18 Bundy Avenue New Castle Indiana and through twelve branch offices located in New Castle

Middletown Knightstown Morristown Greenfield Anderson Avon McCordsville Cannel Fishers Westfield and

New Palestine Indiana The Bank offers wide range of consumer and commercial banking services including

accepting deposits originating commercial mortgage consumer and construction loans and through its

subsidiaries providing investment and brokerage services and insurance services

The Bank has two wholly-owned subsidiaries Ameriana Insurance Agency AlA and Ameriana

Financial Services Inc AFS AlA provides insurance sales from offices in New Castle Greenfield and Avon
Indiana AFS operates brokerage facility in conjunction with LPL Financial

The principal sources of funds for the Banks lending activities include deposits received from the general

public funds borrowed from the FHLB of Indianapolis principal amortization and prepayment of loans The

Banks primary sources of income are interest and fees on loans and interest on investments The Bank has from

time to time purchased loans and loan participations in the secondary market The Bank also invests in various



federal and government agency obligations and other investment securities permitted by applicable laws and

regulations including mortgage-backed municipal and mutual fund securities The Banks principal expenses are

interest paid on deposit accounts and borrowed funds and operating expenses

Competition The geographic markets we serve are highly competitive for deposits loans and other

financial services including retail brokerage services and insurance Our direct competitors include traditional

banking and savings institutions as well as other non-bank providers of financial services such as insurance

companies brokerage firms mortgage companies and credit unions located in the Banks market area Additional

significant competition for deposits comes from money market mutual funds and corporate and government debt

securities and internet banks

The primary factors in competing for loans are interest rates and loan origination fees and the range of

services offered by the various financial institutions Competition for origination of loans normally comes from

commercial banks savings institutions mortgage bankers mortgage brokers and insurance companies

The Bank has banking offices in Henry Hancock Hendricks Shelby Madison and Hamilton Counties in

Indiana The Bank competes with several commercial banks and savings institutions in the Banks primary service

area and in surrounding counties many of which have capital and assets that are substantially larger than the Bank

The Company expects competition to increase in the future as result of legislative regulatory and

technological changes and the continuing trend of consolidation in the financial services industry Technological

advances for example have lowered barriers to entry into the industry allowed banks to expand their geographic

reach by providing services over the Internet and made it possible for non-depository institutions to offer products

and services that traditionally have been provided by banks Changes in federal law permit affiliation among banks

securities firms and insurance companies which promotes competitive environment in the financial services

industry Competition for deposits and the origination of loans could limit the Companys growth in the future

Available Information

The Companys annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K

and any amendments to such reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended are made available free of charge on the Companys website www.ameriana.com as soon

as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange

Commission Information on the Companys website should not be considered part of this Form 10-K

Lending Activities

General The principal lending activity of the Bank has been the origination of conventional first mortgage

loans secured by residential property and commercial real estate and commercial loans and consumer loans The

residential mortgage loans have been predominantly secured by single-family homes and have included construction

loans

The Bank may originate or purchase whole loans or loan participations secured by real estate located in any

part of the United States Notwithstanding this nationwide lending authority the majority of the Banks mortgage

loan portfolio is secured by real estate located in Henry Hancock Hamilton Hendricks Madison Shelby Delaware

and Marion counties in Indiana



The following table sets forth information concerning the Banks loans by type of loan at the dates indicated

At December 31
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

Dollars in thousands
Real estate loans

Commercial $100126 31.58% $94595 29.79% $104231 31.92% $98173 30.13% 83282 27.88%
Residential 164420 51.86 169274 53.30 163179 49.96 160553 49.27 139980 46.86
Construction 17980 5.67 24705 7.77 28799 8.82 39281 12.05 48880 16.36

Commercial loans and leases 30961 9.76 22360 7.04 23580 7.22 21215 6.51 18665 6.25

Municipal loans 740 0.23 2718 0.86 2781 0.85 2218 0.68 2945 0.99

Consumer loans 2.860 0.90 3943 1.24 4003 1.23 4424 1.36 4959 1.66

Total S317.087 100.00% 317.595 100.00% 326573 100.00% 325.864 100.00% 298.711 liJ00%

Less

Undisbursedloanproceeds 12 443 1005 386 1892
Deferred loan fees expenses net 434 225 19 48 131
Allowance for loan losses 4132 4.212 4005 2.991 2677

Subtotal 4.578 4.880 5029 3329 4.438
Total $312.509 $312.715 $321.544 S294.273



The following table shows at December 31 2011 the Banks loans based on their contractual terms to

maturity Demand loans loans having no stated schedule of repayments and no stated maturity and overdrafts are

reported as due in one year or less Contractual principal repayments of loans do not necessarily reflect the actual

term of the loan portfolio The average
life of mortgage loans is substantially less than their contractual terms

because of loan prepayments and because of enforcement of due-on-sale clauses which give the Bank the right to

declare loan immediately due and payable if among other things the borrower sells the real property subject to the

mortgage and the loan is not repaid The average life of mortgage loans tends to increase however when current

mortgage loan rates substantially exceed rates on existing mortgage loans

Amounts of Loans Which Mature in

2017 and

2012 20132016 Thereafter Total

In thousands

Type of Loan

Residential and commercial real estate mortgage 18216 14122 232208 264546

Construction 7717 2262 8001 17980

Other 10508 13603 10.450 34561

Total 36441 29987 j250659 31i7

The following table sets forth the dollar amount of the Companys aggregate
loans due after one year from

December 31 2011 which have predetermined interest rates and which have floating or adjustable interest rates

Fixed Adjustable

Rate Rate Total

In thousands

Residential and commercial real estate mortgage 165770 80560 246330

Construction 5481 4782 10263

Other loans 22.196 1857 24053

Total Si93447 8712 280646

Residential Real Estate and Residential Construction Lending The Bank originates loans on one-to

four-family residences The original contractual loan payment period for residential mortgage loans originated by

the Bank generally ranges
from ten to 30 years Because borrowers may refinance or prepay

their loans they

normally remain outstanding for shorter period The Bank normally sells portion of its newly originated fixed-

rate mortgage loans in the secondary market and retains all adjustable-rate loans in its portfolio The decision to sell

fixed-rate mortgage loans is determined by management based on available pricing and balance sheet

considerations The Bank also originates hybrid mortgage loans Hybrid mortgage loans carry fixed-rate for the

first three to ten years and then convert to an adjustable-rate thereafter The residential mortgage loans originated

and retained by the Bank in 2011 were composed primarily of fixed-rate loans and to lesser extent hybrid loans

that have fixed-rate for five or seven years and adjust annually to the one-year constant maturity treasury rate

thereafter The overall strategy is to maintain low risk mortgage portfolio that helps to diversify the Banks overall

asset mix

The Bank makes construction/permanent loans to borrowers to build one-to four-family owner-occupied

residences with terms of up to 30 years These loans are made as interest-only loans for period typically of 12

months at which time the loan converts to an amortized loan for the remaining term The loans are made typically

as adjustable-rate mortgages which may be converted to fixed-rate loan for sale in the secondary market at the

request of the borrower if secondary market guidelines have been met One-to four-family residential construction

loans were $2.2 million or 12.2% of the construction loan portfolio at December 31 2011 compared to $3.3

million or 13.4% at December 31 2010 Additionally at December 31 2011 the Bank held loans on $2.2 million

of residential land and building lots which represented 12.2% of the construction loan portfolio compared to $3.2

million or 12.9% at December 31 2010

Loans involving construction financing present greater level of risk than loans for the purchase of existing

homes since collateral value and construction costs can only be estimated at the time the loan is approved The

Bank has sought to minimize this risk by limiting construction lending to qualified borrowers in its market area and

by limiting the number of construction loans outstanding at any time to individual builders In addition many of the

Banks construction loans are made on homes that are pre-sold for which permanent financing is already arranged



Home equity lines of credit have adjustable rates of interest that are indexed to the prime rate as published
in The Wall Street Journal for terms of up to 10 years The loans are originated with total maximum loan-to-value

ratio of 85% including the first mortgage of the appraised value of the property and the Bank requires that it has

second lien position on the property

In 2011 the Bank originated $31.5 million in non-construction residential real estate loans The total

included $1.1 million in adjustable-rate residential first mortgage loans including hybrids $25.7 million of fixed-

rate first mortgage loans $4.4 million of home equity credit lines and $294000 of closed end second mortgage
loans Sales of fixed-rate residential mortgage loans into the secondary market in 2011 and 2010 were $8.6 million

and $17.0 million respectively Gains on residential loan sales including imputed gains on servicing rights were

$225000 in 2011 compared with $923000 in 2010 $560000 of the 2010 gains resulted from bulk sale of $10.9

million of seasoned loans

Commercial Real Estate and Commercial Real Estate Construction Lending The Bank originates
loans secured by both owner-occupied and nonowner-occupied properties The Bank originates commercial real

estate loans and purchases loan participations from other financial institutions These participations are reviewed

and approved based upon the same credit standards as commercial real estate loans originated by the Bank At

December 31 2011 the Banks individual commercial real estate loan balances ranged from $1000 to $5.1 million

The Banks commercial real estate loans may have fixed or variable interest rate

Loans secured by commercial real estate properties are generally larger and involve greater degree of

credit risk than one-to four-family residential mortgage loans Because payments on loans secured by commercial

real estate properties are often dependent on the successful operation or management of the properties repayment of

such loans may be subject to adverse conditions in the real estate market or by general economic conditions If the

cash flows from the project are reduced for example if leases are not obtained or renewed the borrowers ability

to repay the loan may be impaired To minimize the risks involved in originating such loans the Bank considers

among other things the creditworthiness of the borrower the location of the real estate the condition and occupancy
levels of the security the projected cash flows of the business the borrowers ability to service the debt and the

quality of the organization managing the property

Commercial real estate construction loans are made to developers for the construction of commercial

properties owner-occupied facilities nonowner-occupied facilities and for speculative purposes These construction

loans are granted based on reasonable estimate of the time to complete the projects Commercial real estate

construction loans made up $13.6 million or 75.9% of the construction loan portfolio at December 31 2011

compared to $18.2 million or 73.7% at December 31 2010 As these loans mature they will either pay-off or roll

to permanent commercial real estate loan

The Banks underwriting criteria are designed to evaluate and minimize the risks of each construction loan

Among other things the Bank considers evidence of the availability of permanent financing or takeout

commitment to the borrower the reputation of the borrower and his or her financial condition the amount of the

borrowers equity in the project independent appraisal and review of cost estimates pre-construction sale and

leasing information and cash flow projections of the borrower

At December 2011 the largest commercial real estate lending relationship was credit secured by
commercial office space with an original commitment of $5.8 million current commitment of $5.1 million and an

outstanding balance of $5.1 million This credit was performing according to its original terms at December 31
2011

Municipal Lending At December 31 2011 the Banks loan portfolio included two municipal loans with

approved credit limits totaling $1.7 million and outstanding balances totaling $740000



Consumer Lending The consumer lending portfolio includes automobile loans and other consumer

products The collateral is generally the asset defined in the purpose of the request The policies of the Bank are

adhered to in our underwriting of consumer loans

Management believes that the shorter terms and the normally higher interest rates available on various

types of consumer loans have been helpful in maintaining profitable spreads between average loan yields and costs

of funds Consumer loans may entail greater risk than do residential mortgage loans particularly in the case of

consumer loans that are unsecured or secured by assets that depreciate rapidly In such cases repossessed collateral

for defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment for the outstanding loan and the

remaining deficiency often does not warrant further substantial collection efforts against the borrower In addition

consumer loan collections depend on the borrowers continuing financial stability and therefore are more likely to

be adversely affected by job loss divorce illness or personal bankruptcy Furthermore the application of various

federal and state laws including federal and state bankruptcy and insolvency laws may limit the amount that can be

recovered on such loans The Bank has sought to reduce this risk by primarily granting secured consumer loans

Commercial Lending The Bank lends to business entities for the short-term working capital inventory

financing equipment purchases and other business financing needs The loans can be in the form of revolving lines

of credit commercial lines of credit or term debt The Bank also matches the term of the debt to the estimated

useful life of the assets

At December 31 2011 the largest commercial relationship included seven credits with total commitments

of $6.7 million and outstanding balances totaling $4.9 million that were secured by all business assets of the

borrower One of the credits with $5.0 million commitment and outstanding balance of $3.5 million was approved

under the Small Business Administration SBA 7a CAPLine program and carries 75% SBA guarantee All of

the individual credits were performing according to their original terms at December 31 2011

Unlike residential mortgage loans which generally are made on the basis of the borrowers ability to make

repayment from his or her employment or other income and which are secured by real property the value of which

tends to be more easily ascertainable commercial loans are of higher risk and typically are made on the basis of the

borrowers ability to make repayment from the cash flows of the borrowers business As result the availability of

funds for the repayment of commercial loans may depend substantially on the success of the business itself Further

any collateral securing such loans may depreciate over time may be difficult to appraise and may fluctuate in value

Originations Purchases and Sales Historically most residential and commercial real estate loans have

been originated directly by the Bank through salaried and commissioned loan officers Residential loan originations

have been attributable to referrals from real estate brokers and builders banking center staff and commissioned loan

agents In 2011 the Bank acquired two loans totaling $3.8 million from other financial institutions $3.0 million

whole loan purchase of commercial credit to construction company in the oil and gas industry and $798000

participation loan involving an apartment complex in the Indianapolis area At December 31 2011 balances

outstanding for all loans acquired as participations or whole loan purchases totaled $23.8 million Commercial real

estate and construction loan originations have also been obtained by direct solicitation Consumer loan originations

are attributable to walk-in customers who have been made aware of the Banks programs by advertising as well as

direct solicitation

The Bank has previously sold whole loans and loan participations to other financial institutions and

institutional investors and sold $8.6 million of loans in 2011 Sales of loans generate income or loss at the time of

sale produce future servicing income and provide funds for additional lending and other purposes When the Bank

retains the servicing of loans it sells the Bank retains responsibility for collecting and remitting loan payments

inspecting the properties making certain insurance and tax payments on behalf of borrowers and otherwise servicing

those loans The Bank typically receives fee of between 0.25% and 0.375% per annum of the loans principal

amount for performing these services The right to service loan has economic value and the Bank carries

capitalized servicing rights on its books based on comparable market values and expected cash flows At December

31 2011 the Bank was servicing $95.7 million of loans for others The aggregate book value of capitalized

servicing rights at December 31 2011 net of $32000 valuation allowance was $577000



Management believes that purchases of loans and loan participations are desirable when local mortgage

demand is less than the local supply of funds available for mortgage originations or when loan terms available

outside the Banks local lending areas are favorable to those available locally Additionally purchases of loans may
be made to diversify the Banks lending portfolio The Banks loan purchasing activities fluctuate significantly

The seller generally performs the servicing of purchased loans The Bank utilizes the same underwriting and

monitoring processes and standards for loans it purchases as it would for internally generated loans To cover

servicing costs the service provider retains portion of the interest being paid by the borrower In addition to whole

loan purchases the Bank also purchases participation interests in loans Both whole loans and participations are

purchased on yield basis

For additional information see Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations included in Item of this Form 10-K

Loan Underwriting During the loan approval process the Bank assesses both the borrowers ability to

repay the loan and the adequacy of the underlying security Potential residential borrowers complete an application

that is submitted to commissioned loan originator As part of the loan application process the Bank obtains

information concerning the income financial condition employment and credit history of the applicant In addition

qualified appraisers inspect and appraise the property that is offered to secure the loan The Banks underwriter or

the Senior Vice President of Mortgage Banking approves or denies the loan request

Consumer loan applications are evaluated using multi-factor based scoring system or by direct

underwriting

Commercial loans that are part of lending relationship exceeding $250000 are submitted to the Banks
credit analysts for review financial analysis and for preparation of Loan Approval Memorandum The Loan

Committee consisting of members of the Board or management appointed by the Board of Directors must approve

secured and unsecured loans over $500000 and $100000 respectively and all loans that have variance to loan

procedure

In connection with the origination of single-family residential adjustable-rate loans with the initial rate

fixed for three
years or less borrowers are qualified at rate of interest equal to the new rate at the first re-pricing

date assuming the maximum increase It is the policy of management to make loans to borrowers who not only

qualify at the low initial rate of interest but who would also qualify following an upward interest rate adjustment

Loan Fee and Servicing Income In addition to interest earned on loans the Bank receives income

through servicing of loans and fees in connection with loan originations loan modifications late payments changes

of property ownership and for other miscellaneous services related to the loan Income from these activities is

volatile and varies from period to period with the volume and type of loans made

When possible the Bank charges loan origination fees on commercial loans that are calculated as

percentage of the amount borrowed and are charged to the borrower at the time of origination of the loan These

fees generally range up to one point one point being equivalent to 1% of the principal amount of the loan In

accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 310 loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct

loan origination costs are deferred and the net amount amortized as an adjustment of yield over the contractual life

of the related loans

For additional information see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements included under Item of

this Form 10-K

Delinquencies When borrower defaults on required payment on non-commercial loan the Bank

contacts the borrower and attempts to induce the borrower to cure the default late payment notice is mailed to the

borrower and telephone contact is made after payment is fifteen days past due If the delinquency on mortgage
loan exceeds 90 days and is not cured through the Banks normal collection procedures or an acceptable

arrangement is not worked out with the borrower the Bank will institute measures to remedy the default including

commencing foreclosure action In the case of default related to commercial loan the contact is initiated by the

commercial lender after payment is ten days past due The Loan Committee reviews delinquency reports weekly
and the Criticized Assets Committee reviews classified delinquent loans monthly



The Bank follows the collection processes required by Freddie Mac Fannie Mae and the Federal Home

Loan Bank of Indianapolis to manage residential loans underwritten for the secondary market The collection

practices for all other loans adhere with the Banks loan policies and regulatory requirements It is the Banks

intention to be proactive in its collection of delinquent accounts while adhering to state and federal guidelines

Nonperforming Assets and Asset Classification Loans are reviewed regularly and are placed on

nonaccrual status when in the opinion of management the collection of additional interest is doubtful Residential

mortgage loans are placed on nonaccrual status when principal or interest payments are 90 days or more past due

unless it is adequately secured and there is reasonable assurance of full collection of principal and interest

Consumer loans generally are charged off when the loan delinquency exceeds 120 days Commercial real estate

loans and commercial loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status when the loan is 90 days or more past due

Interest accrued and unpaid at the time loan is placed on nonaccrual status is charged against interest income

Subsequent payments are applied to the outstanding principal balance

Real estate acquired by the Bank as result of foreclosure or by deed-in-lieu of foreclosure is classified as

real estate owned until such time as it is sold When such property is acquired it is recorded at its fair value Any

subsequent deterioration of the property is charged off directly to income reducing the value of the asset

The following table sets forth information with respect to the Companys aggregate nonperforming assets

at the dates indicated

At December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Dollars in thousands

Loans accounted for on nonaccrual basis

Real Estate

Residential 4500 6258 3810 2960 1465

Commercial -- -- 841 1766 303

Construction 3432 4184 4219 1454 870

Commercial and leases 644 731 -- -- --

Consumer -- 14 12 38 --

Total 8.576 fll87 E882 6.218 2638

Accruing loans contractually past due

90 days or more

Real Estate

Residential 243 60 170 --

Consumer --

Total 252 60 171

Total of nonaccrual and 90 days or more past

due loans1 8828 11247 9053 6219 2..6.3

Percentage of total loans 2.79% 3.54% 2.78%

Other nonperforming assets 7571 9A1E2 5j7 4169 2517

Total nonperforming assets 16399 20.329 14570 10388 5155

Percentage of total assets 3.82% 4.73% 2.24% _L2i%

Troubled debt restructurings in total of

nonaccrual and 90 days or more past

due loans 1783 2245 -- -- --

Total troubled debt restructurings 8393 268 --



Total nonaccrual loans and 90 days or more past due loans at December 31 2011 included $1.8 million of troubled debt

restructurings which consisted of $1 million residential construction loan five residential non-construction loans

totaling $445000 and $225000 commercial loan

Other nonperforming assets represent property acquired through foreclosure or repossession This property is carried at the

lower of its fair market value or the principal balance of the related loan

Although the Companys nonperforming loans decreased by $2.4 million in 2011 from $11.2 million at

December 31 2010 to $8.8 million at December 31 2011 the total still represents an elevated level as result of

continued weakness in the economy Nonaccrual residential real estate loans decreased by approximately $1.8

million for the year to $4.5 million at December 31 2011 and was primarily due to the payoff of two loans totaling

$1.6 million We have analyzed our collateral position on these nonperforming loans using current appraisals and

valuations and have established reserves accordingly Nonperforming loans increased by $2.2 million in 2010 The

increase was primarily due to four credits totaling $4.0 million that included $1.3 million commercial development

loan $1.1 million residential condominium construction loan and two loans totaling $1.6 million on section 42

low-income housing tax credit properties

Troubled debt restructurings TDRs increased from $8.4 million at December 31 2010 to $9.0 million at

December 31 2011 This increase was primarily result of continuing weak economic conditions and the Banks

proactive efforts in instituting workout programs that maintain the borrowers ability to generate cash flows

sufficient to pay on modified basis and also project the ability to ultimately repay the entire debt under an

improved business environment The total of $9.0 million at December 31 2011 included $4.5 million loan on

hotel in northern Indiana $1.1 million construction loan on residential condominium project twenty-three

single-family home loans totaling $2.6 million two commercial real estate loans totaling $628000 and

commercial loan for $225000 The total of $8.4 million at December 31 2010 included the $4.5 million loan on

hotel in northern Indiana and the loan on residential condominium project for $1.2 million three land development

loans totaling $1.5 million and nine single-family home loans totaling $1.2 million As of December 31 2011 the

Bank had classified the $1.1 million construction loan on residential condominium project and the commercial

loan for $225000 as doubtful and all of the commercial real estate TDRs including the hotel loan as substandard

Three other residential real estate TDRs totaling $318000 were classified as doubtful and fifteen totaling $1.8

million were classified as substandard

Interest income that would have been recorded for 2011 had nonaccruing loans been current in accordance

with their original terms and had been outstanding throughout the period was $774000 The amount of interest

related to nonaccrual loans included in interest income for 2011 was $166000 of which $140000 was paid by

borrowers when the loans were not in nonaccrual status

For additional information regarding the Banks problem assets and loss provisions recorded thereon see

Management .s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item of this Form

10-K

Reserves for Losses on Loans and Real Estate

In making loans management recognizes that credit losses will be experienced and that the risk of loss will

vary with among other things the type of loan being made the creditworthiness of the borrower over the term of

the loan and in the case of secured loan the quality of the security for the loan

It is managements policy to maintain reserves for estimated incurred losses on loans The Banks

management establishes general loan loss reserves based on among other things historical loan loss experience

evaluation of economic conditions in general and in various sectors of the Banks customer base and periodic

reviews of loan portfolio quality Specific reserves are provided for individual loans where the ultimate collection is

considered questionable by management after reviewing the current status of loans that are contractually past due

and considering the net realizable value of the security of the loan or guarantees if applicable It is managements

policy to establish specific reserves for estimated inherent losses on delinquent loans when it determines that losses

are anticipated to be incurred on the underlying properties At December 31 2011 the Banks allowance for loan

losses amounted to $4.1 million Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate to cover all

incurred and probable losses inherent in the portfolio at December 31 2011



Future reserves may be necessary if economic conditions or other circumstances differ substantially from

the assumptions used in making the initial determinations Regulators in reviewing the Banks loan portfolio may

require the Bank to increase its allowance for loan losses thereby negatively affecting its financial condition and

earnings

The following table sets forth an analysis of the Banks aggregate allowance for loan losses for the periods

indicated

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Dollars in thousands

Balance at beginning of period 4.212 4005 2991 2.677 2.616

Charge-offs

Real estate loans

Commercial 11 238 127 --

Residential 605 737 200 413 14

Construction 536 525 637 -- 488

Commercial loans 301 398 212 503 538

Consumer loans 107 72 54 135 72

Total charge-offs 1560 1.970 1.230 1.051 1.113

Recoveries

Real estate loans

Residential 76 16

Commercial -- -- 75 --

Construction 206 -- --

Commercial loans and leases 47 -- 2772

Consumer loans 15 18 15 31 28

Total recoveries 95 244 64 115 2.80

Net charge-offs recoveries 1465 1726 1166 936 1688

Provision credit for loan losses 1.385 1.933 2.180 1.250 1627

Balance at end of period 4.132 4.212 4.005 2.991 2.677

Ratio of net charge-offs recoveries to

average
loan outstanding during the period 0.47% 0.54% 0.35% 0.30% 0.62%

Allowance for loan losses to loans 1.30% 1.33% 1.23% 0.92% 0.90%

The Company had provision for loan losses of $1.4 million for 2011 compared to provision of $1.9

million in 2010 primarily due to lower net charge-offs and nonperforming loans The amount of provision

necessary to maintain the allowance for loan losses as percentage of total loans at level required pursuant to the

Companys methodology was less in 2011 due to larger provision in 2010 to increase the allowance for loan

losses to an amount commensurate with the Companys level of credit risk at that time

The 2010 provision increased the allowance as percentage of total loans by 10 basis points from 1.23% at

December 31 2009 to 1.33% at December 31 2010 The 2011 provision resulted in basis points decrease in the

allowance as percentage of total loans to 1.30% at December 31 2011 Both the 2011 and the 2010 provisions

were primarily due to continuing elevated level of charge-offs and non-performing loans

Charge-offs totaled $1.6 million for 2011 and included partial charge-offs of the following credits

$501000 related to an Indianapolis area golf course that was sold in December 2011 with $121000 gain
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recognized $300000 related to commercial loan secured by oil and gas rights and $145000 related to single

family home located in the Indianapolis area These charge-offs resulted from further deterioration of general

economic conditions that occurred in 2011 as reflected by new appraisals or new valuations Total charge-offs were

$2.0 million for 2010 which included partial charge-offs of the following credits all in the Indianapolis market

$338000 related to high-end single family home $216000 related to one investors four residential rental

properties $180000 securing business assets of flooring retailer $160000 related to strip retail center and

adjacent lots and $158000 related to loan for multi-use commercial building See also Item Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Loans Credit Quality

The following table sets forth breakdown of the Companys aggregate allowance for loan losses by loan

category at the dates indicated Management believes that the allowance can be allocated by category only on an

approximate basis The allocation of the allowance to each category is not necessarily indicative of future losses and

does not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in any category

At December 31
2011 2010 2009

Percent of Percent of Percent of

Loans in Each Loans in Each Loans in Each

Category to Category to Category to

Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans

Dollars in thousands

Real estate loans

Commercial 736 31.58% 639 29.79% 661 31.92%

Residential 1605 51.86 1584 53.30 1262 49.96

Construction 940 5.67 1254 7.77 1269 8.82

Commercial loans and leases 788 9.76 657 7.04 686 7.22

Municipal loans -- 0.23 -- 0.86 -- 0.85

Consumer loans 63 0.90 78 1.24 127 1.23

Total allowance for

loan losses 4132 100.00% 4212 100.00% 4005 10000%

At December 31

2008 2007

Percent of Percent of

Loans in Each Loans in Each

Category to Category to

Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans

Dollars in thousands

Real estate loans

Commercial 760 30.13% 550 27.88%

Residential 521 49.27 348 46.86

Construction 686 12.05 999 16.36

Commercial loans and leases 729 6.51 571 6.25

Municipal loans -- 0.68 -- 0.99

Consumer loans 295 1.36 209 1.66

Total allowance for loan losses 2991 100.00% 2677 100.00%

Investment Activities

Interest and dividends on investment securities mortgage-backed securities FHLB stock and other

investments provide the second largest source of income for the Bank after interest on loans constituting 7.5% of

the Banks total interest income and dividends for 2011 The Bank maintains its liquid assets at levels believed

adequate to meet requirements of normal banking activities and potential savings outflows

As an Indiana commercial bank the Bank is authorized to invest without limitation in direct or indirect

obligations of the United States direct obligations of United States territory and direct obligations of the state or

municipal corporation or taxing district in Indiana The Bank is also permitted to invest in bonds or other securities

of national mortgage association and the stock and obligations of Federal Home Loan Bank Indiana commercial

banks may also invest in collateralized mortgage obligations to the same extent as national banks An Indiana
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commercial bank may also purchase for its own account other investment securities under such limits as the

Department of Financial Institutions prescribes by rule provided that the commercial bank may not invest more than

10% of its equity capital in the investment securities of any one issuer An Indiana commercial bank may not invest

in speculative bonds notes or other indebtedness that are defined as securities and that are rated below the first four

rating categories by generally recognized rating service or are in default An Indiana commercial bank may

purchase an unrated security if it obtains financial information adequate to document the investment quality of the

security

The Banks investment portfolio consists primarily of mortgage-backed securities issued by Ginnie Mae

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac The Bank has also invested in municipal securities and mutual funds and maintains

interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions primarily the FFILB of Indianapolis and the Federal Reserve

Bank of Chicago As member of the FHLB System the Bank is also required to hold stock in the FHLB of

Indianapolis The Bank did not own any security of single issuer that had an aggregate book value in excess of

10% of its equity at December 31 2011

The following table sets forth the market value of the Banks investments in federal agency obligations

mortgage-backed securities mutual funds and municipal securities at the dates indicated All of these investments

were available for sale

At December 31
2011 2010

In thousands

Ginnie Mae and GSE mortgage-backed pass-through $39714 $29436

securities

Ginnie Mae collateralized mortgage obligations 5341

Municipal securities 2351 2164

Mutual funds 1782 1.667

Total investment $43.847 $38608

The following table sets forth information regarding maturity distribution and
average yields for the Banks

investment securities portfolio at December 31 2011

Within Year 1-5 Years 5-10 Years Over 10 Years Total

Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

Dollars in thousands

Municipal securities -- -- 105 7.95% 381 7.95% $1865 7.95% $2351 7.95%

Mutual funds 1782 2.61 -- -- -- -- -- -- 1782 2.61

Presented on tax-equivalent basis using tax rate of 34%

Mutual funds have no stated maturity date
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The Banks mortgage-backed securities Ginnie Mae and GSE pass-throughs include both fixed and

adjustable-rate securities At December 31 2011 the Banks mortgage-backed securities consisted of the following

Carrying Average

Amount Yield

Dollars in thousands

Adjustable-rate

Repricing in one year or less 2318 2.00%

Repricing in more than one year

Fixed-rate

Maturing in five
years or less 13273 2.35

Maturing in five to ten years 14787 2.68

Maturing in more than ten years 9.336 3.21

Total 39.714 2.66%

Sources of Funds

General Checking and savings accounts certificates of deposit and other types of deposits are an

important source of the Banks funds for use in lending and for other general business purposes In addition to

deposit accounts the Bank derives funds from loan repayments loan sales borrowings and operations The

availability of funds from loan sales and repayments is influenced by general interest rates and other market

conditions Borrowings may be used on short-term basis to compensate for reductions in deposits or deposit

inflows at less than projected levels and may be used on longer-term basis to support expanded lending activities

Deposits The Bank attracts both short-term and long-term retail deposits from the general public by

offering wide assortment of deposit accounts and interest rates The Bank offers regular savings accounts interest-

bearing NOW and noninterest-bearing checking accounts money market accounts fixed interest rate certificates

with varying maturities and negotiated rate jumbo certificates with various maturities The Bank also offers tax-

deferred individual retirement Keogh retirement and simplified employer plan retirement accounts

As of December 31 2011 approximately 55.4% or $187.0 million of the Banks aggregate deposits

consisted of various savings and demand deposit accounts from which customers are permitted to withdraw funds at

any time without penalty

Interest earned on statement accounts is paid from the date of deposit to the date of withdrawal and

compounded semi-annually for the Bank Interest earned on NOW and money market deposit accounts is paid from

the date of deposit to the date of withdrawal and compounded and credited monthly Management establishes the

interest rate on these accounts weekly

The Bank also makes available to its depositors number of certificates of deposit with various terms and

interest rates to be competitive in its market area These certificates have minimum deposit requirements as well

In addition to retail deposits the Bank may obtain certificates of deposit from the brokered market The

Bank held no brokered certificates at December 31 2011 and $10.4 million of brokered certificates with weighted

average cost of 0.74% at December 31 2010
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The following table sets forth the change in dollar amount of deposits in the various types of deposit

accounts offered by the Bank between the dates indicated

Balance at Balance at Increase Decrease

December 31 December 31 from Prior

2011 2010 Year

Dollars in thousands

Noninterest-bearingdeposits. 40197 11.92% 34769 10.29% 5428 15.61%

Interest-bearing checking 88632 26.28 77012 22.78 11620 15.09

Money market deposits 29084 8.62 24551 7.26 4533 18.46

Savings deposits 29043 8.61 28836 8.53 207 0.72

Certificate accounts

Certificates of $100000

and more 42610 12.63 44481 13.16 1871 4.21

Fixed-rate certificates

12 months or less 62483 18.53 68221 5.29 5738 8.41

13-24 months 19820 5.88 25404 17.87 5584 21.98

25-36months 12224 3.63 5749 1.01 6475 112.63

37 months or greater 12616 3.74 18013 10.57 5397 29.96

Brokered certificates --- --- 10363 3.07 10363 100.00

Variable-rate certificates

18 months 541 0.16 579 0.17 38 6.56

Total 337250 100.00% 337978 100.00% 728 0.22%

The variety of deposit accounts offered by the Bank has permitted it to be competitive in obtaining funds

and has allowed it to respond with flexibility to but not eliminate disintermediation the flow of funds away from

depository institutions such as savings institutions into direct investment vehicles such as government and corporate

securities In addition the Bank has become increasingly subject to short-term fluctuation in deposit flows as

customers have become more interest rate conscious The ability of the Bank to attract and maintain deposits and its

costs of funds have been and will continue to be significantly affected by money market conditions The Bank

currently offers variety of deposit products including noninterest-bearing and interest-bearing NOW accounts

savings accounts money market deposit accounts MMDA and certificates of deposit ranging in terms from three

months to seven years

The following table sets forth the Banks average aggregate balances and interest rates Average balances

in 2011 2010 and 2009 are calculated from actual daily balances

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Average Average Average

Average Rate Average Rate Average Rate

Balance Paid Balance Paid Balance Paid

Dollars in thousands

Interest-bearing checking 81602 0.36% 73598 0.47% 79064 0.82%

Money market deposits 28449 0.38 25698 0.48 29259 0.74

Savings deposits 29705 0.09 26810 0.10 23983 0.13

Time deposits 168164 1.66 173889 2.12 194046 2.84

Total interest-bearing deposits 307920 1.05 299995 1.40 326352 1.96

Noninterest-bearing demand and

Savings deposits 39217 32892 27235

Total deposits $3477 $332887 $357
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The following table sets forth the aggregate time deposits in the Bank classified by rates as of the dates

indicated

At December 31

2011 2010 2009

In thousands

Less than 2.00% 107972 $113193 76024
2.00% 3.99 36860 51774 94919
4.00%-5.99 5462 7839 11935

6.00% -7.99 --- ______4 15

150294 Si7210 $182893

The following table sets forth the amount and maturities of the Banks time deposits at December 31 2011

Amount Due

More

Less Than Than

One Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Total

In thousands

Less than 1.00% 52565 11630 865 49 65109
1.00% 1.99 23818 9915 3448 5682 42863
2.00% 3.99 7599 3448 12782 13031 36860
4.00% 5.99 3774 758 930 -- 5462

87.756 25751 18025 18762 150294

The following table indicates the amount of the Banks certificates of deposit of $100000 or more by time

remaining until maturity at December 31 2011

Certificates of

Maturity Period $100000 or more

In thousands

Three months or less 4654
Over three through six months 5197
Over six through twelve months 14969

Over twelve months

Total

Borrowings Deposits are the primary sources of funds for the Banks lending and investment activities

and for its general business purposes The Bank also uses advances from the FHLB to supplement its supply of

lendable funds to meet deposit withdrawal requirements and to extend the terms of its liabilities FHLB advances

are typically secured by the Banks FHLB stock portion of first mortgage loans investment securities and

overnight deposits At December 31 2011 the Bank had $32.0 million of FHLB advances outstanding

The Federal Home Loan Banks function as central reserve banks providing credit for member financial

institutions As member the Bank is required to own capital stock in the FHLB and is authorized to apply for

advances on the security of such stock and certain of its home mortgages and other assets principally securities

which are obligations of or guaranteed by the United States provided certain standards related to creditworthiness

have been met Borrowings decreased $2.0 million in 2011 as the Bank repaid maturing $6.0 million Federal

Home Loan Bank note in February but added $4.0 million short-term Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing in

December with the proceeds being used primarily to fund temporary withdrawal of funds from municipal

checking account

On March 2006 the Company formed Ameriana Capital Trust Tnist wholly owned statutory

business trust The Company purchased 100% of the common stock of Trust for $310000 Trust issued $10.0
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million in trust preferred securities and those proceeds combined with the $310000 in proceeds of the common

stock were used to purchase $10.3 million in subordinated debentures issued by the Company The subordinated

debentures are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company and are the sole asset of Trust The subordinated

debentures had rate equal to the average of 6.71% and the three-month London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR
plus 150 basis points for the first five years following the offering Effective March 15 2011 the fixed rate

converted to floating rate and the subordinated debentures now bear rate equal to 150 basis points over the three-

month LIBOR rate At December 31 2011 the debentures had an interest rate of 2.05%

The following table sets forth certain information regarding borrowings at the dates and for the periods

indicated

At or for the Year

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Dollars in thousands

Amounts outstanding at end of period

FHLB advances $32000 $34000 $46375

Subordinated debentures 10310 10310 10310

Repurchase agreement 7500 7500 7500

Weighted average
rate paid on

FHLB advances at end of period 3.15% 3.70% 3.84%

Subordinated debentures 2.05 4.26 4.23

Repurchase agreement 4.42 4.42 4.42

Maximum amount of borrowings outstanding at any

month end

FHLB advances $34000 $46375 $79925

Subordinated debentures 10310 10310 10310

Repurchase agreement 7500 7500 7500

Approximate average amounts outstanding during period

FHLB advances $28897 $41779 $61244

Subordinated debentures 10310 10310 10310

Repurchase agreement 7500 7500 7500

Approximate weighted average rate during the period paid on

FHLB advances 3.69% 3.85% 3.97%

Subordinated debentures 2.35 4.32 4.64

Repurchase agreement 4.42 4.42 4.42
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Average Balance Sheet

The following table sets forth certain information relating to the Banks average yield on assets and average cost of liabilities for the periods indicated

Such yields and costs are derived by dividing income or expenses by the average balance of assets or liabilities respectively for the periods presented
Interest/dividends from tax-exempt municipal loans and tax-exempt municipal securities have been increased by $72000 $100000 and $256000 for 2011 2010

and 2009 respectively from the amount listed on the income statement to reflect interest income on tax-equivalent basis Average balances for 2011 2010 and

2009 are calculated from actual daily balances

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Average Average Average

Average Interest Yield Average Interest Yield Average Interest Yield

Balance Dividends Cost Balance Dividends Cost Balance Dividends Cost

Dollars in thousands

Interest-earning assets

Loan portfolio 311842 17421 5.5900 317226 18519 5.84c 335522 19434 5.7900

Mortgage-backed securities 34733 1096 3.16 31604 1210 3.83 48078 2258 4.70

Other securities

Taxable 1963 70 3.57 1907 70 3.67 3208 133 4.15

Tax-exempt2 1588 105 6.61 2604 149 5.72 9765 575 5.89

Short-term investments and other

interest-earning assets 24416 174 0.71 18.910 137 0.72 23622 197 0.3
Total interest-earning assets 374542 18866 5.04 372251 20085 5.40 420195 22597 5.38

Noninterest-earning assets 60.476 60.702 54627
Total assets 435.018 432953 474822

Interest-bearing liabilities

Demanddepositsandsavings 139756 427 0.31 126106 498 0.39 132306 894 0.68

Certificate ofdeposits 168.164 2798 1.66 173889 3687 2.12 194046 5.512 2.84

Total interest-bearing

deposits 307920 3225 1.05 299995 4185 1.40 326352 6406 1.96

Borrowings 46712 1.645 3.52 59589 2.389 4.01 79054 3246 4.11

Total interest-bearing

liabilities 354632 4.870 1.37 359584 6.574 1.83 405406 9.652 2.38

Noninterest-bearing liabilities 46635 40126 35.946

Total liabilities 401267 399710 441352
Stockholders equity 33.75 33.243 33.470

Total liabilities and

stockholders equity 435.018 432.953 474.822

Net interest income 13996 13511

Interest rate spread 3.67% 3.57% 3.00%
Net tax-equivalent yield 3.74% 3.63% 3.08%
Ratio of average interest-earning

assets to average interest-bearing

liabilities 105.61% 103.52% 103.65%

Interest and average yield presented on tax-equivalent basis using tax-effective tax rate of 32% for municipal bank qualified tax-exempt loans subject to the Tax Equity and Fiscal

Responsibility Act of 1982 penalty Nonaccrual loans are included in average loans outstanding

Interest and average yield presented on tax-equivalent basis using tax rate of 34%
Includes interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions mutual funds trust preferred securities and FHLB stock

Net interest income is presented on tax-equivalent basis as percentage of average interest-earning assets



Subsidiary Activities

The Company maintains two wholly owned subsidiaries the Bank and Ameriana Capital Trust The

Company also holds minority interest in limited partnership organized to acquire and manage real estate-

investments which qualify for federal tax credits The Bank has two wholly owned subsidiaries AlA which sells

insurance products and AFS which operates brokerage facility At December 31 2011 the Banks investments in

its subsidiaries were approximately $1.0 million consisting of direct equity investments

Indiana commercial banks may acquire or establish subsidiaries that engage in activities permitted to be

performed by the commercial bank itself or permitted to operating subsidiaries of national banks Under FDIC

regulations subsidiary of state bank may not engage as principal in any activity that is not of type permissible

for subsidiary of national bank unless the FDIC determines that the activity does not impose significant risk to

the affected insurance fund

REGULATION AND SUPERVISION

Certain of the regulatory requirements that are or will be applicable to the Company or the Bank are

described below The description of statutes and regulations is not intended to be complete explanation of such

statutes and regulations and their effects on the Company and the Bank and is qualified in its entirety by reference to

the actual statutes and regulations

Regulation and Supervision of the Company

General As bank holding company the Company is subject to Federal Reserve Board regulations

examinations supervision reporting requirements and regulations concerning its activities In addition the Federal

Reserve Board has enforcement authority over the Company As public reporting company registered with the

Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC the Company is required to file annual quarterly and current

reports with the SEC The Company is also subject to regular examination by the Federal Reserve Board

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 authorized bank holding company that meets specified conditions

including its depository institution subsidiaries being well-capitalized and well managed to opt to become

financial holding company and thereby engage in broader array of financial activities than previously permitted

Such activities can include insurance underwriting and investment banking The Dodd-Frank Act added the

requirements
that the holding company itself be well-capitalized and well managed The Company has not opted

to become financial holding company The Federal Reserve Board has the power to order holding company or

its subsidiaries to terminate any activity or to terminate its ownership or control of any subsidiary when it has

reasonable cause to believe that the continuation of such activity or such ownership or control constitutes serious

risk to the financial safety soundness or stability of any bank subsidiary of that holding company

Dividends The Federal Reserve Board has the power to prohibit dividends by bank holding companies if

their actions constitute unsafe or unsound practices The Federal Reserve Board has issued policy statementon the

payment of cash dividends by bank holding companies which
expresses

the Federal Reserve Boards view that

bank holding company should pay cash dividends only to the extent that the companys net income for the past year

is sufficient to cover both the cash dividends and rate of earnings retention that is consistent with the companys

capital needs asset quality and overall financial condition The Federal Reserve Board also indicated that it would

be inappropriate for bank holding company experiencing serious financial problems to borrow funds to pay

dividends Under the prompt corrective action regulations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board the Federal

Reserve Board may prohibit bank holding company from paying any dividends if the holding companys bank

subsidiary is classified as undercapitalized See Regulation and Supervision of the Bank Prompt Corrective

Regulatory Action The Federal Reserve Board has long had policy under which bank holding companies are

required to serve as source of strength for their depository subsidiaries by providing capital liquidity and other

resources in times of financial distress The Dodd-Frank Act codified the source of strength doctrine and required

the issuance of implementing regulations

Stock Repurchases As bank holding company the Company is required to give the Federal Reserve

Board prior written notice of any purchase or redemption of its outstanding equity securities if the gross
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consideration for the purchase or redemption when combined with the net consideration paid for all such purchases

or redemptions during the preceding 12 months is equal to 10% or more of the Companys consolidated net worth

The Federal Reserve Board may disapprove such purchase or redemption if it determines that the proposal would

violate any law regulation Federal Reserve Board order directive or any condition imposed by or written

agreement with the Federal Reserve Board This requirement does not apply to bank holding companies that are

well-capitalized well-managed and are not the subject of any unresolved supervisory issues

Acquisitions The Company is required to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board to

acquire all or substantially all of the assets of any bank or bank holding company or merge with another bank

holding company Prior Federal Reserve Board approval will also be required for the Company to acquire direct or

indirect ownership or control of any voting securities of any bank or bank holding company if after giving effect to

such acquisition the Company would directly or indirectly own or control more than 5% of any class of voting

shares of such bank or bank holding company In evaluating such transactions the Federal Reserve Board considers

the financial and managerial resources of and future prospects of the companies involved competitive factors and

the convenience and needs of the communities to be served Bank holding companies may acquire additional banks

in any state subject to certain restrictions such as deposit concentration limits With certain exceptions the Bank

Holding Company Act the BHCA prohibits bank holding company from acquiring direct or indirect ownership

or control of more than 5% of the voting shares of company that is not bank or bank holding company or from

engaging directly or indirectly in activities other than those of banking managing or controlling banks or providing

services for its subsidiaries The principal exceptions to these prohibitions involve certain non-bank activities

which by statute or by Federal Reserve Board regulation or order have been identified as activities closely related

to the business of banking The activities of the Company are subject to these legal and regulatory limitations under

the BHCA and the related Federal Reserve Board regulations

Under the Change in Bank Control Act of 1978 the CBCA notice must be submitted to the Federal

Reserve Board if any person including company or any group acting in concert seeks to acquire 10% of any

class of the Companys outstanding voting securities unless the Federal Reserve Board determines that such

acquisition will not result in change of control of the bank Under the CBCA the Federal Reserve Board has 60

days within which to act on such notice taking into consideration certain factors including the financial and

managerial resources of the proposed acquiror the convenience and needs of the community served by the bank and

the antitrust effects of an acquisition

Under the BHCA any company would be required to obtain prior approval from the Federal Reserve Board

before it may obtain control of the Company within the meaning of the BHCA Control for BHCA
purposes

generally is defined to mean the ownership or power to vote 25% or more of any class of the Companys voting

securities or the ability to control in any manner the election of majority of the Companys directors

Under Indiana banking law prior approval of the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions is also

required before any person may acquire control of an Indiana bank or bank holding company The Department will

issue notice approving the transaction if it determines that the persons proposing to acquire the Indiana bank or

bank holding company are qualified in character experience and financial responsibility and the transaction does

not jeopardize the interests of the public

Capital Requirements The Federal Reserve Board maintains guidelines regarding the capital adequacy

of bank holding companies which require bank holding companies to maintain on consolidated basis specified

minimum ratios of capital to total assets and capital to risk-weighted assets These requirements which generally

apply to bank holding companies with consolidated assets of $500 million or more are substantially similar to but

somewhat more generous than those applicable to the Bank See Regulation and Supervision of the Bank

Capital Requirements The Dodd-Frank Act required the Federal Reserve Board to adopt consolidated capital

requirements for holding companies that are equally as stringent as those applicable to the depository institution

subsidiaries That means that certain instruments that had previously been includable in Tier capital for bank

holding companies such as trust preferred securities will no longer be eligible for inclusion The revised capital

requirements are subject to certain grandfathering and transition rules
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Regulation and Supervision of the Bank

General The Bank as an Indiana chartered commercial bank is subject to extensive regulation

examination and supervision by the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions and the FDIC The Bank must file

reports with the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions and the FDIC describing its activities and financial

condition The Bank is also subject to certain reserve requirements promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board

This supervision and regulation is intended primarily for the protection of depositors

The Dodd-Frank Act provides for the establishment of the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau as an

independent bureau of the Federal Reserve Board The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau will assume

responsibility for implementing federal consumer financial protection and fair lending laws and regulations

function currently handled by federal bank regulatory agencies However institutions of $10 billion or less in total

assets will continue to be examined for compliance by and subject to the enforcement authority of the federal bank

regulator

Federal Banking Law

Capital Requirements The Bank is required to maintain 4% minimum leverage capital requirement

consisting of ratio of Tier capital to total assets 3% for institutions receiving the highest rating on the CAMELS

rating system Tier capital is the sum of common stockholders equity noncumulative perpetual preferred stock

including any related surplus and minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries minus all intangible assets other

than certain mortgage and certain other servicing assets purchased credit card relationships credit-enhancing

interest-only strips and certain deferred tax assets identified losses investments in certain financial subsidiaries and

non-financial equity investments

In addition to the leverage capital ratio state chartered nonmember banks must maintain minimum ratio

of qualifying total capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 8% of which at least half must be Tier capital

Qualifying total capital consists of Tier capital plus Tier capital also referred to as supplementary capital items

Tier capital items include allowances for loan losses in an amount of up to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets

cumulative preferred stock and preferred stock with maturity of over 20 years certain other capital instruments

and up to 45% of pre-tax net unrealized holding gains on equity securities The includable amount of Tier capital

cannot exceed the institutions Tier capital Qualifying total capital is further reduced by the amount of the banks

investments in banking and finance subsidiaries that are not consolidated for regulatory capital purposes reciprocal

cross-holdings of capital securities issued by other banks most intangible assets and certain other deductions

Under the FDIC risk-weighted system all of banks balance sheet assets and the credit equivalent amounts of

certain off-balance sheet items are assigned to one of four broad risk-weight categories from 0% to 100% based on

the regulators perception of the risks inherent in the type of assets or item The aggregate dollar amount of each

category
is multiplied by the risk weight assigned to that category The sum of these weighted values equals the

banks risk-weighted assets

At December 31 201 the Banks ratio of Tier capital to average total assets was 9.23% its ratio of Tier

capital to risk-weighted assets was 12.32% and its ratio of total risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets was

13.58%

Investment Activities State-chartered FDIC-insured banks are generally limited in their activities as

principal and their equity investments to the type and amount authorized for national banks notwithstanding state

law Federal law and regulations permit exceptions to these limitations The FDIC is authorized to permit

institutions to engage in state authorized activities or investments not permissible for national banks other than non-

subsidiary equity investments if they meet all applicable capital requirements and it is determined that such

activities or investments do not pose significant risk to the Deposit Insurance Fund The FDIC has adopted

regulations governing the procedures for institutions seeking approval to engage in such activities or investments

The Gramm-Leach-BliIey Act of 1999 specifies that non-member bank may control subsidiary that engages
in

activities as principal that would only be permitted for national bank to conduct in financial subsidiary if

bank meets specified conditions and deducts its investment in the subsidiary for regulatory capital purposes
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Interstate Banking and Branching The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of

1994 permitted bank holding companies to acquire banks in any state subject to specified concentration limits and

other conditions The Interstate Banking Act also authorizes the interstate merger of banks In addition among
other things the Interstate Banking Act as amended by the Dodd-Frank Act permits banks to establish de novo

branches on an interstate basis provided that state banks chartered by the target state arc permitted to establish de

novo branches in the state

Dividend Limitations The Bank may not pay dividends on its capital stock if its regulatory capital would

be reduced below the amount then required for the liquidation account established for the benefit of certain

depositors of the Bank at the time of its conversion to stock form In addition the Bank may not pay dividends that

exceed retained net income for the applicable calendar year to date plus retained net income for the preceding two

years
without prior approval from the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions On July 26 2010 following

joint examination by and discussions with the FDIC and the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions the Board

of Directors of the Bank adopted resolution agreeing to among other things receive prior approval of the FDIC

and the indiana Department of Financial Institutions before declaring or paying any dividends

Earnings of the Bank appropriated to bad debt reserves and deducted for federal income tax purposes are

not available for payment of cash dividends or other distributions to stockholders without payment of taxes at the

then current tax rate by the Bank on the amount of earnings removed from the reserves for such distributions

Under FDIC regulations the Bank is prohibited from making any capital distributions if after making the

distribution the Bank would fail to meet any applicable capital requirements For additional information about

dividend limitations see Note 11 in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Insurance of Deposit Accounts Under the FDIC risk-based assessment system insured institutions are

assigned to one of four risk categories based on supervisory evaluations regulatory capital levels and certain other

factors with less risky institutions paying lower assessments An institutions assessment rate depends upon the

category to which it is assigned Effective April 2009 assessment rates ranged from seven to 77.5 basis points

On February 2011 the FDIC issued final rules effective April 2011 implementing changes to the assessment

rules resulting from the Dodd-Frank Act Initially the base assessment rates will range from two and one half to 45

basis points The rate schedules will automatically adjust in the future when the Deposit Insurance Fund reaches

certain milestones No institution may pay dividend if in default of the federal deposit insurance assessment

The FDIC imposed on all insured institutions special emergency assessment of five basis points of total

assets minus Tier capital as of June 30 2009 capped at ten basis points of an institutions deposit assessment

base to cover losses to the Deposit Insurance Fund That special assessment in the amount of $193000 was

collected on September 30 2009 In lieu of further special assessments the FDIC required insured institutions to

prepay
estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 through the fourth quarter of 2012

Such amount was $2.7 million for the Bank The estimated assessments which include an assumed annual

assessment base increase of 5% were recorded as prepaid expense asset as of December 30 2009 As of

December 31 2009 and each quarter thereafter charge to earnings is recorded for each regular assessment with an

offsetting credit to the prepaid asset

Due to the difficult economic conditions deposit insurance per account owner was raised to $250000

That limit was made permanent by the Dodd-Frank Act In addition the FDIC adopted an optional Temporary

Liquidity Guarantee Program by which for fee noninterest-bearing transaction accounts would receive unlimited

insurance coverage
until December 31 2010 with an additional extension to December 31 2012 and certain senior

unsecured debt issued by institutions and their holding companies between October 13 2008 and June 30 2010

would be guaranteed by the FDIC through June 30 2012 or in some cases December 31 2012 The Bank initially

elected to participate in the unlimited noninterest-bearing transaction account coverage program but opted out

effective December 31 2009 The Bank and the Company both participated in the unsecured debt guarantee

program but issued no debt under the program The Dodd-Frank Act adopted mandatory unlimited coverage for

certain noninterest-bearing transaction accounts from January 12011 until December 31 2012

The Dodd-Frank Act increased the minimum target Deposit Insurance Fund ratio from 1.15% of estimated

insured deposits to 1.35% of estimated insured deposits The FDIC must seek to achieve the 1.35% ratio by

September 30 2020 Insured institutions with assets of $10 billion or more are supposed to fund the increase The

Dodd-Frank Act eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund ratio instead leaving it to the discretion of the FDIC
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Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action The federal banking regulators are required to take prompt

corrective action if an insured depository institution fails to satisfy certain minimum capital requirements including

leverage limit risk-based capital requirement and any other measure deemed appropriate by the federal banking

regulators for measuring the capital adequacy of an insured depository institution All institutions regardless of

their capital levels are restricted from making any capital distribution or paying any management fees if the

institution would thereafter fail to satisfy the minimum levels for any of its capital requirements An institution that

fails to meet the minimum level for any relevant capital measure an undercapitalized institution may be

subject to increased monitoring by the appropriate federal banking regulator required to submit an acceptable

capital restoration plan within 45 days subject to asset growth limits and required to obtain prior regulatory

approval for acquisitions branching and new lines of businesses The capital restoration plan must include

guarantee by the institutions holding company that the institution will comply with the plan until it has been

adequately capitalized on average for four consecutive quarters under which the holding company would be liable

up to the lesser of 5% of the institutions total assets or the amount necessary to bring the institution into capital

compliance as of the date it failed to comply with its capital restoration plan significantly undercapitalized

institution as well as any undercapitalized institution that does not submit an acceptable capital restoration plan

may be subject to regulatory demands for recapitalization broader application of restrictions on transactions with

affiliates limitations on interest rates paid on deposits asset growth and other activities possible replacement of

directors and officers and restrictions on capital distributions by any bank holding company controlling the

institution Any company controlling the institution may also be required to divest the institution or the institution

could be required to divest subsidiaries The senior executive officers of significantly undercapitalized institution

may not receive bonuses or increases in compensation without prior approval and the institution is prohibited from

making payments of principal or interest on its subordinated debt At their discretion the federal banking regulators

may also impose the foregoing sanctions on an undercapitalized institution if the regulators determine that such

actions are necessary to carry out the purposes of the prompt corrective provisions If an institutions ratio of

tangible capital to total assets falls below the critically undercapitalized level established by law i.e ratio of

tangible equity to total assets of 2% or less the institution will be subject to conservatorship or receivership within

specified time periods Tangible equity is defined as core capital plus cumulative perpetual preferred stock and
related surplus less all intangible assets other than qualifying supervisory goodwill and certain purchased mortgage

servicing rights

Under the implementing regulations the federal banking regulators generally measure an institutions

capital adequacy on the basis of its total risk-based capital ratio the ratio of its total capital to risk-weighted assets

Tier risk-based capital ratio the ratio of its core capital to risk-weighted assets and leverage ratio the ratio of its

core capital to adjusted total assets The following table shows the capital ratios required for the various prompt

corrective action categories

Adequately Significantly

Well Capitalized Capitalized Undercapitalized Undercapitalized

Total risk-based

capital ratio 10.0% or more 8.0% or more Less than 8.0% Less than 6.0%

Tier risk-based

capital ratio 6.0% or more 4.0% or more Less than 4.0% Less than 3.0%

Tier leverage ratio 5.0% or more 4.0% or more Less than 4.0% Less than 3.0%

3.0% if institution has composite CAMELS rating

The FDIC may reclassify well-capitalized depository institution as adequately capitalized and may

require an adequately capitalized or undercapitalized institution to comply with the supervisory actions applicable to

institutions in the next lower capital category but may not reclassify significantly undercapitalized institution as

critically undercapitalized if the FDIC determines after notice and an opportunity for hearing that the savings

institution is in an unsafe or unsound condition or that the institution has received and not corrected less-than

satisfactory rating for any CAMELS rating category

22



Enforcement The FDIC has extensive enforcement authority over nonmember insured state banks

including the Bank This enforcement authority includes among other things the ability to assess civil money

penalties issue cease and desist orders and remove directors and officers In general these enforcement actions may

be initiated in response to violations of laws and regulations and unsafe or unsound practices The FDIC has

authority under federal law to appoint conservator or receiver for an insured bank under certain circumstances

including on the basis of the institutions financial condition or upon the occurrence of other events including

insolvency substantial dissipation of assets or earnings through violations of law or unsafe or unsound practices

existence of an unsafe or unsound condition to transact business and insufficient capital or the incurring of

losses that will deplete substantially all of the institutions capital with no reasonable prospect of replenishment

without federal assistance

Reserve Requirements Under Federal Reserve Board regulations the Bank currently must majntain

average daily reserves equal to 3% on aggregate transaction accounts up to and including $71.0 million plus 10%

on the remainder The first $11.5 million of transaction accounts are exempt This percentage is subject to

adjustment by the Federal Reserve Board Because required reserves must be maintained in the form of vault cash

or in noninterest-bearing account at Federal Reserve Bank the effect of the reserve requirement is to reduce the

amount of the institutions interest-earning assets At December 31 2011 the Bank met applicable Federal Reserve

Board reserve requirements

Federal Home Loan Bank System The Bank is member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System

which consists of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks governed and regulated by the Federal Housing Finance

Board FHFB As member the Bank is required to purchase and hold stock in the FHLB of Indianapolis As

of December 31 2011 the Bank held stock in the FHLB of Indianapolis in the amount of $4.5 million and was in

compliance with the above requirement

Loans to Executive Officers Directors and Principal Stockholders Loans to directors executive

officers and principal stockholders of state nonmember bank must be made on substantially the same terms as

those prevailing for comparable transactions with persons
who are not executive officers directors principal

stockholders or employees of the Bank unless the loan is made pursuant to compensation or benefit plan that is

widely available to employees and does not favor insiders Loans to any executive officer director and principal

stockholder together with all other outstanding loans to such person and affiliated interests generally may not exceed

15% of the Banks unimpaired capital and surplus and all loans to such persons may not exceed the institutions

unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus Loans to directors executive officers and principal stockholders and

their respective affiliates in excess of the greater of $25000 or 5% of capital and surplus on any loans where the

total outstanding amounts to $500000 or more must be approved in advance by majority of the Board of

Directors of the Bank with any interested director not participating in the voting State nonmember banks are

prohibited from paying the overdrafts of any of their executive officers or directors unless payment is made pursuant

to written pre-authorized interest-bearing extension of credit plan that specifies method of repayment or transfer

of funds from another account at the bank

Transactions with Affiliates state nonmember bank or its subsidiaries may not engage in covered

transactions with any one affiliate in an amount greater than 10% of such banks capital stock and surplus and for

all such transactions with all affiliates state non-member bank is limited to an amount equal to 20% of capital

stock and surplus All such transactions must also be on terms substantially the same or at least as favorable to the

bank or subsidiary as those provided to nonaffiliate Certain covered transactions must meet prescribed

collateralization requirements The term covered transaction includes the making of loans purchase of assets

issuance of guarantee and similar other types of transactions An affiliate of state non-member bank is any

company or entity that controls or is under common control with the state non-member bank and for purposes of the

aggregate limit on transactions with affiliates any subsidiary that would be deemed financial subsidiary of

national bank In holding company context the parent holding company of state non-member bank such as the

Company and any companies that are controlled by such parent holding company are affiliates of the state non

member bank The BHCA further prohibits depository institution from extending credit to or offering any other

services or fixing or varying the consideration for such extension of credit or service on the condition that the

customer obtain some additional service from the institution or certain of its affiliates or not obtain services of

competitor of the institution subject to certain limited exceptions
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Indiana Banking Law

Branching An Indiana bank is entitled to establish one or more branches de novo or by acquisition in any

location or locations in Indiana and in other states subject to the requirements of federal law for interstate banking

The Bank is required to file an application with the Department of Financial Institutions Approval of the

application is contingent upon the Departments determination that after the establishment of the branch the Bank

will have adequate capital sound management and adequate future earnings An application to branch must also be

approved by the FDIC

Lending Limits Indiana banks are not subject to percentage of asset or capital limits on their commercial

consumer and non-residential mortgage lending and accordingly have more flexibility in structuring their portfolios

than federally chartered savings banks Indiana law provides that bank may not make loan or extend credit to

borrower or group of borrowers in excess of 15% of its unimpaired capital and surplus An additional 10% of

capital and surplus may be lent if secured by specified readily marketable collateral

Enforcement The Department has authority to take enforcement action against an Indiana bank in

appropriate cases including the issuance of cease and desist orders removal of directors or officers issuance of civil

money penalties and appointment of conservator or receiver

Other Activities The Bank is authorized to engage in variety of agency and fiduciary activities

including acting as executors of an estate transfer agent and in other fiduciary capacities On approval from the

Department of Financial Institutions the Bank would be permitted to exercise any right granted to national banks

Federal Taxation The Company and its subsidiaries file consolidated federal income tax return on

calendar year end Banks are subject to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 the Code in the

same general manner as other corporations However institutions such as the Bank which met certain definitional

tests and other conditions prescribed by the Code benefited from certain favorable provisions regarding their

deductions from taxable income for annual additions to their bad debt reserve

The Companys federal income tax returns have not been audited in the past five years

State Taxation The State of Indiana imposes franchise tax which is assessed on qualifying financial

institutions such as the Bank The tax is based upon federal taxable income before net operating loss carryforward

deductions adjusted for certain Indiana modifications and is levied at rate of 8.5% of apportioned adjusted

taxable income

The Companys state income tax returns have not been audited since 2008

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Age at

Name December 31 2011 Principal Position

Jerome Gassen 61 President and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank and the

Company

Timothy Clark 61 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of

the Bank and the Company

John Letter 66 Senior Vice President Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer

of the Bank and the Company

Michael Wenstrup 54 Senior Vice President Chief Credit Officer and Chief Lending

Officer of the Bank

Unless otherwise noted all officers have held the position described below for at least the past five years
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Jerome Gassen was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer and director of the Company and

the Bank on June 2005 Before joining the Company Mr Gassen served as Executive Vice President of Banking

of Old National Bank Evansville Indiana from August 2003 until January 2005 Before serving as Executive Vice

President Mr Gassen was the Northern Region President of Old National Bank from January 2000 to August 2003

Mr Gassen also served on Old National Banks Board of Directors from January 2000 until January 2005 Mr
Gassen served as President and Chief Operating Officer of American National Bank and Trust Company Muncie
Indiana from 1997 until January 2000 when American National was acquired by Old National Bank

Timothy Clark joined the Bank as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer on

September 1997 He was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company on

October 23 2000 He previously held the position of Regional Executive and Area President at National City Bank

of Indiana in Seymour Indiana for five years and before that held senior management positions with Central

National Bank in Greencastle Indiana for five years and Hancock Bank Trust in Greenfield Indiana for 13 years

John Letter was appointed Senior Vice President Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the

Company and the Bank on January 22 2007 Before joining the Company Mr Letter served as Regional President

with Old National Bank in Muncie Indiana from September 2004 to April 2005 Before being named Regional

President Mr Letter also served as District President with Old National Bank from November 2003 to September

2004 and Regional Chief Financial Officer Old National Bank from August 2000 to November 2003 Mr Letter

was also Chief Financial Officer and Controller with American National Bank in Muncie from March 1997 to

August 2000

Michael Wenstrup was named Senior Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of the Bank effective

March 2010 Mr Wenstrup assumed the additional responsibilities of Chief Lending Officer of the Bank

effective August 2011 Before joining Ameriana Mr Wenstrup was Executive Vice President Chief Credit

Officer and Director of Parkway Bank Arizona Phoenix Arizona from November 2005 to December 2008 Mr
Wenstrup was Executive Vice President of Parkway Bank and Trust Harwood Heights illinois from June 1999 to

November 2005 and served as Vice President Portfolio Manager Commercial Real Estate with LaSalle National

Bank Chicago Illinois from January 1994 to June 1999

Item IA Risk Factors

An investment in shares of our common stock involves various risks Before deciding to invest in our

common stock you should carefully consider the risks described below in conjunction with the other information in

this Form 10-K including the items included as exhibits Our business financial condition and results of operations

could be harmed by any of the following risks or by other risks that have not been identified or that we may believe

are immaterial or unlikely The value or market price of our common stock could decline due to any of these risks

The risks discussed below also include forward-looking statements and our actual results may dffer substantially

from those discussed in these forward-looking statements

Our increased emphasis on commercial lending may expose us to increased lending risk At

December 31 2011 our loan portfolio consisted of $100.1 million or 31.6% of commercial real estate loans $18.0

million or 5.7% of construction loans primarily commercial properties and $31.0 million or 9.8% of commercial

and industrial loans and leases We intend to continue to maintain our emphasis on the origination of commercial

loans However these types of loans generally expose lender to greater risk of non-payment and loss than one- to

four-family residential mortgage loans because repayment of the loans often depends on the successful operation of

the property the income stream of the borrowers and for construction loans the accuracy of the estimate of the

propertys value at completion of construction and the estimated cost of construction Commercial and construction

loans typically involve larger loan balances compared to one- to four-family residential mortgage loans

Commercial and industrial loans expose us to additional risks since they typically are made on the basis of the

borrowers ability to make repayments from the cash flows of the borrowers business and are secured by non-real

estate collateral that may depreciate over time In addition since such loans generally entail greater risk than one to

four-family residential mortgage loans we may need to increase our allowance fir loan losses to account for the

likely increase in probable incurred credit losses associated with the growth of such loans Also many of our

commercial and construction borrowers have more than one loan outstanding with us Consequently an adverse

development with respect to one loan or one credit relationship can expose us to significantly greater risk of loss

compared to an adverse development with respect to one- to four-family residential mortgage loan
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Our nonperforming assets remain elevated and we may be required to increase our provision for

loan losses and to charge-off additional loans in the future each of which could adversely affect our results of

operations Further our allowance for loan losses may prove to be insufficient to absorb losses in our loan

portfolio For 2011 we recorded provision for loan losses of $1.4 million We also recorded net loan charge-offs

of $1.5 million The continued weakness of the economy has contributed to relatively high levels of loan

delinquencies and other nonperforming assets as of December 31 2011 Our non-performing loans totaled $8.8

million representing 2.79% of total loans at December 31 2011 In addition loans that we have classified as

special mention substandard doubtful or loss totaled $21.5 million representing 6.8% of total loans at December

31 2011 If these loans do not perform according to their terms and the collateral is insufficient to pay any

remaining loan balance we may be required to add further reserves to our allowance for loan losses or we may

experience loan losses which could have material effect on our operating results Like all financial institutions

we maintain an allowance for loan losses to provide for loans in our portfolio that may not be repaid in their entirety

We believe that our allowance for loan losses is maintained at level adequate to absorb probable losses inherent in

our loan portfolio as of the corresponding balance sheet date However our allowance for loan losses may not be

sufficient to cover actual loan losses and future provisions for loan losses could materially adversely affect our

operating results

In evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses we consider numerous quantitative factors

including our historical charge-off experience growth of our loan portfolio changes in the composition of our loan

portfolio and the volume of delinquent and classified loans In addition we use information about specific borrower

situations including their financial position and estimated collateral values to estimate the risk and amount of loss

for those borrowers Finally we also consider many qualitative factors including general and economic business

conditions current general market collateral valuations trends apparent in any of the factors we take into account

and other matters which are by nature more subjective and fluid Our estimates of the risk of loss and amount of

loss on any loan are complicated by the significant uncertainties surrounding our borrowers abilities to successfully

execute their business models through changing economic environments competitive challenges and other factors

Because of the degree of uncertainty and susceptibility of these factors to change our actual losses may vary from

our current estimates

At December 31 2011 our allowance for loan losses as percentage of total loans was 1.30% Our

regulators as an integral part of their examination process periodically review our allowance for loan losses and

may require us to increase our allowance for loan losses by recognizing additional provisions for loan losses charged

to expense or to decrease our allowance for loan losses by recognizing loan charge-offs Any such additional

provisions for loan losses or charge-offs as required by these regulatory agencies could have material adverse

effect on our financial condition and results of operations

return to recessionary conditions could result in increases in our level of nonperforming loans

and/or reduce demand for our products and services which would lead to lower revenue higher loan losses

and lower earnings Following national home price peak in mid-2006 falling home prices and sharply reduced

sales volumes along with the collapse of the United States subprime mortgage industry in early 2007 significantly

contributed to recession that officially lasted until June 2009 although the effects continued thereafter Dramatic

declines in real estate values and high levels of foreclosures resulted in significant asset write-downs by financial

institutions which have caused many financial institutions to seek additional capital to merge with other institutions

and in some cases to fail Concerns over the United States credit rating which was recently downgraded by

Standard Poors the European sovereign debt crisis and continued high unemployment in the United States

among other economic indicators have contributed to increased volatility in the capital markets and diminished

expectations for the economy

return of recessionary conditions and/or continued negative developments in the domestic and international

credit markets may significantly affect the markets in which we do business the value of our loans and investments

and our ongoing operations costs and profitability Further declines in real estate values and sales volumes and

continued high unemployment levels may result in higher than expected loan delinquencies increases in our levels

of nonperforming and classified assets and decline in demand for our products and services These negative events

may cause us to incur losses and may adversely affect our capital liquidity and financial condition
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Our cost of operations is high relative to our assets Our failure to maintain or reduce our operating

expenses costs could hurt our profits Our operating expenses which consist primarily of salaries and employee

benefits occupancy furniture and equipment expense professional fees data processing expense FDIC insurance

premiums and assessments and marketing totaled $17.0 million for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to

$16.8 million for the year ended December 31 2010 We continue our concerted effort to effectively manage our

expenses Our efficiency ratio totaled 86.6% for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to 87.8% for the year

ended December 31 2010 Failure to control our expenses could hurt future profits

Changes in interest rates could reduce our net interest income and earnings Our net interest income

is the interest we earn on loans and investment less the interest we pay on our deposits and borrowings Our interest

rate spread is the difference between the yield we earn on our assets and the interest rate we pay for deposits and our

other sources of funding Changes in interest rates could adversely affect our interest rate spread and as result our

net interest income and net interest margin Although the yield we earn on our assets and our funding costs tend to

move in the same direction in
response to changes in interest rates one can rise or fall faster than the other causing

our net interest margin to expand or contract Our liabilities tend to be shorter in duration than our assets so they

may adjust faster in
response to changes in interest rates As result when interest rates rise our funding costs may

rise faster than the yield we earn on our assets causing our net interest margin to contract until the yield catches up
Changes in the slope of the yield curveor the spread between short-term and long-term interest ratescould

also reduce our net interest margin Normally the yield curve is upward sloping meaning short-term rates are lower

than long-term rates Because our liabilities tend to be shorter in duration than our assets when the yield curve

flattens or even inverts we could experience pressure on our net interest margin as our cost of funds increases

relative to the yield we can earn on our assets Changes in interest rates can also affect our ability to originate

loans the value of our interest-earning assets our ability to obtain and retain deposits in competition with

other investment alternatives and the ability of our borrowers to repay adjustable-rate loans

The building of market share through our branching strategy could cause our expenses to increase

faster than revenues We opened full-service banking center in Fishers Indiana in October 2008 second

banking center in Carmel in December 2008 and third in Westfield in May 2009 We also purchased property in

Plainfield in 2008 with the expectation to begin construction on new full-service banking center but those plans

were put on hold until it is determined that the economy and other conditions warrant the required investment

There are considerable costs involved in opening branches and new branches generally require period of time to

generate sufficient revenues to offset their costs especially in areas in which we do not have an established

presence Accordingly any new branch can be expected to negatively impact our earnings for some period of time

until the branch reaches certain economies of scale

Recently enacted regulatory reform may have material impact on our operations On July 21 2010
the President signed into law The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act the Dodd-Frank

Act The Dodd-Frank Act contains various provisions designed to enhance the regulation of depository institutions

and prevent the recurrence of financial crisis such as occurred in 2008-2009 These include provisions

strengthening holding company capital requirements requiring retention of portion of the risk of securitized loans

and regulating debit card interchange fees The Dodd-Frank Act also created new federal agency to administer

consumer protection and fair lending laws function that is now performed by the depository institution regulators

The full impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our business and operations will not be known for
years

until regulations

implementing the statute are written and adopted The Dodd-Frank Act may have material impact on our

operations particularly through increased regulatory burden and compliance costs

In addition to the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act the federal regulatory agencies recently have begun to

take stronger supervisory actions against financial institutions that have experienced increased loan losses and other

weaknesses as result of the recent economic crisis The actions include the entering into written agreements and

cease and desist orders that place certain limitations on their operations Federal bank regulators recently have also

been using with more frequency their ability to impose individual minimal capital requirements on banks which

requirements may be higher than those imposed under the Dodd-Frank Act or which would otherwise qualify the

bank as being well capitalized under the FDICs prompt corrective action regulations If we were to become
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subject to supervisory agreement or higher individual capital requirements such action may have negative

impact on our ability to execute our business plan as well as our ability to grow pay dividends or engage in mergers

and acquisitions and may result in restrictions in our operations

Increased and/or special FDIC assessments will hurt our earnings The recent economic recession has

caused high level of bank failures which has dramatically increased FDIC resolution costs and led to significant

reduction in the balance of the Deposit Insurance Fund As result the FDIC has significantly increased the initial

base assessment rates paid by financial institutions for deposit insurance Increases in the base assessment rate have

increased our deposit insurance costs and negatively impacted our earnings In addition in May 2009 the FDIC

imposed special assessment on all insured institutions Our special assessment which was reflected in earnings for

the quarter ended June 30 2009 was $225000 In lieu of imposing an additional special assessment the FDIC

required all institutions to prepay their assessments for all of 2010 2011 and 2012 which for us totaled $2.7 million

Additional increases in the base assessment rate or additional special assessments would negatively impact our

earnings

We may not be able to realize the full value of our deferred tax asset We recognize deferred tax assets

and liabilities based on differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and

liabilities coupled with unused tax credits and tax benefits from operating loss carryforwards At December 31

2011 our net deferred tax asset was $5.2 million The net deferred tax asset was composed of approximately $3.2

million of tax benefit from both state and federal net operating loss carryforwards approximately $1.7 million of tax

benefit from temporary differences between book and tax income and an unused federal tax credit of $1.4 million

reduced by valuation allowance of $1.1 million

We regularly review our deferred tax asset for recoverability based on our history of earnings expectations

for future earnings and expected timing of reversals of temporary differences as well as tax strategies available to

expedite the use of both the deferred state tax asset and the deferred federal tax asset Realization of our deferred

tax asset ultimately depends on the existence of sufficient future taxable income We currently expect that it is more

likely than not that our net deferred tax asset at December 31 2011 will be fully realizable based on our expected

future earnings Realization of our deferred tax asset would significantly improve our earnings and capital through

related reversal of the current valuation allowance

Any reduction in the corporate tax rate for federal or state income taxes would immediately result in partial

impairment of the book value of the deferred tax asset and require write-down that would be charged against

earnings in the year of the enactment of the related tax law

Strong competition within our market area could hurt our profits and slow growth We face intense

competition both in making loans and attracting deposits This competition has made it more difficult for us to

make new loans and has occasionally forced us to offer higher deposit rates Price competition for loans and

deposits might result in us earning less on our loans and paying more on our deposits which reduces net interest

income Competition also makes it more difficult to grow loans and deposits According to the FDIC as of June

30 2011 we held 33.2% of the deposits in Henry County Indiana which was the largest market share of deposits

out of the six financial institutions that held deposits in this county We also held 10.3% of the deposits in Hancock

County Indiana which was the fourth largest market share of deposits out of the ten financial institutions that held

deposits in this county We also maintain offices in four other counties in which we held between 0.4% and 3.2% of

the deposits in those counties as of June 30 2011 Some of the institutions with which we compete have

substantially greater resources and lending limits than we have and may offer services that we do not provide We

expect competition to increase in the future as result of legislative regulatory and technological changes and the

continuing trend of consolidation in the financial services industry Technological advances for example have

lowered barriers to entry allowed banks to expand their geographic reach by providing services over the Internet

and made it possible for non-depository institutions to offer products and services that traditionally have been

provided by banks Changes in federal law permit affiliation among banks securities firms and insurance

companies which promotes competitive environment in the financial services industry Competition for deposits

and the origination of loans could limit the Companys growth in the future Our profitability depends upon our

continued ability to compete successfully in our market area
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We operate in highly regulated environment and we may be adversely affected by changes in laws

and regulations The Bank is subject to extensive regulation supervision and examination by the Indiana

Department of Financial Institutions its chartering authority and by the FDIC as insurer of its deposits The

Company is subject to regulation and supervision by the Federal Reserve Board Such regulation and supervision

govern the activities in which an institution and its holding company may engage and are intended primarily for the

protection of the insurance fund and for the depositors and borrowers of the Bank The regulation and supervision

by the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions and the FDIC are not intended to protect the interests of

investors in the Companys common stock Regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in their supervisory

and enforcement activities including the imposition of restrictions on our operations the classification of our assets

and determination of the level of our allowance for loan losses Any change in such regulation and oversight

whether in the form of regulatory policy regulations legislation or supervisory action may have material impact

on our operations

The trading history of our common stock is characterized by low trading volume Our common
stock may be subject to sudden decreases Although our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Market it

has not been regularly traded We cannot predict whether more active trading market in our common stock will

occur or how liquid that market might become public trading market having the desired characteristics of depth

liquidity and orderliness depends upon the presence in the marketplace of willing buyers and sellers of our common

stock at any given time which presence is dependent upon the individual decisions of investors over which we have

no control

The market price of our common stock may be highly volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response

to numerous factors including but not limited to the factors discussed in other risk factors and the following

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results

changes in interest rates

changes in the legal or regulatory environment in which we operate

press releases announcements or publicity relating to us or our competitors or relating to trends in our

industry

changes in expectations as to our future financial performance including financial estimates or

recommendations by securities analysts and investors

future sales of our common stock

changes in economic conditions in our marketplace general conditions in the U.S economy financial

markets or the banking industry and

other developments affecting our competitors or us

These factors may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock regardless of our actual

operating performance and could prevent you from selling your common stock at or above the price you desire In

addition the stock markets from time to time experience extreme price and volume fluctuations that may be

unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of companies These broad fluctuations may adversely

affect the market price of our common stock regardless of our trading performance

Failure to comply with the restrictions and conditions in the resolutions adopted by our board at the

request of our regulators could result in additional enforcement action against us On September 28 2009 the

Board of Directors of the Bank adopted resolution agreeing to higher capital requirements requirements to reduce

the level of our classified and criticized assets and restrictions on dividend payments On July 26 2010 following

joint examination by and discussions with the FDIC and the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions the Board

of Directors of the Bank adopted resolution with the same requirements except for an additional 0.50% increase in

the Tier Leverage Ratio to 8.50% These restrictions may impede our ability to operate our business
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Additionally on December 17 2009 the Board of Directors of the Company at the request of the Federal

Reserve Bank of Chicago adopted resolution requiring the Board to obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve

Bank at least thirty days before taking any of the following actions

The payment of corporate dividends

The payment of interest on trust preferred securities

Any increase in debt or issuance of trust preferred obligations the request for approval should include

written debt service plan indicating how payments will be made without causing further strain on

Ameriana Banks capital position and

The redemption of Ameriana Bancorp stock

The resolution will remain in effect until the Federal Reserve Bank authorizes the Board to rescind the

resolution If we fail to comply with the terms and conditions of the board resolutions our regulators could take

enforcement action against us including the imposition of further operating restrictions These enforcement actions

could take the form of memorandum of understanding or cease and desist order Any informal or formal

enforcement action could harm our reputation and our ability to retain or attract customers or employees and impact

the trading price of our common stock

We may require additional capital in the future but that capital may not be available when it is

needed We anticipate that we have adequate capital for the foreseeable future However we may at some point

need to raise additional capital to support our continued growth or if we incur significant loan or securities

impairment Our ability to raise additional capital if needed will depend on conditions in the capital markets at that

time which are outside our control and on our financial performance Accordingly we cannot assure you of our

ability to raise additional capital if needed on terms acceptable to us If we cannot raise additional capital when

needed our ability to further expand our operations through internal growth could be materially impaired

Provisions of our articles of incorporation bylaws and Indiana law as well as state and federal

banking regulations could delay or prevent takeover of us by third party Provisions in our articles of

incorporation and bylaws and the corporate
law of the State of Indiana could delay defer or prevent third party

from acquiring us despite the possible benefit to our shareholders or otherwise adversely affect the price of our

common stock These provisions include supermajority voting requirements for certain business combinations the

election of directors to staggered terms of three years and advance notice requirements for nominations for election

to our board of directors and for proposing matters that shareholders may act on at shareholder meetings In

addition we are subject to Indiana laws including one that prohibits us from engaging in business combination

with any interested shareholder for period of five years from the date the
person

became an interested shareholder

unless certain conditions are met These provisions may discourage potential takeover attempts discourage bids for

our common stock at premium over market price or adversely affect the market price of and the voting and other

rights of the holders of our common stock These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more

difficult for you and other shareholders to elect directors other than the candidates nominated by our Board of

Directors

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

30



Item Properties

The following table sets forth the location of the Companys office facilities at December 31 2011 and

certain other information relating to these properties at that date

Year Total Net Owned Square

Acguired Investment Book Value Leased Feet

Dollars in thousands

Main Office

2118 Bundy Avenue

New Castle Indiana 1958 1789 280 Owned 20500

Branch Offices

1311 Broad Street

New Castle Indiana 1890 1158 162 Owned 18000

956 North Beechwood Street

Middletown Indiana 1971 334 Owned 5500

22 North Jefferson Street

Knightstown Indiana 1979 430 139 Owned 3400

1810 North State Street

Greenfield Indiana 1995 2597 2008 Owned 7600

99 South Dan Jones Road

Avon Indiana 1995 1743 1221 Owned 12600

1724 East 53rd Street

Anderson Indiana 1993 734 525 Owned 3000

488 West Main Street

Morristown Indiana 1998 364 243 Owned 2600

7435 West U.S 52

New Palestine Indiana 1999 944 639 Owned 3300

6653 West Broadway

McCordsville Indiana 2004 1140 986 Owned 3400

11521 Olio Road

Fishers Indiana 2008 2148 1992 Owned 2500

3975 West 106th Street

Carmel Indiana 2008 2097 1961 Owned 3500

3333 East State Road 32

Westfield Indiana 2008 619 563 Leased 5000

Land Acquired for Future

Branch Office

2437 East Main Street

Plainfield Indiana 2008 1402 1402 Owned

Loan Production Office

11711 Pennsylvania Suite 100

Carmel Indiana 2007 34 18 Leased 2100

Ameriana Insurance Agency Inc
1908 Bundy Avenue

New Castle Indiana 1999 386 285 Owned 5000

Total 17919 12430

The initial lease expires on May 31 2029 and the Bank has options for four additional terms of five years each

The initial lease expires on June 30 2012 and the Bank has options for two additional terms of three years each
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The total net book value of $12.4 million shown above for the Companys office facilities is $2.2 million

less than the total of $14.6 million shown for premises and equipment on the consolidated balance sheet This

difference represents
the net book value as of December 31 2011 for furniture equipment and automobiles

Item Le2al Proceedin2s

Neither the Company nor the Bank is involved in any pending legal proceedings other than those occurring

in the ordinary course of business Such routine legal proceedings in the aggregate are believed by management to

be immaterial to the financial condition and results of operation of the Company

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

PART II

Item Market for the Registrants Common Eiuity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchasers

of EQuity Securities

Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Companys common stock par value $1.00 per share is traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under

the symbol ASBI On March 2012 there were 402 holders of record of the Companys common stock The

Companys ability to pay dividends depends on number of factors including our capital requirements our financial

condition and results of operations tax considerations statutory and regulatory limitations and general economic

conditions No assurance can be given that we will continue to pay dividends or that they will not be reduced in the

future See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included under Item of this Form 10-K for

discussion of the restrictions on the payment of cash dividends by the Company

The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices for the common stock as reported on the

NASDAQ Global Market and the cash dividends declared on the common stock for each full quarterly period during

the last two fiscal years

2011 2010

Dividends Dividends

Quarter Ended Declared Declared

March31 $5.75 $3.92 $0.01 $3.30 $2.50 $0.01

June30 5.01 3.67 0.01 6.70 2.50 0.01

September30 5.25 3.66 0.01 4.47 3.46 0.01

December31 4.19 3.33 0.01 4.50 3.33 0.01
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Purchases of Equity Securities

We did not repurchase any of our common stock during the quarter ended December 31 2011 and at

December 31 2011 we had no publicly announced repurchase plans or programs
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Item Selected Financial Data

Dollars in thousands except per share data

At December 31

Other Selected Data

Return on average assets

Return on average equity

Ratio of
average equity to average assets..

Dividend payout ratio

Summary of Financial Condition 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Cash 6204 3673 6283 3810 4445
Investment securities 43847 38608 35841 75371 66692

Loans net of allowances for loan losses 312509 312715 321544 322535 294273

Interest-bearing deposits and stock in

Federal Home Loan Bank 7977 13175 18934 10268 18357

Other assets 59254 61486 58961 51518 43024

Total assets 429791 429657 441563 463502 426791

Deposits noninterest-bearing 40197 34769 29531 22070 20429

Deposits interest-bearing 297053 303209 308850 302336 294317

Borrowings 49810 51810 64185 97735 68513

Other liabilities 8226 6618 6422 7585 9886

Total liabilities 395286 396406 408988 429726 393145

Stockholders equity 34505 33251 32575 33776 33646

Total liabilities and stockholders equity... 429791 429657 441563 463502 426791

Year Ended December 31

Summary of Earnings 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Interest income 18794 19985 22341 23581 23900

Interest expense 4870 6574 9652 11788 14078

Net interest income 13924 13411 12689 11793 9822

Provision credit for loan losses 1385 1933 2180 1250 1627
Other income 5628 5650 5536 3801 3494

Otherexpense 17004 16817 17119 14384 13978

Income loss before taxes 1163 31 1074 40 965

Income tax benefit 21 242 810 781 219
Net income loss 1142 553 264 741 1184

Basic earnings loss per share 0.38 0.19 0.09 0.25 0.39

Diluted earnings loss per share 0.38 0.19 0.09 0.25 0.39

Dividends declared per share 0.04 0.04 0.10 0.16 0.16

Book valuepershare 11.54 11.12 10.90 11.30 11.26

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

0.26% 0.13% 0.06% 0.16% 0.28%

3.38 1.66 0.79 2.23 3.63

7.76 7.68 7.05 7.40 7.67

10.47 21.70 NM 64.56 41.03

Dividends per share declared divided by net income per share

NM not meaningful
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First Second Third Fourth

Quarterly Data Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2011

Total interest income 4766 4823 4673 4532

Total interest
expense 1337 1255 1187 1091

Net interest income 3429 3568 3486 3441

Provision for loan losses 360 255 255 515

Net income 121 270 298 453

Securities gains net 52 448 206 213

Basic earnings per share 0.04 0.09 0.10 0.15

Diluted earnings per share 0.04 0.09 0.10 0.15

Dividends declared per share 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01

Stock price range

High 5.75 5.01 5.25 4.19

Low 3.92 3.67 3.66 3.33

2010

Total interest income 5083 5117 4904 4881

Total interest expense 1800 1745 1590 1439

Net interest income 3283 3372 3314 3442

Provision for loan losses 360 658 360 555

Net income 80 229 142 102

Securities gains net 104 104 94

Basic earnings per share 0.03 0.08 0.05 0.03

Diluted earnings per share 0.03 0.08 0.05 0.03

Dividends declared per share 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01

Stock price range

High 3.30 6.70 4.47 4.50

Low 2.50 2.50 3.46 3.33
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Item Mana2ements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Who WeAre

Ameriana Bancorp the Company is an Indiana chartered bank holding company organized in 1987 by

Ameriana Bank the Bank The Company is subject to regulation and supervision by the Federal Reserve Bank

The Bank began banking operations in 1890 In June 2002 the Bank converted to an Indiana savings bank and

adopted the name Ameriana Bank and Trust SB In July 2006 the Bank closed its Trust Department and adopted

the name Americana Bank SB On June 2009 the Bank converted to an Indiana commercial bank and adopted

its
present name Americana Bank The Bank is subject to regulation and supervision by the FDIC the FDIC

and the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions the DFI Our deposits are insured to applicable limits by

the Deposit Insurance Fund administered by the FDIC References in this Form 10-K to we us and our refer

to Ameriana Bancorp andlor the Bank as appropriate

We are headquartered in New Castle Indiana We conduct business through our main office at 2118

Bundy Avenue New Castle Indiana through 12 branch offices located in New Castle Middletown Knightstown

Morristown Greenfield Anderson Avon McCordsville Fishers Carmel Westfield and New Palestine Indiana

and through our loan production office in Carmel Indiana In December 2011 lending personnel were relocated

from the Carmel loan production office to the Banks Indianapolis metropolitan area banking centers The Bank

does not plan to renew the Carmel loan production office lease when it expires in June

The Bank has two wholly-owned subsidiaries Ameriana Insurance Agency AlA and Ameriana

Financial Services Inc AFS AlA provides insurance sales from offices in New Castle Greenfield and Avon

Indiana On July 2009 AlA purchased the book of business of Chapin-Hayworth Insurance Agency Inc located

in New Castle Indiana AFS had offered insurance products through its ownership of an interest in Family

Financial Life Insurance Company Family Financial New Orleans Louisiana which offers full line of credit-

related insurance products On May 22 2009 the Company announced that AFS had liquidated its 16.67% interest

in Family Financial and recorded pre-tax gain of $192000 from the transaction AFS also operates brokerage

facility in conjunction with LPL Financial that provides non-bank investment product alternatives to its customers

and the general public third Bank subsidiary Ameriana Investment Management Inc AIMI had managed

part of the Companys investment portfolio Following cost/benefit analysis AIMI was liquidated effective

December 31 2009 and the portfolio under management was transferred to the Bank The Company holds minority

interest in limited partnership House Investments organized to acquire and manage real estate investments which

qualify for federal tax credits

What WeDo

The Bank is community-oriented financial institution Our principal business consists of attracting

deposits from the general public and investing those funds primarily in mortgage loans on single-family residences

multi-family loans construction loans commercial real estate loans and to lesser extent commercial and

industrial loans small business loans home improvement loans and consumer loans We have from time to time

purchased loans and loan participations in the secondary market We also invest in various federal and government

agency obligations and other investment securities permitted by applicable laws and regulations including

mortgage-backed municipal and equity securities We offer customers in our market area time deposits with terms

from three months to seven years interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing checking accounts savings accounts and

money market accounts Our primary source of borrowings is FHLB advances Through our subsidiaries we

engage in insurance and investment and brokerage activities

Our primary source of income is net interest income which is the difference between the interest income

earned on our loan and investment portfolios and the interest expense
incurred on our deposits and borrowing

portfolios Our loan portfolio typically earns more interest than the investment portfolio and our deposits typically

have lower average rate than FHLB advances Several factors affect our net interest income These factors

include the loan investment deposit and borrowing portfolio balances their composition the length of their

maturity re-pricing characteristics liquidity credit and interest rate risk as well as market and competitive

conditions

36



Financial Challenges and Expansion in Recent Years

To diversify the balance sheet and provide new avenues for loan and deposit growth the Bank further

expanded into Indianapolis adding three full-service offices in 2008 and 2009 in the suburban markets of Carmel

Fishers and Westfield As result half of the banking centers are located in Indianapolis These banking centers

are focused on generating commercial lending and relationship business where significant opportunities exist to win

market share from smaller institutions lacking capital strength and resources and large institutions that have

concentrated on large business customers

Although the expansion strategy initially negatively affected earnings the Banks expansion into new
markets is critical for its long-term sustainable growth Additional expansion in Indianapolis including construction

of new full-service banking center in Plainfield on property purchased by the Bank in early 2008 was put on hold

primarily due to the economic environment

The economic climate became progressively difficult through most of 2008 as the world-wide financial

crisis reached peak in the second half of the year and the subsequent economic
recovery moved slowly through

2011 The severity of this environment and its consequences to the industry created many new formidable

challenges for bankers

Executive Overview of 2011

The Company recorded net income of $1.1 million or $0.38 per share for 2011 compared to net income of

$553000 or $0.19 per share for 2010 The results for 2011 reflected an improvement in net interest income but

the Bank continued to be negatively impacted by high credit costs related to weak economic conditions which were

partly offset by gains realized on sales of investment securities Following is additional summary information for

the year

Consistent with its capital contingency plan the Company paid only de minimis quarterly

dividend of $0.01 per share or $0.04 per share for the year

The Companys tangible common equity ratio at December 31 2011 was 7.73%

At December 31 2011 the Banks tier leverage ratio was 9.23% the tier risk-based capital

ratio was 12.32% and the total risk-based capital ratio was 13.58% All three ratios were

considerably above the levels required under regulatory guidelines to be considered well

capitalized and exceeded the higher standards established by the Board resolution addressed

below

$485000 or 3.6% increase for 2011 in net interest income on fully tax-equivalent basis was

achieved with growth of only 0.6% in average earnings assets as the net interest margin of 3.74%

represented an 11 basis points improvement over 2010 The net interest margin improvement

resulted mostly from significant reduction in the Banks
average cost of deposits

The Bank recorded $1.4 million provision for loan losses in 2011 compared to $1.9 million

provision in 2010 due to continuing but reduced elevated level of charge-offs and non-

performing loans that resulted from weak economic conditions

Total nonperforming loans of $8.8 million or 2.79% of total loans at December 31 2011

represented $2.4 million decrease from $11.2 million or 3.54% of total loans at

December 31 2010

The allowance for loan losses was $4.1 million or 1.30% of total loans at December 31

2011 compared with $4.2 million or 1.33% of total loans at December 31 2010

Other income of $5.6 million for 2011 was $22000 lower than the total for the prior year
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The total for 2011 was reduced by $1.0 million net loss from sales and write-downs of

other real estate owned that was $668000 greater than the net loss for 2010 but 2011

benefited from $919000 in gains on sales of investment securities $616000 increase

over 2010

Gains on sales of loans and servicing rights of $225000 for 2011 were $698000 less

than the total for 2010 that included $560000 gain from bulk sale of$lO.9 million of

seasoned performing residential mortgage loans

The 2011 totals for fees and service charges on deposit accounts and brokerage and

insurance commissions reflected improvements over 2010 of 6.8% and 11.5%

respectively

Other expense for 2011 of $17.0 million was $187000 or 1.1% higher than 2010

The 2011 total included $135000 increase in salaries and employee benefits that

resulted primarily from higher incentive awards related to achievement of production

goals and $124000 increase in funding costs for the frozen multi-employer defined

benefit retirement plan partly offset by an $84000 decrease in employee health

insurance expense

The Company had income before income taxes of $1.2 million for 2011 but recorded an income

tax expense
of only $21000 which was due primarily to significant amount of tax-exempt bank-

owned life insurance

The Companys total assets of $429.8 million at December 31 2011 changed slightly during 2011 from

$429.7 million at December 31 2010

Net loans receivable were $312.5 million at December 31 2011 decrease of $206000 from

$312.7 million at the end of 2010 The lack of growth was due primarily to limited loan demand

resulting from continuing weak economic conditions in the markets the Bank serves

The composition of the portfolio changed in 2011 with $5.5 million increase in

commercial real estate loans and $8.6 million increase in commercial loans while the

totals for residential real estate loans construction loans municipal loans and consumer

loans all declined during the year

Reflective of low interest rate environment coupled with competitive pricing pressures

the 5.59% average yield on the loan portfolio for 2011 represented 25 basis points

decrease from 5.84% for 2010

The $5.2 million growth in the investment securities portfolio during 2011 to $43.8 million

resulted primarily from $4.9 million increase in mortgage-backed securities to $39.7 million or

90.6% of the portfolio

Other real estate owned of $7.5 million at December 31 2011 represented decrease of $1.5

million from December 31 2010 with the addition of fourteen properties totaling $3.3 million the

sale of twelve properties with total book value of $3.6 million and $1.2 million in write-downs

during the year

Total deposits of $337.3 million at December 31 2011 represented decrease of $728000 for the

year due to the elimination of all brokered certificates of deposit which totaled $10.4 million at

the prior year end The Bank also experienced significant change in the mix of deposits from the

prior year end Non-maturity deposits increased $21.8 million or 13.2% to $187.0 million while

certificates of deposit declined $22.5 million or 13.0% to $150.3 million
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The Bank achieved 26 basis points reduction in the weighted average cost of total

deposits to 0.79% at December 31 2011 from 1.05% at the end of 2010

Total borrowings were reduced by $2.0 million in 2011 to $49.8 million or 14.8% of total

deposits

Regulatory Action

On December 17 2009 following an off-site review by the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago the Board of

Directors of the Company adopted resolution agreeing to among other things seek and obtain the approval of the

Federal Reserve Bank at least thirty days before taking any of the following actions

The payment of corporate dividends

The payment of interest on trust preferred securities beginning after the interest payment due December 15

2009

Any increase in debt or issuance of trust preferred obligations and

The redemption of Company stock

On July 26 2010 following joint examination by and discussions with the FDIC and the Indiana

Department of Financial Institutions the Board of Directors of the Bank adopted resolution agreeing to among
other things

Adopt capital plan to increase its Tier Leverage Ratio to 8.50% by June 30 2010 and to maintain

Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio of 12.00%

Adopt written plan to lower classified assets

Formulate and implement written profit plan

Receive prior written consent from the FDIC and the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions before

declaring or paying any dividends

Strive to reduce total holdings of bank-owned life insurance and

Furnish quarterly progress reports regarding the Banks compliance with all provisions of the resolution

The Bank is currently in compliance with the provisions of the resolution

Strategic Summary

The current economic downturn has created challenging operating environment for all businesses and in

particular the financial services industry Earnings pressure is expected to continue as the weak economy continues

to cause stress on credit quality Deposit acquisition continues to be competitive however the Banks disciplined

pricing has resulted in significant reduction in its cost of deposits The Banks pricing strategies combined with

the low interest rate environment has positively impacted interest rate spread and net interest income Reducing

noninterest
expense

has been priority of Management and the Bank has reduced noninterest expense through

aggressive cost control measures including freezing hiring job restructuring and eliminating certain discretionary

expenditures

With the Banks mantra of Soundness Profitability Growth in that order no exceptions the priorities

culture and risk strategy of the Bank are focused on asset quality and credit risk management Despite the current

economic
pressures as well as the industrys challenges related to compliance and regulatory requirements

tightened credit standards and capital preservation Management remains cautiously optimistic that business

conditions will improve over the longer term and is steadfast in the belief that the Company is well positioned to

grow and enhance shareholder value as this recovery occurs
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With community banking history stretching back over 120 years the Bank has built its strong reputation

with community outreach programs and being workplace of choice By combining its rich tradition with its ability

to provide its customers with financial advice and solutions the Bank will accomplish its mission by

being our customers first choice for financial advice and solutions

informing and educating customers on the basics of money management and

understanding and meeting customers financial needs throughout their life cycle

Serving customers requires the commitment of all Ameriana Bank associates to provide exceptional service

and sound financial advice We believe these qualities will differentiate us from our competitors and increase

profitability and shareholder value

To meet these long-term goals we have undertaken the following strategies

Build Relationships with Our Customers Banking is essentially transaction business Nevertheless

numerous industry studies have shown that customers want relationship with their bank and banker based on trust

and sound advice Based on this information we are focusing our efforts on expanding customer relationships and

improving our products and services per
household

Achieve Superior Customer Service Programs and initiatives have been implemented to deliver value-

added services and amenities to support our corporate strategy and Brand Promise which speak to our commitment

to our customers Customer satisfaction surveys are conducted after new account is opened Our evaluations

include telephone as well as in-person surveys with both consumer loans and deposit customers as well as other in-

store performance metrics We have enhanced our efforts to improve our customer service by developing 3-Year

Training and Development Plan and formalizing our service standards and job performance evaluations

Develop and Deliver Fully Integrated Financial Advice and Comprehensive Solutions to Meet Customer

Lfe Events The Banks retail banking business has full range
of banking products as well as affiliated insurance

brokerage and asset management services Products and services are packaged and recommended around customer

needs and life events such as planning for retirement buying home and saving for college education rather than

traditional transaction accounts savings and consumer loan products

Establish Strong Brand Awareness We believe it is important to create value proposition that is relevant

understood and valued by our customers To differentiate the Bank among its competitors and support its premium

service brand Ameriana developed brand strategy which surrounds the customer with 360 Degrees of Service

New logo signage facility design web design service training marketing and public relations efforts were

developed to support the brand strategy and brand concepts

Use Technology to Expand Our Customer Base Ameriana utilizes fully integrated real-time information

technology platform We continuously seek opportunities to enhance our electronic delivery of products and

services to our customers and the Banks technology plan has included upgrades to our ancillary support systems

such as business sweep products cash management services business remote item capture and on-line mortgage

loan applications In addition the Bank has introduced mobile banking mobile check deposit FinanceWorksTM and

other technology to remain competitive in its markets

Develop an Innovative Delivery System We believe our banking centers must evolve into Financial

Stores that showcase our financial products and offer our customers an environment and unique experience that is

conducive to interacting with knowledgeable Ameriana Bank associates Amerianas strategy
focuses on enhancing

the customer experience and demonstrating our community banking spirit with value-added services such as space

for community meetings business and financial planning seminars community outreach programs and small special

interest events
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Increase Market Share in Existing Markets and Expand into New Markets Tremendous opportunity exists

to expand our products and services
per

household with existing customers and attract new customers in both our

existing and new markets The Banks expansion strategy in Indianapolis is well underway as result of opening

three well-situated locations in Hamilton County in 2008 and 2009 located just north of Marion County and

Indianapolis In addition the Company purchased site in Plainfield which will enhance our presence on the west

side of Indianapolis and our existing office in Avon Construction plans of the Plainfield office have been put on

hold until the surrounding retail development is underway The Bank will continue the strategy of acquiring

additional locations for development of full-service banking centers to increase our footprint in Marion County and

surrounding Indianapolis metropolitan area and to boost our visibility in this market

Critical Accountin2 Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are maintained in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States and conform to general practices within the banking industry The

Companys significant accounting policies are described in detail in the Notes to the Companys Consolidated

Financial Statements The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions The financial position and results of

operations can be affected by these estimates and assumptions and such estimates and assumptions are integral to

the understanding of reported results Critical accounting policies are those policies that management believes are

the most important to the portrayal of the Companys financial condition and results and they require management

to make estimates that are difficult subjective or complex

Allowance for Loan Losses The allowance for loan losses provides coverage
for probable losses in the

Companys loan portfolio Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses each quarter

based on changes if any in underwriting activities the loan portfolio composition including product mix and

geographic industry or customer-specific concentrations trends in loan performance regulatory guidance and

economic factors This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires the use of significant management

estimates Many factors can affect managements estimates of specific and expected losses including volatility of

default probabilities rating migrations loss severity and economic and political conditions The allowance is

increased through provisions charged to operating earnings and reduced by net charge-offs

The Company determines the amount of the allowance based on relative risk characteristics of the loan

portfolio The allowance recorded for commercial loans is based on reviews of individual credit relationships and

an analysis of the migration of commercial loans and actual loss experience The allowance recorded for

noncommercial loans is based on an analysis of loan mix risk characteristics of the portfolio fraud loss and

bankruptcy experiences and historical losses adjusted for current trends for each loan category or group of loans

The allowance for loan losses relating to impaired loans is based on the loans observable market price the collateral

for certain collateral-dependent loans or the discounted cash flows using the loans effective interest rate

Regardless of the extent of the Companys analysis of customer performance portfolio trends or risk

management processes certain inherent but undetected losses are probable within the loan portfolio This is due to

several factors including inherent delays in obtaining information regarding customers financial condition or

changes in their unique business conditions the subjective nature of individual loan evaluations collateral

assessments and the interpretation of economic trends Volatility of economic or customer-specific conditions

affecting the identification and estimation of losses for larger nonhomogeneous credits and the sensitivity of

assumptions utilized to establish allowances for homogenous groups of loans are among other factors The

Company estimates
range

of inherent losses related to the existence of these exposures The estimates are based

upon the Companys evaluation of risk associated with the commercial and consumer allowance levels and the

estimated impact of the current economic environment

Mortgage Servicing Rights Mortgage servicing rights MSRs associated with loans originated and

sold where servicing is retained are capitalized and included in other intangible assets in the consolidated balance

sheet The value of the capitalized servicing rights represents the present value of the future servicing fees arising
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from the right to service loans in the portfolio Critical accounting policies for MSRs relate to the initial valuation

and subsequent impairment tests The methodology used to determine the valuation of MSRs requires the

development and use of number of estimates including anticipated principal amortization and prepayments of that

principal balance Events that may significantly affect the estimates used are changes in interest rates mortgage

loan prepayment speeds and the payment performance of the underlying loans The carrying value of the MSRs is

periodically reviewed for impairment based on determination of fair value Impairment if any is recognized

through valuation allowance and is recorded as amortization of intangible assets

Valuation Measurements Valuation methodologies often involve significant degree of judgment

particularly when there are no observable active markets for the items being valued Investment securities and

residential mortgage loans held for sale are carried at fair value as defined by FASB fair value guidance which

requires key judgments affecting how fair value for such assets and liabilities is determined In addition the

outcomes of valuations have direct bearing on the carrying amounts for goodwill and intangible assets To

determine the values of these assets and liabilities as well as the extent to which related assets may be impaired

management makes assumptions and estimates related to discount rates asset returns prepayment rates and other

factors The use of different discount rates or other valuation assumptions could produce significantly different

results which could affect the Companys results of operations

Income Tax Accounting We file consolidated federal income tax return The provision for income

taxes is based upon income in our consolidated financial statements Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying

amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years

in which those temporary

differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect of change in tax rates on our deferred tax assets and

liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment date

Under U.S GAAP valuation allowance is required to be recognized if it is more likely than not that

deferred tax asset will not be realized The determination of the realizability of the deferred tax asset is highly

subjective and dependent upon judgment concerning our evaluation of both positive and negative evidence our

forecasts of future income applicable tax planning strategies and assessments of current and future economic and

business conditions Positive evidence includes the existence of taxes paid in available carry-back years as well as

the probability that taxable income will be generated in future periods while negative evidence includes any

cumulative losses in the current year and prior two years
and general business and economic trends At December

31 2011 and December 31 2010 we determined that our existing valuation allowance was adequate largely based

on available tax planning strategies and our projections of future taxable income Any reduction in estimated future

taxable income may require us to increase the valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets Any required

increase to the valuation allowance would result in additional income tax expense
in the period and could have

significant impact on our future earnings

Positions taken in our tax returns may be subject to challenge by the taxing authorities upon examination

The benefit of an uncertain tax position is initially recognized in the financial statements only when it is more likely

than not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities Such tax positions are both initially

and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more likely than not of being realized upon

settlement with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts Differences

between our position and the position of tax authorities could result in reduction of tax benefit or an increase to

tax liability which could adversely affect our future income tax expense

We believe our tax policies and practices are critical accounting policies because the determination of our

tax provision and current and deferred tax assets and liabilities have material impact our net income and the

carrying value of our assets We believe our tax liabilities and assets are adequate and are properly recorded in the

consolidated financial statements at December 31 2011
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

Total assets increased by $134000 to $429.8 million at December 31 2011 from $429.7 million at

December 31 2010 as balance sheet growth efforts were limited primarily by economic conditions that resulted in

continuing weak loan demand

Cash and Cash EQuivalents

Cash and cash equivalents decreased $2.0 million to $9.7 million at December 31 2011 from $11.7 million

at December 31 2010 Cash on hand and in other institutions increased $2.5 million or 68.9% to $6.2 million at

December 31 2011 This change was primarily due to $2.3 million increase in our book balance for the

noninterest-earning piece of our Federal Reserve Bank account which represents electronic deposits not yet

credited Interest-bearing deposits decreased $4.6 million or 56.6% to $3.5 million at December 31 2011 with the

totals for both year end dates consisting almost totally of balances with the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago

Securities

Investment securities available for sale increased 13.6% to $43.8 million at December 31 2011 from $38.6

million at December 31 2010 The increase was due primarily to purchases of mortgage-backed securities that

exceeded the total for sales and principal repayments on mortgage-backed securities during 201 Mortgage-backed

securities purchases of $55.5 million mostly offset by principal repayments and sales resulted in an increase in the

total fair value of Ginnic Mae and GSE mortgage-backed pass-through securities of $4.9 million to $39.7 million at

December 31 2011

All mortgage-backed securities at December 31 2011 are insured by either Ginnie Mae Fannie Mae or

Freddie Mac At December 31 2011 all investments remained classified as available for sale All of our

investments are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment and such impairment if any is recognized as

charge to earnings There were no other than temporarily impaired investment securities as of December 31 2011

The following table identifies changes in the investment securities carrying values

Dollars in thousands

2011 2010 Change %Change
December 31

Ginnie Mae and GSE mortgage-backed pass-through

securities 39714 29436 10278 34.92%

Ginnie Mae collateralized mortgage obligations -- 5341 5341 100.00

Municipal securities 2351 2164 187 8.64

Mutual funds 1782 1667 115 6.90

Totals 43847 38608 5239 13.57%

The following table identifies the percentage composition of the investment securities

2011 2010 2009

December 31

Ginnie Mae and GSE mortgage-backed pass

through securities 90.6% 76.3% 69.7%

Ginnie Mae collateralized mortgage obligations -- 13.8 16.2

Municipal securities 5.3 5.6 9.6

Mutual funds 4.1 4.3 4.5

Totals 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statement for more information on investment securities
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Loans

Net loans receivable totaled $312.5 million at December 31 2011 decrease of $206000 from $312.7

million at December 31 2010 The lack of portfolio growth was due primarily to the impact of the weak economy

on loan demand coupled with managements decision to sell significant portion of new single-family mortgage

loans in the secondary market

Residential real estate loans decreased $4.9 million to $164.4 million at December 31 2011 from $169.3

million at December 31 2010 New production involved mix of owner-occupied single-family and investment

property loans as well as blend of products that included both fixed-rate and small number of variable-rate

pricing During 2011 the Bank originated $30.7 million in non-construction residential real estate loans including

home equity loans and sold $8.5 million into the secondary market Additionally the Bank acquired $798000

interest in participation loan for an apartment complex in the Indianapolis area

Commercial real estate loans increased $5.6 million to $100.1 million at December 31 2011 from $94.6

million at December 31 2010 Commercial loans and leases increased $8.6 million to $31.0 million at December

31 2011 from $22.4 million at December 31 2010 The overall growth in these two categories of commercial loans

for 2011 was reflective of greater demand resulting from improvement in the balance sheets of potential borrowers

after sustaining the impact of weak economic conditions for several years Non-construction commercial real estate

loans totaling $10.0 million and $8.9 million in other commercial loans were added in 2011 with one purchase for

$3.0 million of loan to construction company in the oil and gas industry

Construction loans decreased $6.7 million to $18.0 million during 2011 primarily as result of reduced

emphasis on this product by the Bank that was due mostly to considerations related to the state of the economy

Construction loan originations in 2011 totaled $6.8 million and included $3.2 million loan for medical office

building and $2.0 million loan for Section 42 low income apartment complex

On December 31 2011 the Bank had $740000 in loans to local municipalities compared to $2.7 million

at December 31 2010 Municipal loans are usually added through competitive bid process New municipal loans

totaled $590000 for 2011

Consumer loans declined $1.1 million to $2.9 million at December 31 2011 from $4.0 million at December

31 2010 This decrease reflected the impact of the economy on the Banks lending growth objectives The Bank

originated $1.2 million of consumer loans in 2011

New loan volume in 2011 totaled $61.8 million including purchases totaling $3.8 million compared to

$79.4 million in 2010 with no purchases New residential loan originations and purchases including $2.9 million of

construction loans decreased to $34.3 million in 2011 from $53.0 million in 2010 Commercial loan commercial

real estate commercial construction and municipal loan additions in 2011 totaled $26.3 million compared to $24.0

million in 2010 New consumer loans totaled $1.2 million in 2011 compared to $2.4 million in 2010

We generally retain loan servicing on loans sold Loans we serviced for investors primarily Freddie Mac

Fannie Mae and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis totaled approximately $95.7 million at December 31

2011 compared to $115.9 million at December 31 2010 The decrease was due primarily to weak new loan demand

in 2011 that resulted in net paydown in the Banks portfolio of serviced one-to four-family residential mortgage

loans Loans sold that we service generate steady source of fee income with servicing fees ranging from 0.25% to

0.375% per annum of the loan principal amount

Credit Quality

Nonperforming loans decreased $2.4 million to $8.8 million at December 31 2011 from $11.2 million at

December 31 2010 The decrease was primarily due to the payoff of two loans totaling $1.6 million on section 42

low income housing tax credit properties
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We recorded net charge-offs of $1.5 million in 2011 compared to net charge-offs of $1.7 million in 2010

Total charge-offs were $1.6 million and $2.0 million in 2011 and 2010 respectively Total recoveries in 2011 were

$95000 while total recoveries were $244000 in 2010

The allowance for loan losses as percent of loans was 1.30% at December 31 2011 and 1.33% at

December 31 2010 The significant reduction in nonperforming loans in the Banks portfolio during 2011 supports

the decrease in the allowance for loans losses to total loans ratio and as result of our review of collateral positions

and historic loss ratios management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate to cover all incurred and

probable losses inherent in the portfolio at December 31 2011

Premises and EQuipment

Premises and equipment of $14.6 million at December 31 2011 represented an $86000 decrease from

$14.7 million at December 31 2010 The net decrease was result of $977000 of depreciation exceeding net

capital expenditures of $891000 during the period

Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank

The $629000 decrease in Federal Home Loan Bank stock to $4.5 million at December 31 2011 was the

result of stock repurchase program initiated by the Federal Home Loan Bank in 2011

Goodwill

Goodwill of $656000 at December 31 2011 represented $7000 increase from December 31 2010 and

resulted from an acquisition of an insurance business $457000 of the total goodwill relates to deposits associated

with banking center acquired on February 27 1998 and $199000 is the result of three separate acquisitions of

insurance businesses The results of the Banks impairment tests have reflected fair value for the deposits at this

banking center that exceeds the goodwill and fair value of the three insurance agency books of business purchased

that exceeds the associated goodwill

Cash Value of Life Insurance

We have investments in life insurance on employees and directors with balance or cash surrender value

of $26.2 million and $25.4 million respectively at December 31 2011 and 2010 The majority of these policies

were purchased in 1999 Some policies with lower returns were exchanged in 2007 as part of restructuring of the

program The nontaxable increase in cash surrender value of life insurance was $836000 in 2011 compared to

$875000 in 2010

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned of $7.5 million at December 31 2011 represented decrease of $1.5 million from

December 31 2010 with fourteen additions totaling $3.3 million and twelve sales of properties with an aggregate

book value of $3.6 million during 2011 The additions included twelve single-family homes or building lots

commercial building and an operating golf course and residential real estate development project with book value

at its June 30 2011 acquisition date of $2.0 million The sales consisted of eight single-family properties two

commercial properties the golf course with book value of $1.1 million that was sold at $121000 gain and an

apartment complex with book value of $1.7 million that was sold at $72000 gain Write-downs of other real

estate owned during 2011 totaled $1.2 million of which $845000 was related to strip commercial center and

$277000 to an uncompleted apartment project with both write-downs due to further deterioration of the propertys

market value during the year
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Other Assets

Other assets were $9.9 million at December 31 2011 compared to $11.5 million at December 31 2010

The decrease of $1.6 million resulted primarily from the receipt of $676000 transfer related to the Banks

commercial sweep investment product and $612000 reduction of our prepaid FDIC insurance premiums balance

Deposits

The following table shows deposit changes by category

Dollars in thousands

December 31 2011 2010 Change Change

107684

337250

Nonmaturity deposits increased $21.8 million or 13.2% to $187.0 million at December 31 2011 from

$165.2 million at December 31 2010 $17.0 million of the 2011 increase related to checking accounts noninterest

bearing and interest-bearing and included $1.2 million increase in public funds checking balances The growth in

retail nonmaturity deposits resulted primarily from the Banks increased focus on sales activities coupled with its

banking center expansion strategy and the reaction of individuals to market conditions related to the depressed

economic environment

Non-brokered certificates of deposit decreased $10.3 million due to certain customers transferring their

funds to non-maturity products coupled with result of Bank strategies that were designed to not pursue the

retention of the more rate sensitive non-core deposits

$10.4 million in brokered certificates of deposit were added in December 2010 and an additional $6.1

million during the first two months of 2011 as they were found to be more attractive than other wholesale funding

alternatives with regard to cost and collateral considerations $5.2 million of the brokered certificates of deposit had

2011 maturities and $11.3 million had call options and they were all subsequently replaced with core deposits in

2011

Borrowin2s

Borrowings decreased $2.0 million to $49.8 million at December 31 2011 from $51.8 million at December

31 2010 as the Bank had $6.0 million long-term Federal Home Loan Bank note mature in February and added

$4.0 million short-term Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing in late December At December 31 2011 our

borrowings consisted of FHLB advances totaling $32.0 million one $7.5 million repurchase agreement and

subordinated debentures of $10.3 million The subordinated debentures were issued on March 2006 and mature

on March 2036

Noninterest-bearing deposits

Savings deposits

Interest-bearing checking

Money market deposits

Certificates $100000 and more

Brokered Certificates

Other certificates

Totals

40197

29043

88632

29084

42610

34769

28836

77012

24551

44481

-- 10363

117966

337978

5428
207

11620

4533

1871
10363
10282

728

15.61%

0.72

15.09

18.46

4.21

100.00

8.72

0.22%
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Yields Earned and Rates Paid

The following tables set forth the weighted average yields earned on interest-earning assets and the

weighted average interest rates paid on the interest-bearing liabilities together with the net yield on interest-earning

assets Yields are calculated on tax-equivalent basis The tax-equivalent adjustment was $72000 $100000 and

$256000 for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Year Ended December 31

Weighted Average Yield 2011 2010 2009

Loans 5.59% 5.84% 5.79%

Mortgage-backed pass through and collateralized mortgage obligations 3.16 3.83 4.70

Securities taxable 3.57 3.67 4.15

Securities tax-exempt 6.61 5.72 5.89

Other interest-earning assets 0.71 0.72 0.83

All interest-earning assets 5.04 5.40 5.38

Weighted Average Cost

Demand deposits money market deposit accounts and savings 0.31 0.39 0.68

Certificates of deposit 1.66 2.12 2.84

Federal Home Loan Bank advances Federal Reserve Bank discount

window borrowings repurchase agreement and subordinated

debentures 3.52 4.01 4.11

All interest-bearing liabilities 1.37 1.83 2.38

Interest Rate Spread spread between weighted average yield on all

Interest-earning assets and all interest-bearing liabilities 3.67 3.57 3.00

Net Tax Equivalent Yield net interest income as percentage of average

interest-earning assets 3.74 3.63 3.08

At December 31

Weighted Average Interest Rates 2011 2010 2009

Loans 5.43% 5.75% 5.91%

Mortgage-backed pass through and collateralized mortgage obligations 2.66 3.01 4.35

Other securities taxable 2.61 3.05 3.61

Other securities tax-exempt
7.95 5.94 6.00

Other earning assets 1.51 0.93 0.77

Total interest-earning assets 5.05 5.31 5.52

Demand deposits money market deposit accounts and savings 0.23 0.38 0.45

Certificates of deposit 1.55 1.77 2.46

Federal Home Loan Bank advances repurchase agreement and

subordinated debentures 3.11 3.92 3.97

Total interest-bearing liabilities 1.22 1.57 2.04

Interest rate spread 3.83 3.74 3.48

47



Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table sets forth certain information regarding changes in interest income interest expense

and net interest income for the periods indicated For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities information is provided on changes attributable to changes in volume changes in volume multiplied

by old rate and changes in rate changes in rate multiplied by old volume For
purposes

of this table changes

attributable to changes in both rate and volume that cannot be segregated have been allocated proportionally based

on the changes due to the rate and the changes due to volume No material amounts of loan fees or out-of-period

interest are included in the table Nonaccrual loans were not excluded in the calculations The information shown

below was adjusted for the tax-equivalent benefit of bank qualified non-taxable municipal securities and municipal

loans The tax equivalent adjustment was $72000 $100000 and $256000 for the
years

ended December 31 2011
2010 and 2009 respectively

Year Ended December 31

Interest income

Loans

Mortgage-backed securities

Securities taxable

Securities tax-exempt

Other interest-earning assets

Total interest-earning assets

Interest expense

Demand deposits and savings

Certificates of deposits

FHLB advances Federal Reserve

Bank discount window

borrowings repurchase agreement

and subordinated debentures

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Change in net interest income

Net

Chang Volume

In thousands

Drafts Payable

Drafts payable of $2.5 million at December 31 2011 represented an increase of $938000 from $1.6 million

at December 31 2010 This difference will
vary and is function of the dollar amount of checks issued near period

end and the time required for those checks to clear

Other Liabilities

Other liabilities increased $670000 to $5.7 million at December 31 2011 primarily due to $153000

increase in escrow balances for mortgage loans and increases in accrued expenses and accounts payable related to

normal operating expenses

Shareholders EQuity

Total shareholders equity of $34.5 million at December 31 2011 was $1.3 million higher than the total at

December 31 2010 This increase resulted primarily from $1.1 million in net income and $229000 increase in the

accumulated other comprehensive income component of equity partially offset by $120000 in dividends to

shareholders

2011 vs 2010 2010 vs 2009

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Due to Changes in Due to Changes in

Net

Rate ChangeVolume Rate

316 782 1098 1072 157 915
119 233 114 773 275 1048

--- 54 63
58 14 44 422 426

39 37 42 18 60
214 1005 1219 2363 149 2512

53 124 71 41 355 396
121 768 889 572 1253 1825

516 228 744 798 59 857
584 1120 1704 1411 1667 3078
370 115 485 952 1518 566
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2011 Compared to 2010

Net income

The Company recorded net income of $1.1 million for 2011 or $0.38 per diluted share compared to net

income of $553000 or $0.19 per
diluted share for 2010 This increase of $589000 resulted primarily from an

improvement in net interest income and significant reduction in the provision for loans losses for 2011 The

following is summary of changes in the components of net income for 2011 compared to 2010

The Company produced $513000 or 3.8% increase in net interest income with growth of

only 0.6% in average interest-earning assets that was limited by weak loan demand in 2011

The $513000 increase in net interest income $485000 on tax-equivalent basis resulted

primarily from an improvement in net interest spread as shown in the table below

provision for loan losses of $1.4 million was recorded during 2011 compared to $1.9 million

for the same period of 2010 decrease of $548000

Other income for 2011 was $5.6 million or decrease of $22000 from the total for 2010

$17.0 million in other expense for 2011 represented $187000 or 1.1% increase from $16.8

million for 2010

The income tax expense of only $21000 on $1.2 million of pre-tax income for 2011 resulted

primarily from approximately $998000 of tax-exempt income from bank-owned life insurance

municipal securities and municipal loans The income tax benefit of $242000 for 2010

resulted from approximately $1.1 million of tax-exempt income from bank-owned life

insurance municipal securities and municipal loans

For quarterly breakdown of earnings see Quarterly Data under Item Selected Financial Data

Net Interest Income

We derive the majority of our income from net interest income The following table shows breakdown of

net interest income on tax-equivalent basis for 2011 compared to 2010 The tax equivalent adjustment was

$72000 and $100000 for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively based on tax rate of 34%

Dollars in thousands

Years ended December 31 2011 2010

Interest Yield/Rate Interest Yield/Rate Change

Interestandfeesonloans $17421 5.59% $18519 5.84% $l066
Other interest income 1445 2.30 1566 2.85 153

Total interest income 18866 5.04 20085 5.40 1219
Interest on deposits 3225 1.05 4185 1.40 960
Interest on bonowings 1645 3.52 2389 4.01 744

Total interest expense 4870 1.37 6574 1.83 1704
Net interest income $13996 $13511 485

Net interest spread 3.67% 3.57%

Net interest margin 3.74% 3.63%
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The 3.6% growth in net interest income on tax-equivalent basis as shown in the table above was

accomplished with an increase of 0.6% in average interest-earning assets as the Bank benefited from certain market

conditions in 2011 that allowed it to decrease its cost of funds primarily through the repricing of deposit accounts in

relatively stable low interest rate environment Our interest-bearing liabilities have shorter overall maturities and

reprice more frequently to market conditions than our interest-earning assets For discussion on interest rate risk

see Interest Rate Risk

The Companys net interest margin on fully-tax equivalent basis increased 10 basis points to 3.73% for

2011 from 3.63% for 2010

Tax-exempt interest for 2011 was $162000 compared to $222000 for 2010 Tax-exempt interest is

primarily from bank-qualified municipal securities and municipal loans Total interest income on tax-equivalent

basis of $18.9 million for 2011 represented decrease of $1.2 million compared to $20.1 million for 2010 This

reduction resulted primarily from decrease in average interest-earning assets related to the Banks balance sheet

restructuring strategies Total interest expense for 2011 decreased $1.7 million compared to 2010 as the Bank took

advantage of market opportunities to reprice and sharply reduce its cost of interest-bearing deposits and reduced

total borrowings also as part of its balance sheet restructuring strategy For further information see Financial

Condition Rate/Volume Analysis

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses represents the current period credit or cost associated with maintaining an

appropriate allowance for loan losses Periodic fluctuations in the provision for loan losses result from

managements assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses The allowance for loan losses is

dependent upon many factors including loan growth net charge-offs changes in the composition of the loan

portfolio delinquencies assessment by management third parties and banking regulators of the quality of the loan

portfolio the value of the underlying collateral on problem loans and the general economic conditions in our market

area We believe the allowance for loan losses is adequate to cover losses inherent in the loan portfolio as calculated

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

We had provision for loan losses of $1.4 million for 2011 compared to provision of $1.9 million for

2010 The provisions for both 2011 and 2010 reflected elevated levels of nonperforming loans and charge-offs and

the continuing pressure of current economic conditions on credit quality The allowance to total loans ratio was

1.30% at December 31 2011 compared to 1.33% at December 31 2010

Other Income

The $22000 increase in total other income to $5.6 million in 2011 resulted primarily from the net of the

following changes

$137000 or 6.8% increase in fees and service charges from deposit account relationships to $2.1

million including $119000 increase in debit card fees that was due primarily to 7.0% increase in the

number of checking accounts that resulted from the Banks continuing focus on growing core deposit

relationships

$158000 or 11.5% increase in commissions earned on insurance and brokerage sales to $1.5 million

resulted primarily from increased brokerage sales by the Banks subsidiary Ameriana Financial Services

Inc

Net gains on sales of available-for-sale securities increased $616000 from $303000 for 2010 on $9.8

million in sales to $919000 for 2011 on $48.7 million in sales as the Bank benefited in both years from

falling mortgage loan rates that resulted in higher market values of its mortgage-backed securities
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$698000 decrease in gains on sales of loans and servicing rights to $225000 for 2011 from $923000 for

2010 related primarily to $560000 gain in 2010 from bulk sale of $10.9 million of seasoned

performing residential mortgage loans

$272000 increase in rental income from OREO to $771000 resulted primarily from gross operating

revenue for an Indianapolis area golf course acquired in mid-2011 and sold in December the mid-2010

acquisition of an Indianapolis area strip commercial center held for all of 2011 the leasing of two high-end

Indianapolis area single family homes and partly offset by reduced income from multi-family apartment

complex in Anderson Indiana that was held for all of 2010 and sold in mid-2011

$668000 increase in the net loss from sales and write-downs of other real estate owned to $1.0 million

for 2011 from $359000 for 2010 related primarily to $845000 in total write-downs of the strip

commercial center and $277000 write-down of an uncompleted apartment complex located in Lafayette

Indiana The write-downs reflected further deterioration in the market value of both properties during

2011 but were partly offset by $121000 gain from the sale of the Indianapolis area golf course and

$72000 gain from the sale of the Anderson Indiana apartment complex and

$134000 decrease in the loss from limited partnership investment in real estate qualifying for federal

tax credits from $142000 for 2010 to $8000 for 2011

Other Expense

The Company recorded $187000 increase in total other expense to $17.0 million for 2011 compared to

$16.8 million for 2010 due primarily to the following major differences

$9.4 million for salaries and employee benefits for 2011 which was $135000 or 1.4% higher than 2010
and due mostly to an increase in incentive awards related primarily to the Banks retail deposit goals and

sales goals for Ameriana Financial Services Inc and $124000 increase in funding costs for the frozen

multi-employer defined benefit retirement plan partly offset by an $84000 decrease in employee health

insurance expense In light of the impact of poor economic conditions on the earnings of the Company

management agreed to forego salary increases for 2011

The $88000 or 5.7% increase in net occupancy expense to $1.6 million related primarily to real estate tax

expense The expense for 2011 included $28000 increase in rent for banking center that was related

mostly to real estate tax adjustment while during 2010 the Bank benefited from $35000 refund of prior

years real estate taxes as result of successfully contesting the assessment on one of the Banks offices

Other real estate owned expense of $1.0 million for 2011 was $53000 higher than the total for 2010

$727000 of the total for 2011 represented operating expenses on the Indianapolis area golf course and

apartment complex in Anderson Indiana with both properties being sold in 2011 and the Indianapolis area

strip commercial center The three properties together provided $695000 of rental income in 2011 and

The increases above were offset in part by

decrease of $77000 in legal and professional fees that was due primarily to lower expense recorded for

legal fees related to problem loans and $25000 recruiting fee that was incurred in the first nine months

of 2010 while no recruiting fees were incurred in 2011 offset in part by $14000 in fees resulting from the

required conversion to eXtensible Business Reporting Language XBRL for SEC financial reporting in

2011 and

$111000 decrease in FDIC insurance premiums and assessments that resulted from the new assessment

methodology that became effective in the beginning of the second quarter of 2011
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Income Tax Expense

We recorded income tax expense
of $21000 on pre-tax income of $1.2 million for 2011 compared to an

income tax benefit of $242000 on $311000 of pre-tax income for 2010 Both years had significant amount of

tax-exempt BOLt income and tax-exempt income from municipal loans and municipal securities

We have deferred state tax asset of $1.9 million that is primarily the result of operating losses

sustained since 2003 for state tax purposes We started recording valuation allowance against our

current period state income tax benefit in 2005 due to our concern that we may not be able to use

more than the tax asset already recorded on the books without modifying the use of AIMI our

investment subsidiary which was liquidated effective December 31 2009 Operating income from

AIMI was not subject to state income taxes under state law and is the primary reason for the tax

asset The valuation allowance was $1.1 million at December 31 2011

The Company had deferred federal tax asset of $4.6 million at December 31 2011 that was

composed of $1.6 million of tax benefit from net operating loss carryforward of $4.7 million $1.6

million related to temporary differences between book and tax income and $1.4 million in tax

credits The federal loss carryforward expires in 2026 and the tax credits begin to expire in 2023

Included in the $1.4 million of tax credits available to offset future federal income tax are

approximately $666000 of alternative minimum tax credits which have no expiration date

Management believes that the Company will be able to utilize the benefits recorded for loss

carryforwards and credits within the allotted time periods

In addition to the liquidation of AIMI the Bank has initiated several strategies designed to expedite the

use of both the deferred state tax asset and the deferred federal tax asset Through sales of $34.5

million of municipal securities and only one purchase since December 31 2006 that segment of the

investment securities portfolio has been reduced to $2.4 million The proceeds from these sales have

been reinvested in taxable financial instruments The Bank periodically evaluates sale/leaseback

transaction that could result in taxable gain on its office properties and also allow the Bank to convert

nonearning assets to earnings assets that will produce taxable income Additionally the Bank is

exploring options related to reducing its current investment in tax-exempt bank owned life insurance

policies that involve the reinvestment of the proceeds in taxable financial instruments with similar or

greater risk-adjusted after-tax yield Sales of banking centers not important to long-term growth

objectives that would result in taxable gains and reduced operating expenses could be considered by the

Bank

The effective tax rate was 1.8% in 2011 which resulted from $1.2 million in pre-tax income with

income tax of $21000 compared to an effective tax rate of 77.8% for 2010 that resulted from

$311000 in pre-tax income coupled with $242000 income tax benefit The primary difference in

the effective tax rate and the statutory tax rates in both 2011 and 2010 relates to the cash value of life

insurance municipal loans and municipal securities income

See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information relating to income taxes

Lliluidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is the ability to meet current and future obligations of short-term nature Historically funds

provided by operations loan repayments and new deposits have been our principal sources of liquid funds En

addition we have the ability to obtain funds through the sale of new mortgage loans through borrowings from the

FHLB system and through the brokered certificates market We regularly adjust the investments in liquid assets

based upon our assessment of expected loan demand expected deposit flows yields available on interest

earning deposits and securities and the objectives of our asset/liability program

The Company is separate entity and apart from the Bank and must provide for its own liquidity In

addition to its operating expenses the Company is responsible for the payment of dividends declared for its

shareholders and the payment of interest on its subordinated debentures At times the Company has repurchased its
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stock Substantially all of the Companys operating cash is obtained from subsidiary service fees and dividends

Payment of such dividends to the Company by the Bank is limited under Indiana law Additionally as part of

resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bank on July 26 2010 the Bank cannot declare or pay any
dividends without the prior written consent of the FDIC and the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions See

Regulatory Action The Company believes that such restriction will not have an impact on the Companys ability

to meet its ongoing cash obligations

At December 31 2011 we had $10.2 million in loan commitments outstanding and $45.3 million of

additional commitments for line of credit receivables

Certificates of deposit due within one year of December 31 2011 totaled $87.8 million or 26.0% of total

deposits If these maturing certificates of deposit do not remain with us other sources of funds must be used

including other certificates of deposit brokered CDs and borrowings Depending on market conditions we may be

required to pay higher rates on such deposits or other borrowings than currently paid on the certificates of deposit

due on or before December 31 2012 However based on past experiences we believe that significant portion of

the certificates of deposit will remain We have the ability to attract and retain deposits by adjusting the interest

rates offered We held no brokered CDs at December 31 2011 and $10.4 million at December 31 2010

Our primary investing activities are the origination of loans and purchase of securities In 2011 our loan

originations totaled $58.0 million and we purchased loans from other financial institutions totaling $3.8 million

Financing activities consist primarily of activity in deposit accounts including brokered certificates of

deposit and FHLB advances Deposit flows are affected by the overall level of interest rates the interest rates and

products we offer and our local competitors and other factors Deposit account balances decreased by $728000 in

2011 We had FHLB advances of $32.0 million and $34.0 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements set by the FDIC including risk-based

capital measure The Company is also subject to similar capital requirements set by the Federal Reserve Bank The

risk-based capital guidelines include both definition of capital and framework for calculating risk-weighted

assets by assigning balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet items to broad risk categories At December 31 2011
both the Company and the Bank exceeded all of regulatory capital requirements and are considered well

capitalized under regulatory guidelines

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of operations we engage in variety of financial transactions that in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles are not recorded on our financial statements These transactions involve

to varying degrees elements of credit interest rate and liquidity risk Such transactions are used primarily to

manage customers requests for funding and take the form of loan commitments and lines of credit See Note of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

We do not have any off-balance-sheet
arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have current or

future effect on our financial condition changes in financial condition revenues or expenses results of operations

liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to investors

Impact of Inflation and Chanin2 Prices

The consolidated financial statements and related data presented in this report have been prepared in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles This requires the measurement of financial position and

operating results in terms of historical dollars without consideration of changes in the relative purchasing power of

money over time due to inflation

Virtually all of the assets and liabilities of financial institution are monetary in nature As result

interest rates have more significant impact on financial institutions performance than the effects of general

levels of inflation Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or at the same rate as changes in the

prices of goods and services which are directly affected by inflation although interest rates may fluctuate in

response to perceived changes in the rate of inflation
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not applicable as issuer is smaller reporting company
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Audit Committee Board of Directors and Stockholders

Ameriana Bancorp

New Castle Indiana

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ameriana Bancorp as of December 31

2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and cash flows

for the years then ended The Companys management is responsible for these financial statements Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not

required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting

Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing

auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we

express no such opinion Our audits also included examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation

We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the financial position of Ameriana Bancorp as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the results

of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America

Is BKD LLP

Indianapolis Indiana

March 29 2012
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Ameriana Bancorp

Consolidated Balance Sheets

in thousands except share data

2011 2010

Assets

Cash on hand and in other institutions 6204 3673

Interest-bearing demand deposits 3505 8074

Cash and cash equivalents 9709 1747

Investment securities available for sale 43847 38608

Loans held for sale 252 91

Loans net of allowance for loan losses of $4132 and $4212 312509 312715

Premises and equipment 14650 14736

Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank 4472 5101

Goodwill 656 649

Cash value of life insurance 26248 25413

Other real estate owned 7545 9067

Other assets 9903 11530

Total assets $429791 $429657

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Liabilities

Deposits

Noninterest-bearing 40197 34769

Interest-bearing 297053 303209

Total deposits 337250 337978

Borrowings 49810 51810

Drafts payable 2532 1594

Other liabilities 5694 5024

Total liabilities 395286 396406

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock 5000000 shares authorized and unissued

Common stock $1.00 par value

Authorized 15000000 shares

Issued 3213952 and 3213952 shares 3214 3214

Outstanding 2988952 and 2988952 shares

Additional paid-in capital 1051 1048

Retained earnings 32871 31849

Accumulated other comprehensive income 367 138

Treasury stock 225000 and 225000 shares 2998 2998
Total shareholders equity 34505 33251

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $429791 $429657

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Ameriana Bancorp

Consolidated Statements of Income

in thousands except share data

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010

Interest Income

Interest and fees on loans $17381 $18465

Interest on mortgage-backed securities 1096 1210

Interest on investment securities 143 173

Other interest and dividend income 174 137

Total interest income 18794 19985

Interest Expense

Interest on deposits 3225 4185

Interest on borrowings 1645 2389

Total interest expense 4870 6574

Net Interest Income 13924 13411

Provision for loan losses 1385 1933

Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 12539 1478

Other Income

Other fees and service charges 2144 2007

Brokerage and insurance commissions 1530 1372

Net realized and recognized gains on available-for-sale securities 919 303

Gains on sales of loans and servicing rights 225 923

Net loss from sales and write-downs of other real estate owned 1027 359

Net gain loss on other repossessed assets

Other real estate owned rental income 771 499

Increase in cash value of life insurance 836 875

Loss from limited partnership investment in real estate qualifing for federal tax

credits 142

Other 233 173

Total other income 5628 5650

Other Expense

Salaries and employee benefits 9373 9238

Net occupancy expense 1622 1534

Furniture and equipment expense
853 856

Legal and professional fees 485 562

FDIC insurance premiums and assessments 643 754

Data processing expense
799 758

Printing and office supplies 263 256

Marketing expense
367 370

Other real estate owned expense 1007 954

Other 1592 1535

Total other expense 17004 16817

Income Before Income Taxes 1163 311

Income tax expense benefit 21 242

Net Income $1142 553

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.38 0.19

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Ameriana Bancorp

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

in thousands except share data

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Balance at December 31 2009

Common

Stock

3214

Additional

Paid-in

Ca
1045

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income

Lj
102

Retained

Earnings

31416

Treasury

Stock

2998
_______

Total

32575

Net Income 553 553

Change of $379 from unrealized loss to

unrealized gain on available-for-sale

securities net of income tax of$139 240 240

Comprehensive income 793

Share-based compensation

Dividends declared $0.04 per share 120 120
Balance at December 31 2010 $3214 $1048 $31849 $138 $2998 $33251

Net Income 1142 1142

Increase of $347 in unrealized gain on

available-for-sale securities net of income

tax of $118 229 229

Comprehensive income 1371

Share-based compensation

Dividends declared $0.04 per share 120 120_
Balance at December 31 2011 $3214 $1051 $32871 $367 $2998 $34505
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Ameriana Bancorp

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

in thousands except share data

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010

Operating Activities

Net income 1142 553

Items not requiring jroviding cash

Provision for losses on loans 1385 1933

Depreciation and amortization 1297 1213

Increase in cash value of life insurance 836 875

Gain on sale of investments 919 303

Deferred taxes 349 271
Loss on sale or write-down of other real estate owned 1027 359

Mortgage loans originated for sale 8710 16504

Proceeds from sale of mortgage loans 8676 17125

Gains on sale of loans and servicing rights 225 923

Decrease in accrued interest payable 35 302

Other adjustments 2637 733

Net cash provided by operating activities 5090 2738

Investing Activities

Purchase of securities 57932 18953

Proceeds/principal from sale of securities 48712 9836

Principal collected on mortgage-backed securities 5008 6829

Net change in loans 4467 9586

Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans transferred to held for sale -- 11436

Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned 3798 1724

Purchase of insurance business 190 --

Purchase of financial services business 46 --

Net purchases and construction of premises and equipment 891 239

Proceeds from stock repurchased by Federal Home Loan Bank 629 528

Other investing activities 114

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 5371 1689

Financing Activities

Net change in demand and savings deposits 21788 9680

Net changes in brokered certificates of deposit 10363 10363

Net change in all other certificates of deposit 12153 20446

Increase in drafts payable 938 674

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 4000 3000

Repayment of long-term borrowings 6000 15375

Net change in advances by borrowers for taxes and insurance 153 44
Cash dividends paid 120 120

Net cash used in financing activities 1757 12268

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2038 7841

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 11747 19588

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 9709 11747
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Year Ended December 31

2011 2010

Supplemental information

Interest paid on deposits $3212 $4461

Interest paid on borrowings $1623 $2414

Non-cash supplemental information

Transfer from loans to other real estate owned $3303 $5601

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Nature of Operations and Summary of Sign ficant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ameriana Bancorp the

Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary Ameriana Bank the Bank and the Banks wholly-owned

subsidiaries Ameriana Financial Services Inc and Ameriana Insurance Agency Inc All significant intercompany

accounts and transactions have been eliminated

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

The Company is bank holding company whose principal activity is the ownership and management of the Bank and

its subsidiaries The Bank provides various banking services and engages in loan servicing activities for investors and

operates in single significant business segment The Bank is subject to the regulation of the Indiana Department of

Financial Institutions the DFI and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the FDIC The Companys gross

revenues are substantially earned from the various banking services provided by the Bank The Company also earns

brokerage and insurance commissions from the services provided by the other subsidiaries

The Bank generates loans and receives deposits from customers located primarily in east central Indiana Loans are

generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property business assets or consumer assets The

Company has sold various loans to investors while retaining the servicing rights

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash

equivalents At December 31 2011 and 2010 cash equivalents consisted primarily of interest-bearing deposits with

the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago

The only commercial bank holding one of the Companys cash accounts is participating in the FDICs Transaction

Account Guarantee Program Under the program through December 31 2012 all noninterest-bearing transaction

accounts are fully guaranteed by the FDIC for the entire amount in the account

The FDICs insurance limit increase to $250000 was made permanent in 2010 At December 31 2011 the

Companys cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by approximately $3.5 million with $3.4 million held

by the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago and $91000 held by the Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis and

both banks not being insured

In vestment Securities

Debt securities are classified as held to maturity when the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold the

securities to maturity Securities held to maturity are carried at amortized cost Debt securities not classified as held

to maturity are classified as available for sale Securities available for sale are carried at fair value with unrealized

gains and losses reported separately in accumulated comprehensive income loss net of tax

Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts are recorded using the interest method as interest income from

securities Realized gains and losses are recorded as net security gains losses Gains and losses on sales of

securities are determined on the specific identification method

When the Company does not intend to sell debt security and it is more likely than not that the Company will not

have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis it recognizes the credit component of an other-than

temporary impairment of debt security in earnings and the remaining portion in other comprehensive income For

held-to-maturity debt securities the amount of an other-than-temporary impairment recorded in other

comprehensive income for the noncredit portion of previous other-than-temporary impairment is amortized

prospectively over the remaining life of the security on the basis of the timing of future estimated cash flows of the

security
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For equity securities when the Company has decided to sell an impaired available-for-sale security and the entity

does not expect the fair value of the security to fully recover before the expected time of sale the security is deemed

other-than-temporarily impaired in the period in which the decision to sell is made The Company recognizes an

impairment loss when the impairment is deemed other than temporary even if decision to sell has not been made

Valuation Measurements Valuation methodologies often involve significant degree of judgment particularly

when there are no observable active markets for the items being valued In determining fair values for investment

securities and residential mortgage loans held for sale fair values as defined in ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements

and Disclosures ASC 820 require key judgments affecting how fair value for such assets and liabilities are

determined In addition the outcomes of valuations have direct bearing on the carrying amounts for goodwill and

intangible assets To determine the values of these assets and liabilities as well as the extent to which related assets

may be impaired management makes assumptions and estimates related to discount rates asset returns prepayment

rates and other factors The use of different discount rates or other valuation assumptions could produce

significantly different results which could affect the Companys results of operations

Loans Held for Sale Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the

lower of cost or fair value in the aggregate Net unrealized losses if any are recognized through valuation

allowance by charges to noninterest income Gains and losses on loan sales are recorded in noninterest income and

direct loan origination costs and fees are deferred at origination of the loan and are recognized in noninterest income

upon sale of the loan

Loans are carried at the principal amount outstanding loan is impaired when based on current information or

events it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due principal and interest according to

the contractual terms of the loan agreement Payments with insignificant delays not exceeding 90 days outstanding are

not considered impaired Certain non-accrual and substantially delinquent loans may be considered to be impaired

Generally loans are placed on non-accrual status at 90 days past due and accrued interest is reversed against earnings

unless the loan is well-secured and in the process of collection The Company considers its investment in one-to four-

family residential loans and consumer loans to be homogeneous and therefore they are generally excluded from

separate identification of evaluation of impairment Interest income is accrued on the principal balances of loans The

accrual of interest on impaired and non-accrual loans is discontinued when in managements opinion the borrower

may be unable to meet payments as they become due

When interest accrual is discontinued all unpaid accrued interest is reversed when considered uncollectible Generally

interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received Certain loan fees and direct

costs are being deferred and amortized as an adjustment of yield on the loans over the contractual lives of the loans

When loan is paid off or sold any unamortized loan origination fee balance is credited to income

Allowance for Loan Losses is maintained at level believed adequate by management to absorb inherent losses in the

loan portfolio Managements determination of the adequacy of the allowance is based on an evaluation of the

portfolio including consideration of past loan loss experience current economic conditions size growth and

composition of the loan portfolio the probability of collecting all amounts due and other relevant factors Loan losses

for impaired loans are measured by the present value of expected future cash flows or the fair value of the collateral of

the loan if collateral dependent The allowance is increased by provisions for loan losses charged against income

Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of loan balance is

confirmed Subsequent recoveries if any are credited to the allowance

The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are particularly

susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions Management believes that as of

December 31 2011 the allowance for loan losses was adequate based on information then available worsening or

protracted economic decline in the areas within which the Company operates would increase the likelihood of

additional losses due to credit and market risks and could create the need for additional loss reserves

Premises and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed principally by the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets Maintenance and repairs are expensed as

incurred while major additions and improvements are capitalized
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Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank is the amount of stock the Company is required to own as determined by

regulation This stock is carried at cost and represents the amount at which it can be sold back to the Federal Home

Loan Bank the FHLB The Company reviewed the FHLB stock and based on current performance of the Federal

Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis the Company determined there was no impairment of this stock at December 31

2011

Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment If the implied fair value of goodwill is lower than its carrying

amount goodwill impairment is indicated and goodwill is written down to its implied fair value Subsequent

increases in goodwill value are not recognized in the financial statements There was no impairment of goodwill

recognized in 2011 or 2010

Other Real Estate Owned Assets acquired through or in lieu of loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially

recorded at fair value less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure establishing new cost basis Subsequent to

foreclosure valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying

amount or fair value less cost to sell Revenue and expenses
from operations and changes in the valuation allowance

are included in net income or expense from foreclosed assets

Earnings per Share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares and

divided by dilutive stock options outstanding during each year

Mortgage Servicing Rights on originated loans are capitalized by estimating the fair value of the streams of net

servicing revenues that will occur over the estimated life of the servicing arrangement Capitalized servicing rights

which include purchased servicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated servicing

revenues At least annually the Bank engages third party consulting firm to perform valuation analysis that is

reviewed by management of the fair value of the mortgage servicing rights Based on the most recent valuation as

of November 30 2011 the valuation allowance was increased by $19000 to $32000 as of December 31 2011

from $13000 at December 31 2010

Stock Options The Company has stock plans which are described more fully in Note 10

Income Tax in the consolidated Statements of Income includes deferred income tax provisions or benefits for all

significant temporary differences in recognizing income and expenses
for financial reporting and income tax

purposes The Company and its subsidiaries file consolidated tax returns The parent company and subsidiaries are

charged or given credit for income taxes as though separate returns were filed The Company recognizes interest

and penalties on income taxes as component of income tax expense

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance ASC 740 Income

Taxes The income tax accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense current and

deferred Current income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the

provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of deductions over revenues The Company

determines deferred income taxes using the liability or balance sheet method Under this method the net deferred

tax asset or liability is based on the tax effect of the differences between the book and tax basis of assets and

liabilities and enacted changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur Deferred

income tax expense
results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods Deferred tax assets

are reduced by valuation allowance if based on the weight of evidence available it is more likely than not that

some portion or all of deferred tax asset will not be realized

Uncertain tax positions are recognized if it is more likely than not based on the technical merits that the tax

position will be realized or sustained upon examination The term more likely than not means likelihood of

more than 50 percent the terms examined and upon examination also included resolution of the related appeals or

litigation processes if any tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition threshold is initially and

subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has greater than 50 percent likelihood of being

realized upon settlement with taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information The

determination of whether or not tax position has met the more likely than not recognition threshold considers the

facts circumstances and information available at the reporting date and is subject to managements judgment
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Under U.S GAAP valuation allowance is required to be recognized if it is more likely than not that deferred

tax asset will not be realized The determination of the realizability of the deferred tax asset is highly subjective and

dependent upon judgment concerning our evaluation of both positive and negative evidence our forecasts of future

income applicable tax planning strategies and assessments of current and future economic and business conditions

Positive evidence includes the existence of taxes paid in available carry-back years as well as the probability that

taxable income will be generated in future periods while negative evidence includes any cumulative losses in the

current year and prior two years and general business and economic trends At December 31 2011 and December

31 2010 we determined that our existing valuation allowance was adequate largely based on available tax planning

strategies and our projections of future taxable income Any reduction in estimated future taxable income may
require us to increase the valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets Any required increase to the valuation

allowance would result in additional income tax expense in the period and could have significant impact on our

future earnings

Restriction on Cash and Due From Banks

The Bank is required to maintain reserve funds in cash and/or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank The

reserve required at December 31 2011 was $298000

Investment Securities

The amortized cost and approximate fair values of securities together with unrealized gains and losses are as

follows

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

Available for sale at December 31 2011

Ginnie Mae and GSE mortgage-backed pass-through

securities 39280 443 39714

Municipal securities 2322 29 -- 2351

Mutual funds 1689 93 -- 1782

43291 565 43847

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

Available for sale at December 31 2010

Ginnie Mae and GSE mortgage-backed pass-through

securities 29210 336 10 29436

Ginnie Mae collateralized mortgage obligations 5335 5341

Municipal securities 2228 12 76 2164

Mutual funds 1626 41 -- 1667

$38399 397 188 $38608
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The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale at December 31 2011 by contractual maturity are

shown below Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call

or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties

Available for Sate

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

One to five years
104 105

Five to ten years
376 381

After ten years 1842 1865

2322 2351

Ginnie Mae and GSE mortgage-backed pass-through securities 39280 39714

Mutual funds 1689 1782

$43291 $43847

Certain investment securities are reported in the financial statements at an amount less than their historical cost

Total fair value of these investments at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 were $4199000 and

$9159000 respectively which is approximately 9.6% and 23.7% of the Companys investment portfolio

respectively

Should the impairment of any of these securities become other than temporary the cost basis of the investment will

be reduced and the resulting loss recognized in net income in the period the other-than-temporary impairment is

identified

The following table shows the Companys investments gross unrealized losses and fair value aggregated by

investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position

at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

At December 31 2011 Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Ginnie Mae and GSE mortgage-backed

pass-through securities 4180 19 4199

At December 31 2010 Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Ginnie Mae and GSE mortgage-backed

pass-through securities 5055 109 51 5106 110

Ginnie Mae collateralized mortgage

obligations 2225 -- -- 2225

Municipal securities 1828 76 -- -- 1828 76

9108 187 51 9159 188

Mortgage-ba cked pass-through securities The contractual cash flows of those investments are guaranteed by either

Ginnie Mae U.S Government agency or by U.S Government-sponsored entities Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac

institutions which the U.S Government has affirmed its commitment to support Accordingly it is expected that the

securities would not be settled at price less than the amortized cost of the Companys investment

Together with mortgage loans investment securities with total market value of $5341000 were pledged at

December 31 2010 to secure FHLB advances and three letters of credit No investment securities were pledged at

December 31 2011 to secure FHLB advances and four letters of credit
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Investment securities with total market value of $9369000 and $9047000 were pledged at December 31 2011

and December 31 2010 respectively to secure repurchase agreement

gross gain of $934000 and gross loss of $15000 resulting from sales of available for sale securities were

realized during the year ended December 31 2011 with net tax expense of $312000 gross gain of $306000

and gross loss of $3000 resulting from sales of available for sale securities were realized during the year ended

December 31 2010 with net tax expense of$103000

Loans

Classes of loans include

December 31

2011 2010

Real estate loans

Commercial 100126 94595

Residential 164420 169274

Construction 17980 24705

Commercial loans 30961 22360

Municipal loans 740 2718

Consumer loans 2860 3943

317087 317595

Deduct

Undisbursed loan proceeds
12 443

Deferred loan fees net 434 225

Allowance for loan losses 4132 4212

4578 4880

312509 312715

Loans being serviced by the Company for investors primarily Freddie Mac totaled approximately $95653000 and

$115855000 as of December 312011 and 2010 respectively Such loans are not included in the preceding table

The aggregate fair value of capitalized mortgage servicing rights at December 31 2011 and 2010 is based on

comparable market values and expected cash flows with impairment assessed based on portfolio characteristics

including product type investor type and interest rates At December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 the fair value

of mortgage servicing rights was approximately $577000 and $689000 respectively

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010

Mortgage servicing rights

Balance at beginning of year 689 707

Servicing rights capitalized 83 212

Amortization of servicing rights 182 211
Addition to valuation allowance 13 19
Balance at end of year

577 689
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At December 31 2011 and 2010 the Company had outstanding commitments to originate loans of approximately

$10215000 and $6110000 The outstanding commitments for 2011 included $3054000 for one-to four-family

mortgage loans $2064000 for commercial real estate loans and $5097000 for commercial loans The outstanding

commitments for 2010 included $3630000 for one-to four-family mortgage loans $1580000 for commercial real

estate loans and $900000 for commercial loans In addition the Company had $45274000 and $49485000 of

conditional commitments for lines of credit at December 31 2011 and 2010 Exposure to credit loss in the event of

nonperformance by the other party to the financial instruments for commitments to extend credit is represented by

the contractual or notional amount of those instruments The same credit policies are used in making such

commitments as are used for instruments that are included in the consolidated balance sheets Commitments to

extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the

contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment

of fee Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon the total commitment

amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements Each customers credit worthiness is evaluated on

case-by-case basis The amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary upon extension of credit is based on

managements credit evaluation Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable inventory real estate

equipment and income-producing commercial properties In addition the Company had $8817000 and

$10832000 of letters of credit outstanding at December 31 2011 and 2010 Letters of credit are conditional

commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of customer to third party The credit risk

involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers

Executive officers and directors of Ameriana Bancorp and significant subsidiaries and their related interests are loan

clients of Ameriana Bancorps affiliate bank in the normal course of business An analysis of the 2011 and 2010

activity of these loans is as follows

2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year $11106 $11087

New loans 191 245

Repayments 4343 226
Balance at end of year 6954 $1 1106

At December 31 2011 unfunded commitment amounts related to the outstanding loan balances shown above

totaled $205000

Allowance for Loan Losses

The risk characteristics of each loan portfolio segment are as follows

Commercial Real Estate These loans are viewed primarily as cash flow loans and secondarily as loans secured by

real estate Commercial real estate lending typically involves higher loan principal amounts and the repayment of these

loans is generally dependent on the successful operation of the property securing the loan or the business conducted on

the property securing the loan Commercial real estate loans may be more adversely affected by conditions in the real

estate matkets or in the general economy The properties securing the Banks commercial real estate portfolio are

diverse in terms of type and geographic location Management monitors and evaluates commercial real estate loans

based on collateral and risk grade criteria As general rule the Bank avoids financing single purpose projects unless

other underwriting factors are present to help mitigate risk In addition management tracks the level of owner-occupied

commercial real estate loans versus non-owner occupied loans

Construction Real Estate Construction loans are underwritten utilizing feasibility studies independent appraisal

reviews sensitivity analysis of absorption and lease rates and financial analysis of the developers and property owners

Construction loans are generally based on estimates of costs and value associated with the complete project These

estimates may be inaccurate Construction loans often involve the disbursement of substantial funds with repayment

substantially dependent on the success of the ultimate project Sources of repayment for these types of loans may be

pre-committed permanent loans from approved long-term lenders sales of developed property or an interim loan

commitment from the Bank until permanent financing is obtained These loans are closely monitored by on-site
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inspections and are considered to have higher risks than other real estate loans due to their ultimate repayment being

sensitive to interest rate changes timely completion and sale of the property governmental regulation of real property

general economic conditions and the availability of long-term financing

Commercial Loan and Leases Commercial loans and leases are primarily based on the identified cash flows of the

borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower The cash flows of borrowers

however may not be as expected and the collateral securing these loans and leases may fluctuate in value Most

commercial loans are secured by the assets being financed or other business assets such as accounts receivable or

inventory and may incorporate personal guarantee however some short-term loans may be made on an unsecured

basis In the case of loans secured by accounts receivable the availability of funds for the repayment of these loans may

be substantially dependent on the ability of the borrower to collect amounts due from its customers

Residential and Consumer With respect to residential loans that are secured by one-to four-family residences and

are generally owner occupied the Bank generally establishes maximum loan-to-value ratio and requires private

mortgage insurance if that ratio is exceeded Home equity loans are typically secured by subordinate interest in one-to

four-family residences and consumer loans are secured by consumer assets such as automobiles or recreational

vehicles Some consumer loans are unsecured such as small installment loans and certain lines of credit Repayment of

these loans is primarily dependent on the personal income of the borrowers which can be impacted by economic

conditions in their market areas such as unemployment levels Repayment can also be impacted by changes in property

values on residential properties Risk is mitigated by the fact that the loans are of smaller individual amounts and

spread over large number of borrowers

Municipal Municipal loans are primarily based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and secondarily on the

underlying collateral provided by the borrower Most municipal loans are secured by the full faith and credit of the

municipality The availability of funds for the repayment of these loans may be substantially dependent on the ability

of the municipality to collect taxes or other revenue

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses Methodology

Bank policy is designed to ensure that an adequate allowance for loan and lease losses ALLL will be maintained

Primary responsibility for ensuring that the Bank has in place processes to consistently assess the adequacy of the

ALLL rests with the Board The Board has charged the Chief Credit Officer CCO with responsibility for

establishing the methodology to be used and to assess the adequacy of the ALLL quarterly The methodology will be

reviewed and affirmed by the Loan Review Officer Quarterly the Board will review recommendations from the CCO

to adjust the allowance as appropriate

The methodology employed by the CCO for each portfolio segment will at minimum contain the following

Loans will be segmented by type of loan

Loans will be further segmented by risk grades

The required ALLL for types of performing homogeneous loans which do not have specific reserve will be

determined by applying factor based on historical losses averaged over the 12 quarters prior to the most recent

quarter
In those instances where the Banks historical experience is not available the CCO will develop factors

based on industry experience and best practices

All criticized and classified loans will be tested for impairment by applying one of three methodologies

Present value of future cash flows

Fair value of collateral less cost to sell or

The loans observable market price

Loans tested for impairment will be removed from other pools to prevent layering double-counting

The required ALLL for each group
of loans will be added together to determine the total required ALLL for the

Bank The required ALLL will be compared to the current ALLL to determine the required provision to increase

the ALLL or credit to decrease the ALLL
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The historical loss experience is determined by portfolio segment and is based on the actual loss history experienced by
the Bank over the 12 quarters prior to the most recent quarter Management believes the historical loss experience

methodology is appropriate in the current economic environment as it captures loss rates that are comparable to the

current period being analyzed

We also factor in the following qualitative considerations

Changes in policies and procedures

Changes in national regional and local economic and business conditions

Changes in the composition and size of the portfolio and in the terms of loans

Changes in the experience ability and depth of lending management and other relevant staff

Changes in the volume and severity of past due loans the volume of non-accrual loans and the volume and

severity of adversely classified or graded loans

Changes in the quality of the Banks loan review system

Changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans

The existence and effect of any concentration of credit and changes in the level of such concentrations and

The effect of other external factors such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements on the level of

estimated credit losses in the existing portfolio

The following tables present the balance and activity in allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans

and impairment methods as of December 31 2011 dollars in thousands

Allowance for Loan Losses and Recorded Investment In Loans

For Year Ended December 31 2011

Commercial Residential Construction Commercial

Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate Loans and Municipal Consumer

LoansLoans Loans Loans Leases Loans Total

Balanceatbeginningofyear 639 1584 1254 657 78 4212

Provision credit for losses 45 484 431 402 --- 113 1385

Charge-offs 11 605 536 301 --- 107 1560
Recoveries 76 --- 15 95

Balance at end of period 584 1539 1150 760 --- 99 4132

Ending allowance balance

Individually evaluated for

impairment 445 707 435 142 --- 1737

Collectively evaluated for

impairment 139 832 715 618 --- 91 2395

Total 584 1539 1150 760 --- 99 4132

Ending loan balance

Individually evaluated for

impairment 4891 6440 3672 935 --- 44 15982

Collectively evaluated for

impairment 95235 157980 14308 30026 740 2816 301105

Total 100126 164420 17980 30961 740 2860 317087
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The following table presents the balance in allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans and

impairment methods as of December 31 2010 dollars in thousands

Allowance for Loan Losses and Recorded Investment In Loans

For Year Ended December 31 2010

Commercial Residential Construction Commercial

Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate Loans and

Policy for Charging Off Loans

Consumer

Loans

loan should be charged off at any point in time when it no longer can be considered bankable asset meaning

collectable within the parameters of policy The Bank shall not renew any loan or put loan on demand basis only to

defer problem nor is it appropriate to attempt long-term recoveries while reporting loans as assets An unsecured

loan generally should be charged off no later than when it is 120 days past due as to principal or interest For loans in

the legal process
of foreclosure against collateral of real and/or liquid value the 120-day rule does not apply Such

charge-offs can be deferred until the foreclosure process progresses to the point where the Bank can adequately

determine whether or not any
ultimate loss will result In similar instances where other legal actions will cause

extraordinary delays such as the settlement of an estate yet collateral of value is realizable the 120-day period could

be extended When loan is unsecured or not fully collateralized the loan should be charged off or written down to the

documented collateral value rather than merely being placed on non-accrual status

All charge-offs and forgiveness of debt greater than $50000 must be approved by the Loan Committee upon

recommendation by the CCO The Loan Committee consists of the Banks Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating

Officer Chief Credit Officer Chief Marketing Officer and Loan Review Officer Charge-offs between $10000 and

$50000 must be approved by the CCO Decisions to defer the charge off of loan must be approved by the CCO

Municipal

Loans Loans Loans Leases Loans Total

Balance at beginning of
year 661 1262 1269 686 -- 127 4005

Provision for losses 200 1059 304 365 -- 1933

Charge-offs 238 737 525 398 -- 72 1970
Recoveries 16 -- 206 -- 18 244

Balanceatendofyear 639 1584 1254 657 -- 78 4212

Ending allowance balance

Individually evaluated for

impairment 406 876 797 97 -- 2184

Collectively evaluated for

impairment 233 708 457 560 -- 70 2028

Total 639 1584 1254 657 -- 78 4212

Ending loan balance

Individually evaluated for

impairment 6288 7604 5694 1055 -- 42 20683

Collectively evaluated for

impairment 88307 161670 19011 21305 2718 3901 296912

Total 94595 169274 24705 22360 2718 3943 317595
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Narrative Description of Borrower Rating

Grade Highest quality Pass
This loan represents credit extension of the highest quality The borrowers historic at least five years cash flows

manifest extremely large and stable margins of coverage Balance sheets are conservative well capitalized and liquid

After considering debt service for proposed and existing debt projected cash flows continue to be strong and provide

ample coverage
The borrower typically reflects broad geographic and product diversification and has broad access to

alternative financial markets Also included in this category may be loans secured by U.S government securities U.S

government agencies highly rated municipal bonds insured savings accounts and insured certificates of deposit drawn on

high quality banks

Grade Excellent Quality Pass
This loan has sound primary and secondary source of repayment The borrower has proven access to alternative sources

of fmancing This loan carries low level of risk with minimal loss
exposure

The borrower has the ability to perform

according to the terms of the credit facility The margins of cash flow coverage are strong Loans secured by high quality

traded stocks and lower grade municipal bonds must still be investment grade

Grade Good Quality Pass
This loan has sound primary source of repayment The borrower may have access to alternative sources of financing but

sources are not as widely available as they are to higher graded borrower This loan carries normal level of risk with

minimal loss exposure The borrower has the ability to perform according to the terms of the credit facility The margins of

cash flow coverage are satisfactory but vulnerable to more rapid deterioration than the higher quality loans Real estate

loans in this category display advance rates below the suggested maximum debt
coverage

well in excess of the suggested

level or are leased beyond the loan term by credit tenant

Grade Acceptable Quality Pass
The borrower is reasonable credit risk and demonstrates the ability to repay the debt from normal business operations

Risk factors may include reliability of margins and cash flows liquidity dependence on single product or industry

cyclical trends depth of management or limited access to alternative financing sources Historic financial information

may indicate erratic performance but current trends are positive Quality of financial information is adequate but is not

as detailed and sophisticated as information found on higher graded loans If adverse circumstances arise the impact on

the borrower may be significant All small business loans extended based upon credit scoring should be classified in this

category unless deterioration occurs in which case they should bear one of the below mentioned grades

Grade Mar2inal Quality Pass
The borrower is an acceptable credit risk and while it can demonstrate it has the ability to repay the debt from normal

business operations the coverage is not as strong as an Acceptable Quality loan Weakness in one or more areas are

defined Risk factors would typically include higher leverage position than desirable low liquidity weak or sporadic

cash flow the lack of reasonably current and complete financial information and/or overall financial trends are erratic

Grade Elevated Risk Manaiement Attention Watch
The borrower while at origination is not considered high risk potential there are characteristics related to the financial

condition and/or level of concern regarding either or both the primary and secondary source of repayment that may

preclude this from being pass credit These credit facilities are considered pass credits but exhibit the potential of

developing more serious weakness in their operation going forward Usually credit in this category will be upgraded

or downgraded on further analysis within short period of time

Grade Special Mention

These credit facilities have developing weaknesses that deserve extra attention from the loan officer and other

management personnel If the developing weakness is not corrected or mitigated there may be deterioration in the ability

of the borrower to repay the Banks debt in the future This grade should not be assigned to loans which bear certain

peculiar risks normally associated with the type of financing involved unless circumstances have caused the risk to
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increase to level higher than would have been acceptable when the credit was originally approved Loans where actual

not potential weaknesses or problems are clearly evident and significant should generally be graded in one of the grade

categories below

Grade Substandard

Loans and other credit extensions bearing this grade are considered to be inadequately protected by the current sound

worth and debt service capacity of the borrower or of any pledged collateral These obligations even if apparently

protected by collateral value have well-defined weaknesses related to adverse financial managerial economic market

or political conditions which have clearly jeopardized repayment of principal and interest as originally intended

Furthermore there is the possibility that some future loss will be sustained by the Bank if such weaknesses are not

corrected Clear loss potential however does not have to exist in
any

individual assets classified as substandard

Grade Doubtful

Loans and other credit extensions graded have all the weaknesses inherent in those graded with the added

characteristic that the severity of the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full highly questionable or improbable

based upon currently existing facts conditions and values The probability of some loss is extremely high but because of

certain important and reasonably specific factors the amount of loss cannot be determined Such pending factors could

include merger or liquidation additional capital injection refinancing plans or perfection of liens on additional collateral

Loans in this classification should be placed in nonaccrual status with collections applied to principal on the Banks

books

Grade 10 Loss

Loans in this classification are considered uncollectible and cannot be justified as viable asset of the Bank This

classification does not mean the loan has absolutely no recovery value but that it is neither practical nor desirable to

defer writing off this loan even though partial recovery may be obtained in the future

The following tables present the credit risk profile of the Companys loan portfolio based on rating category and

payment activity as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 dollars in thousands

Loan Portfolio Quality Indicators

At December 31 2011

Commercial Residential Construction Commercial

Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate Loans and Municipal Consumer

Loans Loans Loans Leases Loans Loans Total

Rating

Pass Grades 1-5 82701 156783 12204 28513 740 2860 283801

Watch Grade 7257 1100 2210 1200 --- --- 11767

SpecialMentionGrade7 5037 90 135 318 --- --- 5580

Substandard Grade 5131 1940 --- 286 --- --- 7357

Doubtful Grade --- 4507 3431 644 --- --- 8582

Loss Grade 10 --- --- --- --- --- ---

Total 100126 164420 17980 30961 740 2860 317087
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Loan Portfolio Quality Indicators

At December 31 2010

For all loan classes the entire balance of loan is considered delinquent if the minimum payment contractually

required to be made is not received by the specified due date

The following tables present the Companys loan portfolio aging analysis as of December 31 2011 and December 31

2010 dollars in thousands

Loan Portfolio Aging Analysis

At December 31 2011

30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater than Total Past

Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due

Total Loans
Total Loans 90 days

Current Receivable Accruing

Includes $3049000 in loans classified as nonaccrual that are less than 30 days past due of which $2306000 are

construction loans $425000 are commercial loans and $318000 are residential real estate loans

Includes $27000 residential real estate loan 68 days delinquent that is classified as nonaccrual

Commercial

Real Estate

Loans

Residential

Real Estate

Loans

Construction

Real Estate

Loans

Commercial

Loans and

Leases

Municipal Consumer

Loans Loans Total

Rating

Pass Grades 1-5 76303 159913 16271 21277 2718 3929 280411

Watch Grade 6501 1257 2685 513 --- 10956

Special Mention Grade 5420 216 55 43 --- --- 5734

Substandard Grade 6168 1630 1510 --- --- --- 9308

Doubtful Grade 203 6258 4184 527 --- 14 11186

Loss Grade 10 --- --- --- --- ---

Total 94595 169274 24705 22360 2718 3943 317595

Real estate loans

Commercial --- --- --- --- 100126 100126

Residential 1204 417 4398 6019 158401 164420 243

Construction 4908 --- 1126 6034 11946 17980

Commercial loans and

leases 434 554 219 1207 29754 30961

Municipal loans --- --- --- --- 740 740

Consumer loans 19 2841 2860

Total 6554 973 5752 13279 303808 317087 252
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Loan Portfolio Aging Analysis

At December 31 2010

Total Loans
Total Loans 90 days

Receivable Accruing

Includes $2978000 in loans classified as nonaccrual that are less than 30 days past due of which $1097000 are

residential real estate loans and $1881000 are construction loans

Impaired Loans For all loan classes loan is designated as impaired when based on current information or events

it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due principal and interest according to the contractual

terms of the loan agreement Payments with insignificant delays not exceeding 90 days outstanding are not considered

impaired Certain non-accrual and substantially delinquent loans may be considered to be impaired Generally loans

are placed on non-accrual status at 90 days past due and accrued interest is reversed against earnings unless the loan is

well-secured and in the
process

of collection The accrual of interest on impaired and non-accrual loans is discontinued

when in managements opinion the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due

For all loan classes when interest accrual is discontinued all unpaid accrued interest is reversed when considered

uncollectible When loan is in non-accrual status all cash payments of interest are applied to loan principal Should

the loan be reinstated to accrual status all cash payments of interest received while in non-accrual status will be taken

into income over the remaining life of the loan using the level yield accounting method

0-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater than Total Past

Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current

Real estate loans

Commercial --- --- --- --- 94595 94595

Residential 2069 538 5221 7828 161446 169274 60

Construction 4909 --- --- 4909 19796 24705

Commercial loans and leases --- 203 527 730 21630 22360

Municipal loans --- --- --- --- 2718 2718

Consumer loans 191 11 14 216 3727 3943

Total 7169 752 5762 13683 303912 317595 60
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The following table presents impaired loans as of December 31 2011 dollars in thousands

Impaired Loans

At December 31 2011

Average

Investment in Interest

Unpaid Impaired Income

Recorded Principal Specific
Loans Recognized

Balance Balance Allowance

Loans without specific

valuation allowance

Real estate loans

Commercial --- N/A

Residential N/A

Construction N/A

Commercial loans and leases --- N/A

Municipal loans N/A

Consumer loans --- --- N/A

Total --- N/A

Loans with specific valuation allowance

Real estate loans

Commercial 4891 4891 445 5318 181

Residential 6440 6494 707 6142 100

Construction 3672 3842 435 3962 57

Commercial loans and leases 935 955 142 952 16

Municipal loans ---

Consumer loans 44 44 50

Total 15982 16226 1737 16424 354

All Impaired Loans 15982 16226 1737 16424 354

Includes all loans that were classified as impaired at any time during 2011 not just impaired loans at

December 31 2011 and their
average

balance for only the period during which they were classified as impaired

Interest recorded in income during only the period the loans were classified as impaired for all loans that were

classified as impaired at any time during 2011

For all loan classes interest income on loans individually classified as impaired is recognized on cash basis after all

past due and current principal payments have been made
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The following table presents impaired loans for the year ended December 31 2010 dollars in thousands

Impaired Loans

At December 31 2010

Unpaid

Recorded Principal

Balance Balance

Average

Investment in

Impaired

Specific Loans

Allowance

Includes all loans that were classified as impaired at any time during 2010 not just impaired loans at

December 31 2010 and their average balance for only the period during which they were classified as impaired

Interest recorded in income during only the period the loans were classified as impaired for all loans that were

classified as impaired at any time during 2010

For all loan classes interest income on loans individually classified as impaired is recognized on cash basis after all

past due and current principal payments have been made

Interest

Income

Recognized

Loans without specific

valuation allowance

Real estate loans

Commercial N/A -- --

Residential 60 60 N/A 78 --

Construction N/A -- --

Commercial loans and leases --- N/A -- --

Municipal loans --- N/A -- --

Consumer loans --- N/A -- --

Total 60 60 N/A 78 --

Loans with specific valuation allowance

Real estate loans

Commercial 6288 6288 406 4835 333

Residential 7544 7544 876 6911 190

Construction 5694 5694 797 7739 285

Commercial loans and leases 1055 1055 97 783 30

Municipal loans --- --- -- --

Consumer loans 42 42 49 --

Total 20623 20623 2184 20317 838

All Impaired Loans 20683 20683 2184 20395 838
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Non-Accrual Loans Any loan which becomes 90 days delinquent or has the full collection of principal and interest

in doubt or portion of principal has been charged off will immediately be placed on non-accrual status The loan

does not have to be placed on non-accrual if the charge-off is part of Chapter 13 reaffirmation At the time loan is

placed on non-accrual all accrued but unpaid interest will be reversed from interest income Placing the loan on non-

accrual does not relieve the borrower of the obligation to repay
interest

For all loan classes when loan is in non-accrual status all cash payments of interest are applied to loan principal

loan placed on non-accrual may be restored to accrual status when all delinquent principal and interest has been

brought current and the Bank expects full payment of the remaining contractual principal and interest including any

previous charge-offs The Bank requires period of satisfactory performance of not less than six months before

returning non-accrual loan to accrual status Should the loan be reinstated to accrual status all cash payments of

interest received while in non-accrual status will be taken into income over the remaining life of the loan using the level

yield accounting method

The following table presents the Companys non-accrual loans at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 dollars in

thousands

Loans Accounted for on Non-Accrual Basis

At December 31 At December 31

2011 2010

Real estate loans

Commercial ---

Residential 4500 6258

Construction 3432 4184

Commercial loans and leases 644 731

Municipal loans

Consumer loans --- 14

Total $8576 $11187

Total non-accrual loans at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 included $1706000 and $2245000 of troubled

debt restructurings respectively

Troubled Debt Restructurings TDRs Our loan and lease portfolio includes certain loans where economic

concessions have been granted to borrowers who have experienced financial difficulties These concessions typically

result from loss mitigation efforts and could include reductions in the interest rate payment extensions forgiveness of

principal forbearance or other actions Certain TDRs are classified as non-performing at the time of restructuring and

typically are returned to performing status after considering the borrowers sustained repayment performance for

period of at least six months

When we modify loans and leases in TDR we evaluate any possible impairment similar to other impaired loans

based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the contractual interest rate of the original loan

or lease agreement or use the current fair value of the collateral less selling costs for collateral dependent loans If we

determine that the value of the modified loan is less than the recorded balance of the loan net of previous charge-offs

deferred loan fees or costs and unamortized premium or discount impairment is recognized through specific

allowance or charge-off to the allowance In periods subsequent to modification we evaluate all TDRs including those

that have payment defaults for possible impairment and recognize impairment through the allowance
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The following table presents the Companys troubled debt restructurings at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

dollars in thousands

Troubled Debt Restructurings

Total Nonperforming

At December 31 At December31 At December 31 At December31

2011 2010 2011 2010

Real estate loans

Commercial 5101 4743

Residential 2578 1165 446

Construction 1112 2485 1112 2245

Commercial loans and leases 225 225

Municipal loans

Consumer loans

Total 9016 8393 1783 $2245

Loans classified as troubled debt restructuring during 2011 segregated by class are shown in the table below dollars

in thousands These modifications consisted primarily of interest rate concessions

Modifications

Recorded

Balance Recorded

Number Before Balance After

Real estate loans

Commercial 4719 4669

Residential 10 1323 1350

Construction 1174 1174

Commercial loans and leases 250 250

Municipal loans

Consumer loans

Total 16 7466 7443
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Troubled debt restructured loans which had payment defaults during 2011 segregated by class are shown in the table

below dollars in thousands Default occurs when loan or lease is 90 days or more past
due or transferred to

nonaccrual and is within 12 months of restructuring

Number of Recorded

Defaults Balance

Real estate loans

Commercial

Residential 321

Construction

Commercial loans and leases

Municipal loans

Consumer loans

Total $321

Premises and Equipment

Major classifications of premises and equipment stated at cost are as follows

December 31

2011 2010

Land $4331 $4254

Land improvements 1220 1220

Office buildings 12368 12107

Furniture and equipment 6913 6984

Automobiles 142 145

24974 24710

Less accumulated depreciation 10324 9974

$14650 $14736

Deposits

Deposits by type are as follows

December 31

2011 2010

Demand $157913 $136332

Savings
29043 28836

Certificates of$l00000 or more 42610 44481

Brokered certificates --- 10363

Other certificates 107684 17966

$337250 $337978
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Certificates maturing in years ending after December 31 2011

877562012

257512013

180252014

86312015

46462016

5485Thereafter

$150294

Borrowings

Borrowings at December 31 2011 and 2010 include Federal Home Loan Bank advances totaling $32000000 and

$34000000 with weighted-average rate of 3.15% and 3.70% The advances are secured by combination of first

mortgage loans and overnight deposits At December 31 2011 the pledged mortgage loans totaled $127843000

Some advances are subject to restrictions or penalties in the event of prepayment

Borrowings at December 31 2011 and 2010 also include subordinated debentures in the amount of $10310000
For the five

years prior to March 15 2011 the rate was equal to the average of 6.7 1% and the three-month London

Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR plus 150 basis points Effective March 15 2011 the securities bear rate equal

to 150 basis points over the three-month LIBOR At December 31 2011 the interest rate was 2.05% These

subordinated debentures mature on March 15 2036

Borrowings at December 31 2011 also include repurchase agreement with Barclays Capital Inc in the amount of

$7500000 with rate of 4.42% The repurchase agreement has embedded interest rate caps with four-year term

ending on September 22 2012 that have total notional value of $15000000 The interest rate caps will provide

reduction of the interest rate during any quarter if three-month LIBOR exceeds 3.81% on the quarterly determination

date These embedded interest rate caps are considered to be clearly and closely related to the host instrument The

repurchase agreement has seven-year term with final repurchase date of September 22 2015 and provides

Barclays Capital Inc with an early termination right on the four-year anniversary date of September 22 2012 At

December 31 2011 pledged investment securities for this repurchase agreement had market value of $9369000

Aggregate annual maturities of borrowings at December 2011 are

FHLB Repurchase Subordinated

Advances Agreement Debentures Total

Maturities in
years ending December 31

2012 $4000 -- -- $4000

2013 -- -- -- --

2014 -- -- -- --

2015 23000 $7500 -- 30500

2016 -- -- -- --

Thereafter 5000 -- $10310 15310

$32000 $7500 $10310 $49810
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Income Taxes

The components of the net deferred tax asset at December 31 2011 and 2010 are as follows

December 31

20 2010

Deferred tax assets

Deferred compensation 812 777

General loan loss reserves 2012 1998

State and federal net operating loss carryforward and tax credits carryforward 4555 4526

Other real estate owned 619 124

Other 52 62

8050 7487

Deferred tax liabilities

Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale 189 71
FFILB stock dividends 251 284

Deferred loan fees 233 259

Mortgage servicing rights 241 286

Deferred state tax 210 199

Depreciation 230 224

Prepaid expenses 212 187
Goodwill 173 152

1739 1662

Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance 6311 5825

Valuation allowance

Beginning balance 879 836

Change during the period 254 43

Ending balance 1133 879

Net deferred tax asset 5178 4946

As of December 31 2011 the Company had approximately $18404000 of state tax loss carryforward available to

offset future franchise tax As of December 31 2011 the Company had approximately $4676000 of federal tax loss

carryforward available to offset future federal tax Also at December 31 2011 the Company had approximately

$1401000 of tax credits available to offset future federal income tax The state loss carryforward begins to expire in

2023 The federal loss carryforward expires in 2026 The tax credits begin to expire in 2023 Included in the

$1401000 of tax credits available to offset future federal income tax are approximately $666000 of alternative

minimum tax credits which have no expiration date Management believes that the Company will be able to utilize the

benefits recorded for both state and federal loss carryforwards and federal credits within the allotted time periods

Retained earnings at December 31 2011 includes an allocation of income to bad debt deductions of approximately

$11883000 for which no provision for federal income taxes has been made If in the future this portion of retained

earnings is used for
any purpose

other than to absorb bad debt losses including redemption of bank stock or excess

dividends or loss of bank status federal income taxes may be imposed at the then applicable rates The unrecorded

deferred income tax liability on the above amount was approximately $4000000
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The effective income tax rate on income from continuing operations is reconciled to the statutory corporate tax rate

as follows

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010

Statutory federal tax rate 34.0% 34.0%

Tax credits --- 0.1

Cash value of life insurance 28.6 92.3

Tax exempt interest municipal securities and municipal loans 4.6 22.8

Other 1.0 3.6

Effective tax rate 1.8% 77.6%

The expense benefit for income taxes consists of the following

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010

Federal

Current 370 29

Deferred 349 271

Tax expense benefit 21 242

The Company or one of its subsidiaries files income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various states and

foreign jurisdictions With few exceptions the Company is no longer subject to U.S federal state and local or

non-U.S income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2007

10 Employee Benefits

Multi-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan The Company is participating employer in multi-employer

defined benefit pension plan Since the defined benefit pension plan is multi-employer plan no separate actuarial

valuations are made with respect to each participating employer The Company froze the defined benefit pension plan

on June 30 2004 to stop accruing benefits to plan participants beyond what was already earned to that date and to

prevent new participants from entering the plan The change was made in an effort to control and reduce pension plan

expense in the future The Company will continue to make contributions to meet required funding obligations

The Company participates in the Pentegra Defined Benefit Plan for Financial Institutions the Pentegra Plan non-

contributory pension plan covering all qualified employees The trustees of the Financial Institutions Retirement Fund

administer the Pentegra Plan employer identification number 35-0377080 and plan number 6087 The Pentegra Plan

operates as multi-employer plan for accounting purposes and as multiple-employer plan under the Employee

Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and the internal Revenue Code There are no collective bargaining agreements in

place that require contributions to the Pentegra Plan

The Pentegra Plan is single plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 413c and as result all of the assets stand

behind all of the liabilities Accordingly under the Pentegra Plan contributions made by participating employer may be

used to provide benefits to participants of other participating employers There is no separate valuation of the Pentegra

Plan benefits or segregation of the Pentegra Plan assets specifically for the Company because the Pentegra Plan is multi

employer plan and separate actuarial valuations are not made with respect to each employer If the Company chooses to

stop participating in the multi-employer plan they may be required to pay an amount based on the underfunded status of

the plan referred to as withdrawal liability The funded status of the Pentegra Plan market value of plan assets divided

by funding target as of July 12011 and 2010 was 78.19% and 79.25% respectively
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The Company had expenses of $499000 and $376000 for the years ended December 2011 and 2010 respectively

Company cash contributions to the Pentegra Plan for these same periods were $545000 and $454000 respectively

Total contributions made to the Pentegra Plans were $203020000 and $155164000 for the plan years
ended June 30

2011 and 2010 respectively The Companys contributions to the Pentegra Plan were not more than 5% of the total

contributions to the plan

401k Plan The Companys self-administered 401k plan became effective April 2008 Prior to that date the

Company was participating employer in multi-employer 401k plan The current plan covers substantially all full-

time employees of the Company The Company matches employees contributions to the 401k plan at the rate of

100% for the first 4% of base salary contributed by participants Effective April 2011 the Company added an

employee stock ownership plan component to its 401k plan Matching contributions made to the 401k plan by the

Company will be used to purchase shares of Ameriana Bancorp stock

Pension expense
for the two plans totaled $740000 and $615000 in 2011 and 2010 respectively

Split-dollar Life Insurance Agreements The Company adopted the accounting guidance for separate agreements which

split dollar life insurance policy benefits between an employer and employee This guidance requires the employer to

recognize liability for future benefits payable to the employee under these agreements At December 31 2011 and

2010 the Company had recorded liability of $1048000 and $1216000 respectively During 2011 and 2010 the

Company recognized net income of $168000 and net expense totaling $4000 respectively

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Effective January 2008 the Company terminated the supplemental

retirement plan the Plan that provided retirement and death benefits to certain officers and directors At that

time the officers and directors covered by that Plan voluntarily elected to forego their benefits under the Plan

Instead the Company entered into separate agreements with these officers and directors that provide retirement and

death benefits The Company is recording an expense equal to the projected present value of the payment due at the

full eligibility date The liability for the plan at December 31 2011 and 2010 was $1949000 and $187900

respectively The expense
for the plan was $198000 and $184000 for 2011 and 2010 respectively

The Company has entered into employment or change in control agreements with certain officers that provide for the

continuation of salary and certain benefits for specified period of time under certain conditions Under the terms of

the agreements these payments could occur in the event of change in control of the Company as defined along with

other specific conditions The severance payment under these agreements is generally three times the annual salary of

the officer in the event of change in control

Stock Options Under the 1996 Stock Option and Incentive Plan 1996 Plan and the 2006 Long-Term Incentive

Plan 2006 Plan the Company has granted options to individuals to purchase common stock at price equal to the

fair market value at the date of grant subject to the terms and conditions of the plans The 1996 Plan and the 2006 Plan

require that options be granted at the fair market value of the stock on the date of the grant Options vest and are fully

exercisable when granted or over an extended period subject to continuous employment or under other conditions set

forth in the plans The period for exercising options shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant The plans also

permit grants of stock appreciation rights An amendment of the 1996 Plan extended the plans term by five years and

increased the number of shares reserved under the plan from 176000 to 352000 shares The 2006 Plan permits
the

granting of up to 225000 shares The 1996 Plan and 2006 Plan were approved by the stockholders of the Company

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using Black-Scholes option pricing model

There were no stock options granted or exercised in 2011 or in 2010
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summary of option activity under the Plan as of December 31 2011 and changes during the year then ended is

presented below

Weighted-

Average

Weighted- Remaining

Average Contractual Aggregate

Exercise Price Term Intrinsic ValueShares

Outstanding beginning of year

Forfeited

Outstanding end of year

Exercisable end of year

169482 $14.09 3.95 -0-

1500 13.22

167982 $14.09 2.95 -0-

167582 $14.11 2.94

As of December 31 2011 there was $1000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-

based compensation arrangements granted under the Plan That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-

average period of 0.17 years

During 2011 the Company recognized $3000 of share-based compensation expense

11 Dividend and Capital Restrictions

The payment of dividends by the Company depends substantially upon receipt of dividends from the Bank which is

subject to various regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends Under current regulations the Bank may not

declare or pay cash dividend or repurchase any of its capital stock if the effect thereof would cause its net worth to be

reduced below regulatory capital requirements or the amount required for its liquidation accounts

In addition without prior approval current regulations allow the Bank to pay dividends to the Company not exceeding

retained net income for the applicable calendar year to date plus retained net income for the preceding two years

Application is required by the Bank to pay dividends in excess of this restriction

On July 26 2010 following joint examination by and discussions with the FDIC and the Indiana Department of

Financial Institutions DFI the Board of Directors of the Bank adopted resolution agreeing to receive prior written

consent from the FDIC and the DFI before declaring or paying any dividends All requests from the Bank to declare

and pay quarterly dividend to the Company have been approved by the FDIC and DFI prior to approval by the Banks

Board of Directors and payment by the Bank

On December 17 2009 following an off-site review by the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago the Board of Directors

of the Company adopted resolution agreeing to seek and obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve Bank at least

thirty days before taking any of the following actions

The payment of corporate dividends

The payment of interest on trust preferred securities

Any increase in debt or issuance of trust preferred obligations and

The redemption of Company stock

All requests from the Company to pay quarterly dividends to shareholders and to make quarterly interest payments

on the trust preferred securities have been approved by the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago prior to approval by

the Companys Board of Directors and payment by the Company There have been no requests from the Company
for approval of an increase in debt or issuance of trust preferred obligations or redemption of Company stock

85



Ameriana Bancorp

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

table dollar amounts in thousands except
share data

2011 2010

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Per Share Average

Net Income Shares Amount Net Income Shares

Income available to common

shareholders $1142 2988952 $0.38 553 2988952 $0.19

Effect of Dilutive Stock Options

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Income available to common

shareholders and assumed

conversions $1142 2988952 $0.38 553 2988952 $0.19

Options to purchase 167982 and 169482 shares of common stock at exercise prices of $9.25 to $15.56 per share

were outstanding at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively but were not included in the computation of diluted

earnings per share because the options were anti-dilutive

13 Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income components and related taxes were as follows

2011 2010

Unrealized gain on securities available for sale arising during the period 1266 682

Less reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income 919 303

Other comprehensive income before tax effect 347 379

Tax expense
118 139

Other comprehensive income 229 240

14 Accumulated other comprehensive income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income included in shareholders equity are as follows

2011 2010

Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities net of income tax expense of $189

and $71 at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively $367 $138

12 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share

Per Share

Amount
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Ameriana Bancorp

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

table dollar amounts in thousands except share data

15 Regulatory Matters

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies and is

assigned to capital category The assigned capital category is largely determined by three ratios that are calculated

according to the regulations The ratios are intended to measure capital relative to assets and credit risk associated

with those assets and off-balance sheet exposures The capital category assigned can also be affected by qualitative

judgments made by regulatory agencies about the risk inherent in the entitys activities that are not part of the

calculated ratios

There are five capital categories defined in the regulations ranging from well capitalized to critically

undercapitalized Classification in any of the undercapitalized categories can result in actions by regulators that

could have material effect on banks operations At December 31 2011 and 2010 the Bank was categorized as

well capitalized and met all subject capital adequacy requirements There are no conditions or events since

December 31 2011 that management believes have changed this classification

On July 26 2010 following joint examination by and discussions with the FDIC and the Indiana Department of

Financial Institutions the Board of Directors of the Bank adopted resolution agreeing to among other things

adopt capital plan to increase its Tier Leverage Ratio to 8.50% by June 30 2010 and to maintain Total Risk-

Based Capital Ratio of 12.00%

Actual and required capital amounts and ratios for the Bank are as follows

December 31 2011

Required for Required For

Well Capitalized Adequate Capital Actual Capital

Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount

Total risk-based capital ratio 10.00% $31573 8.00% $25258 13.58% $42874

Tier risk-based capital ratio 6.00 18944 4.00 12629 12.32 38883

Tier leverage ratio 5.00 21055 3.00 12633 9.23 38883

December 31 2010

Required for Required For

Well Capitalized Adequate Capital Actual Capital

Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount

Total risk-based capital ratio 10.00% $31626 8.00% $25300 13.11% $41468

Tier risk-based capital ratio 6.00 18975 4.00 12650 11.86 37493

Tier leverage ratio 5.00 21003 3.00 12602 8.93 37493
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16 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date fair

value hierarchy has been established that requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize

the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be

used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities quoted prices in active markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be

corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant

to the fair value of the assets or liabilities

Following is description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on

recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying balance sheet as well as the general classification

of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy

Available-forSale Securities

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market securities are classified within Level of the

valuation hierarchy The securities valued in Level are mutual funds

Level securities include U.S agency and U.S government sponsored enterprise mortgage-backed securities

and municipal securities Level securities are valued by third party pricing service commonly used in the

banking industry utilizing observable inputs and the values are reviewed by the Banks management The

pricing provider utilizes evaluated pricing models that vary based on asset class These models incorporate

available market information including quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics and because

many fixed-income securities do not trade on daily basis apply available information through processes

such as benchmark curves benchmarking of like securities sector grouping and matrix pricing In addition

model processes
such as an option adjusted spread model is used to develop prepayment and interest rate

scenarios for securities with prepayment features

Level securities consist of municipal securities and are valued by third party who uses discounted cash

flow model to determine the price The key inputs to the discounted cash flow model are the coupon yield

and expected maturity date Appropriate market yields are determined based on credit structure and related

Wall Street trades quotes and issuances
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The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying balance sheet

measured at fair value on recurring basis and the level within the ASC 820 fair value hierarchy in which the fair

value measurements fall at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical

Assets

Level

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

Level

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

The following is reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance for the year ended December 31 2011 of

fair value measurements recognized in the accompanying balance sheet using significant unobservable Level

inputs dollars in thousands

Year Ended

December 312011

Beginning balance

Total realized and unrealized gains and losses

Included in net income

Included in other comprehensive income 29

Purchases issuances and settlements 2321

Transfers in or out of Level

Ending balance 2351

Available-for-sale securities Fair Value

At December 31 2011

Ginnie Mae and GSE mortgage-backed pass-

through securities 39714 -- 39714 --

Municipal securities 2351 -- -- 2351

Mutual funds 1782 1782 -- --

43847 1782 39714 2351

At December 31 2010

Ginnie Mae and GSE mortgage-backed pass

through securities 29436 -- 29436 --

Ginnie Mae collateralized mortgage

obligations 5341 -- 5341 --

Municipal securities 2164 -- 2164 --

Mutual funds 1667 1667 -- --

38608 1667 36941 --
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Following is description of valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on non

recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying balance sheet as well as the general classification of such

instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy

Impaired Loans Collateral Dependent

Loans for which it is probable that the Company will not collect all principal and interest due according to

contractual terms are measured for impairment Allowable methods for determining the amount of impairment

include estimating fair value using the fair value of the collateral for collateral-dependent loans

If the impaired loan is identified as collateral dependent then the fair value method of measuring the amount of

impairment is utilized This method requires obtaining current independent appraisal of the collateral and applying

discount factor to the value

Impaired loans that are collateral dependent are classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy when

impairment is determined using the fair value method

Other Real Estate Owned

The fair value of the Companys other real estate owned is determined using Level inputs which include

current and prior appraisals and estimated costs to sell The change in fair value of other real estate owned on

December 31 2011 that was recognized during the year ended December 31 2011 was $1185000 which was

recorded as direct charge to current earnings

The following table presents
the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying balance sheet

measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis and the level within the ASC 820 fair value hierarchy in which the

fair value measurements fall at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

Fair Value Level Level Level

At December 31 2011

Impaired loans $10442 $-- $10442

Other real estate owned 2486 2486

At December 31 2010

Impaired loans $17388 $-- $17388

Other real estate owned 4028 4028
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values are based on estimates using present value and other valuation tecimiques in instances where quoted market

prices are not available These techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used including discount rates

and estimates of future cash flows Accordingly the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent and

should not be construed to represent the underlying value of the Company

The following table presents the estimates of fair value of financial instruments

December 31 2011 December 31 2010

Carrying Fair Canying Fair

Value Value Value Value

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9709 9709 11747 11747

Investment securities available for sale 43847 43847 38608 38608
Loans held for sale 252 252 91 91

Loans 312509 322066 312715 318753

Stock in FHLB 4472 4472 5101 5101

Mortgage servicing rights 577 577 689 689

Interest and dividends receivable 1089 1089 1065 1065

Liabilities

Deposits 337250 339930 337978 340430

Borrowings 49810 46780 51810 50061

Drafts payable 2532 2532 1594 1594

Interest payable 77 77 113 113

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Stock in FHLB The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets

approximate those assets fair values

Loans Held for Sale The canying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets approximate those assets fair

values

Loans The fair values for loans are estimated using discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates used to

price new similar loans to schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on loans

Mortgage Servicing Rights The fair value is determined by valuation performed by an independent third party that is

reviewed by the Banks management The valuation is based on the discounted cash flow method utilizing Bloombergs
Median Forecasted Prepayment Speeds for mortgage-backed securities assumed to possess enough similarities to the

Banks servicing portfolio to facilitate comparison

Interest Receivable/Payable The fair value of accrued interest receivable/payable approximates carrying values

Deposits The fair values of non-maturity demand savings and money market accounts are equal to the amount payable

on demand at the balance sheet date Fair values for certificates of deposit are estimated using discounted cash flow

calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on deposits to schedule of aggregated expected monthly
maturities on deposits

Borrowings The fair value of borrowings is estimated using discounted cash flow calculation based on borrowing

rates for periods comparable to the remaining terms to maturity of the borrowings

Drafts Payable The fair value approximates carrying value
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17 Parent Company Financial Information

The following are condensed financial statements for the parent company Ameriana Bancorp only

December 31

Balance Sheets
2011 2010

Assets

Cash 399 339

Investment in Bank 41519 40630

Investments in affiliates 312 320

Other assets 2640 2336

$44870 $43625

Liabilities and shareholders equity

Notes payable other $10310 $10310

Other liabilities 55 64

Shareholders equity 34505 33251

$44870 $43625

Year Ended December 31

Statements of Income 2011 2010

Dividends from Bank 1075 1325

Interest income 14

1082 1339

Operating expense
902 1161

Income before income tax benefit and equity in undistributed income of Bank 180 178

Income tax benefit 304 390

484 568

Equity in undistributed income of Bank and affiliates distributions in excess

of equity in income 658 15

Net Income 1142 553
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Year Ended December 31

2011 2010Statements of Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Net income $1142 553

Items not requiring providing cash

Undistributed income or distributions of Bank and affiliates in excess of equity in 658 15

income

Other adjustments 304 273
Net cash provided by operating activities 180 295

Financing Activities

Cash dividends paid 120 120
Net cash used in financing activities 120 120

Change in cash 60 175

Cash at beginning of year 339 164

Cash at end of
year 399 339
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18 Current and Future Accounting Matters

Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB

ASU No 2011-02 In April 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting

Standards Update ASU No 2011-02 Receivables Topic 310 Creditors Determination of Whether

Restructuring is Troubled Debt Restructuring ASU 2011-02 clarifies whether loan modifications constitute

troubled debt restructuring In evaluating whether restructuring constitutes troubled debt restructuring

creditor must separately conclude that both of the following exist the restructuring constitutes concession

and the debtor is experiencing financial difficulties ASU 2011-02 is effective for the first interim and

annual period beginning on or after June 15 2011 and should be applied retrospectively to the beginning of the

annual period of adoption The Company adopted the applicable required additional disclosures effective July

2011 Adoption of these additional disclosures did not have material effect on the Companys financial

position or results of operations

ASU No 2011-03 Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurchase Agreements In April 2011 FASB issued

ASU No 2011-03 The amendments in this ASU remove from the assessment of effective control the criterion

relating to the transferors ability to repurchase or redeem financial assets on substantially the agreed terms even in

the event of default by the transferee The amendments in this ASU also eliminate the requirement to demonstrate

that the transferor possesses adequate collateral to fund substantially all the cost of purchasing replacement financial

assets The guidance in this ASU is effective for the first interim or annual period beginning on or after December

15 2011 The guidance should be applied prospectively to transactions or modifications of existing transactions that

occur on or after the effective date Early adoption is not permitted The Company will adopt the methodologies

prescribed by this ASU by the date required and does not anticipate that the ASU will have material effect on its

financial position or results of operations

ASU No 2011-04 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements
in

U.S GAAP and IFRSs In May 2011 FASB issued ASU No 2011-04 The amendments in this ASU generally

represent clarifications of Topic 820 but also include some instances where particular principle or requirement for

measuring fair value or disclosing information about fair value measurements has changed This ASU results in

common principles and requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value

measurements in accordance with U.S GAAP and IFRSs The amendments in this ASU are to be applied

prospectively For public entities the amendments are effective during interim and annual periods beginning after

December 15 2011 Early application by public entities is not permitted The Company will adopt the

methodologies prescribed by this ASU by the date required and does not anticipate that the ASU will have

material effect on its financial position or results of operations

ASU No 201 1-05 Amendments to Topic 220 Comprehensive Income In June 2011 FASB issued ASU No

2011-05 Under the amendments in this ASU an entity has the option to present the total of comprehensive income

the components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income either in single continuous

statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements In both choices an entity is

required to present each component of net income along with total net income each component of other

comprehensive income along with total for other comprehensive income and total amount for comprehensive

income This ASU eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the

statement of changes in stockholders equity The amendments in this ASU do not change the items that must be

reported in other comprehensive income or when an item of other comprehensive income must be reclassified to net

income The amendments in this ASU should be applied retrospectively For public entities the amendments are

effective for fiscal years
and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15 2011 Early adoption

is permitted because compliance with the amendments is already permitted
The amendments do not require any

transition disclosures Due to the
recency

of this pronouncement the Company is evaluating its timing of adoption

of ASU 2011-05 but will adopt the ASU retrospectively by the due date

ASU No 2011-08 Testing Goodwill for Impairment In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-08

Intangibles-Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Goodwill for Impairment The amendments in this ASU

will allow an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform the two

94



step quantitative goodwill impairment test Under these amendments an entity would not be required to

calculate the fair value of reporting unit unless the entity determines based on qualitative assessment that it

is more likely than not that its fair value is less than its carrying amount The amendments include number of

events and circumstances for an entity to consider in conducting the qualitative assessment ASU 2011-08 is

effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December

15 2011 Early adoption is permitted including for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed as

of date before September 15 2011 if an entitys financial statements for the most recent annual or interim

period have not yet been issued The Company will adopt this ASU by the date required and does not anticipate

that it will have material effect on our consolidated financial statements

ASU No 2011-09 Compensation Retirement Benefits Multi-Employer Plans In September 2011 the

Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued ASU No 2011-09 This ASU requires companies who

participate in multiemployer benefit plans to provide additional separate quantitative and qualitative disclosures

for multiemployer pension plans and multiemployer other postretirement benefit plans For companies that

participate in multiemployer pension plans the ASU requires detailed information including the plan names and

identifying number level of an employers participation including the amount of an employers contributions

the financial health of multiemployer plan including an indication of the ftinded status pending changes in

funding plans and surcharges on the contributions to the plan and the nature of the employer commitments to

the plan In addition if public information is not available outside of the employers financial statements about

the plan the employer is required to make additional disclosures including description of the nature of the

plan benefits qualitative description of the extent to which the employer could be responsible for the

obligations of the plan and other quantitative information if available about the plan such as total assets

actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits and total contributions received by the plan The ASU is

effective for public companies for annual periods for fiscal years ending after December 15 2011 The

Company participates in multiemployer pension plan and will be required to include additional disclosures

related to the ASU The Company has included the required disclosure in Note 10 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31 2011

19 Significant Estimates Concentrations and Contingencies

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require disclosure of certain significant

estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations Estimates related to the allowance for loan losses

are reflected in the footnote regarding loans Current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations of credit risk are

discussed in the footnote on commitments and credit risk

Litigation

Neither the Company nor the Bank is involved in any pending legal proceedings other than routing legal

proceedings occurring in the ordinary course of business Such routine legal proceedings in the aggregate

are believed by management to be immaterial to the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company

Bank-Owned Insurance

Approximately 47% of the Companys investment in bank-owned life insurance was held by two carriers at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

20 Current Economic Conditions

The current protracted economic decline continues to present financial institutions with circumstances and

challenges which in some cases have resulted in large and unanticipated declines in the fair values of investments

and other assets constraints on liquidity and capital and significant credit quality problems including severe

volatility in the valuation of real estate and other collateral supporting loans

At December 31 2011 the Company held $100126000 in commercial real estate loans and $15811000 in loans

collateralized by commercial and development real estate Due to national state and local economic conditions

values for commercial and development real estate have declined significantly and the market for these properties is

depressed
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The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using values and information currently available to the

Company

Given the volatility of current economic conditions the values of assets and liabilities recorded in the financial

statements could change rapidly resulting in material future adjustments in asset values the allowance for loan

losses and capital that could negatively impact the Companys ability to meet regulatory capital requirements and

maintain sufficient liquidity

Risks and Uncertainties

The Companys allowance for loan losses contains certain assumptions on the value of collateral dependent loans as

well as certain economic and industry conditions which may be subject to change within the next year These

changes could have an adverse impact on the allowance for loan loss in the near term
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Item Chan2es in and Disa2reements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys management including the Companys principal executive officer and principal

financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and

procedures as such term is defined in Rule 3a- 15e promulgated under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act Based upon their evaluation the principal

executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that as of the end of the period covered

by this report the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective for the purpose of

ensuring that the information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files or

submits under the Exchange Act with the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC is

recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules

and forms and is accumulated and communicated to the Companys management including

its principal executive and principal financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosure

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Managements annual report on internal control over financial reporting is incorporated herein by

reference to the Companys audited Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Changes to Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except as indicated herein there were no changes in the Companys internal control over financial

reporting during the three months ended December 31 2011 that have materially affected or are

reasonable likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

Not applicable
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information concerning the directors of the Company is incorporated herein by reference to the section

captioned Items to be Voted on by Shareholders Item Election of Directors in the Proxy Statement for the

2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders the Proxy Statement

Information concerning the executive officers of the Company is incorporated herein by reference to Item

Business Executive Officers in Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Information concerning compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act required by this item is

incorporated herein by reference to the cover page of this Form 10-K and the section titled Other Information

Relating to Directors and Executive Officers Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the

Proxy Statement

The Company has adopted Code of Ethics that applies to the Companys principal executive officer

principal accounting and financial officer and senior executive officers For information concerning the Code of

Ethics see the section titled Corporate Governance and Board Matters Code of Ethics in the Proxy Statement

The Code of Ethics is posted on the Companys Internet Web site at www.ameriana.com The Company intends to

satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to or waiver from

provision of the Companys Code of Ethics by posting such information on its Internet site at www.ameriana.com

Information concerning the Audit Committee and its composition and the audit committee financial expert

and other corporate governance matters is incorporated by reference to the section titled Corporate Governance

and Board Matters in the Proxy Statement

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned

Corporate Governance and Board MattersDirector Compensation and Executive Compensation in the Proxy

Statement

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Mana2ement and Related Stockholder

Matters

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned Stock

Ownership in the Proxy Statement

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned

Stock Ownership in the Proxy Statement

Security Ownership of Management

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned

Stock Ownership in the Proxy Statement

Changes in Control

Management of Ameriana Bancorp knows of no arrangements including any pledge by any

person or securities of Ameriana Bancorp the operation of which may at subsequent date result

in change in control of the registrant
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information about Company common stock that may be issued

under the Companys equity compensation plans as of December 31 2011 The Company does

not maintain any equity compensation plans that have not been approved by shareholders

Number of securities

remaining available

for future issuance

Number of securities under equity

to be issued upon Weighted-average compensation plans

the exercise of exercise price of excluding securities

outstanding options outstanding options reflected in the first

Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights column

Equity compensation plans 167982 14.09 222000
approved by security holders

Equity compensation plans

not approved by security holders

Total 167982 14.09 222000

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information concerning certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated herein by
reference to the section captioned Other Information Relating to Directors and Executive OfficersTransactions
with Related Persons in the Proxy Statement

Information concerning director independence is incorporated by reference to the section titled Items to be

Voted on by Shareholders Item Election of Directors in the Proxy Statement

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned Items to

be Voted on by Shareholders Item Ratfication of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm in the

Proxy Statement

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

List of Documents Filed as Part of This Report

Financial Statements The following consolidated financial statements are filed under Item

hereof

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Operations for Each of the Two Years in the Period Ended December

2011

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity for Each of the Two Years in the Period Ended

December 31 2011

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Each of the Two Years in the Period Ended December

31 2011

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Financial Statement Schedules All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable

accounting regulations are either not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have

been omitted

Exhibits The following is list of exhibits as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is

also the Exhibit Index

No Description

3.1 Ameriana Bancorp Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation incorporated herein by

reference to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on

September 18 1989

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws incorporated herein by reference to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 2007

4.1 No long-term debt instrument issued by the Registrant exceeds 10% of consolidated assets or

is registered In accordance with paragraph iii of Item 601 of Regulation S-K the

Registrant will furnish the SEC copies of long-term debt instruments and related agreements

upon request

10.1 Employment Agreement dated January 2011 between Ameriana Bank and Jerome

Gassen

10.2 Employment Agreement dated January 2011 between Ameriana Bank and Timothy

Clark

10.3 Ameriana Bancorp Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Option and Incentive Plan

incorporated herein by reference to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed

with the SEC on May 2003

10.4 Change in Control Severance Agreement dated September 20 2005 by arid between

Ameriana Bank and Trust SB and James Freeman incorporated herein by reference to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2005 filed

with the SEC on November 14 2005

10.5 Employment Agreement effective January 2011 between Ameriana Bank SB and John

Letter

10.6 Supplemental Life Insurance Agreement effective December 20 2007 by and between

Ameriana Bank SB and Jerome Gassen incorporated herein by reference to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 filed with

the SEC on March 31 2008

10.7 Supplemental Life Insurance Agreement effective December 20 2007 by and between

Ameriana Bank SB and Richard Flennessey incorporated herein by reference to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2007 filed with

the SEC on March 31 2008

10.8 Ameriana Bank SB Salary Continuation Agreement dated December 15 2008 between

Ameriana Bank SB and Jerome Gassen incorporated herein by reference to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 filed with

the SEC on March 30 2009

10.9 Ameriana Bank SB Salary Continuation Agreement dated December 18 2008 between

Ameriana Bank SB and Timothy Clark incorporated herein by reference to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 filed with

the SEC on March 30 2009
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10.10 Ameriana Bank SB Supplemental Retirement Plan dated December 10 2008 between

Ameriana Bank SB and Michael Kent incorporated herein by reference to the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 filed with the SEC on

March 30 2009

10.11 Mr Dracketts Supplemental Retirement Plan is the same as the Supplemental Retirement

Plan in Exhibit 10.11 which is incorporated herein by reference except as to the name of

the Executive which is Charles Drackett Jr ii the date of execution which is December

30 2008 and iiithe annual benefit amount in Section 2.1.1 which is $21000

10.12 Mr Danielsons Supplemental Retirement Plan is the same as the Supplemental Retirement

Plan in Exhibit 10.11 which is incorporated herein by reference except as to the name of

the Executive which is Donald Danielson ii the date of execution which is November

17 2008 iii the normal retirement age under Section 1.10 which is age 87 and iv the

annual benefit amount in Section 2.1.1 which is $20000

10.13 Ameriana Bank SB Supplemental Retirement Plan dated November 15 2008 between

Ameriana Bank SB and Ronald Pritzke incorporated herein by reference to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 filed with

the SEC on March 30 2009

10.14 Mr Hayess Supplemental Retirement Plan is the same as the Supplemental Retirement Plan

in Exhibit 10.11 which is incorporated herein by reference except as to the name of the

Executive which is Scott Hayes ii the date of execution which is November 16 2008
and iiithe annual benefit amount in Section 2.1.1 which is $15000

10.15 Ameriana Bank SB Supplemental Retirement Plan dated December 30 2008 between

Ameriana Bank SB and Richard Hennessey incorporated herein by reference to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 filed with

the SEC on March 30 2009

10.16 Life Insurance Endorsement Method Split Dollar Plan Agreement dated May 1999 as

amended between Ameriana Bank SB and Timothy Clark incorporated herein by
reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
2008 filed with the SEC on March 30 2009

10.17 Ameriana Bancorp 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to

Appendix to the Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed with

the SEC on April 14 2006

21 Subsidiaries

23 Consent of BKD LLP

31.1 Rule l3a-l4a Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14a Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32 Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350

101 The following materials from Ameriana Bancorps Annual Report of Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2011 formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language XBRL

the Consolidated Balance Sheets ii the Consolidated Statements of Income iii the

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity iv the Consolidated Statements of Cash
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

AMERIANA BANCORP

Date March 29 2012 By Is Jerome Gassen

Jerome Gassen

President and Chief Executive Officer

Duly Authorized Representative

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated

By Is Jerome Gassen March 29 2012
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President Chief Executive Officer

and Director

Principal Executive Officer
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Director
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Director
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